CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Dear Sir/ Madam

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Council to be held in the Council
Chamber, Municipal Offices, on Monday, 10 October 2011 at 2.30 pm at which
meeting the following business will be transacted and any other business which may
be legally transacted at such a meeting.

Councillors

Anne Regan, Barbara Driver (Chair), Garth Barnes, lan Bickerton, Nigel Britter,

Chris Coleman, Tim Cooper, Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Wendy Flynn,

Rob Garnham, Les Godwin, Penny Hall, Colin Hay (Vice-Chair), Rowena Hay,

Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Robin MacDonald,
Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, Heather McLain, Paul McLain,
John Rawson, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett, Charles Stewart,
Klara Sudbury, Lloyd Surgenor, Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, Andrew Wall,

John Webster, Paul Wheeldon, Simon Wheeler, Roger Whyborn and Jo Teakle

Agenda
1. PRAYERS
2. APOLOGIES
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

4. TO APPROVE AND CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE (Pages 1 - 20)
MEETING HELD ON THE 27 JUNE 2011

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS
None received.

6. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR
7. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

8. MEMBER QUESTIONS
2 received (see separate sheet).

9. PETITION REGARDING STARVEHALL FARM AND (Pages 21 - 28)
PLAYING FIELDS
A debate on a petition received on the 10 August 2011

10. REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION (Pages 29 - 146)



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Report of the Constitution Working Group

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (Pages 147 -
Statement of the Chair of the Audit Committee 150)
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, PLACES AND (Pages 151 -
STATIONS 174)

Report of the Chief Executive

NOTICES OF MOTION

Motion A

Proposed by: Councillor Bickerton
Seconded by: Councillor Jeffries

This Council considers there are alternatives to mass
incineration of domestic waste. This is mature technology
which has economic advantage both in the short-term and
overall life cycle costs, more environmentally friendly, and
compatible with the planned future improved recycling rates
across the County.

The Council requests of Gloucestershire County Council, as
part of the Waste Management Strategy of reducing Landfill,
that alternative UK waste technologies are considered in
detail along with the existing incinerator schemes being put
forward for Javelin Park/Haresfield.

TO RECEIVE PETITIONS

ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS
URGENT AND WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION

NORTH PLACE AND PORTLAND STREET - PROGRESS (Pages 175 -
UPDATE 186)
Report of the Cabinet Member Built Environment (any

discussion on the financial information will be taken in exempt

session)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 -EXEMPT

INFORMATION
The Council is recommended to approve the following
resolution:-

“That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government
Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the
remaining agenda items as it is likely that, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the
proceedings, if members of the public are present there will
be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 for agenda item 18 and paragraphs 1, 3 and 5
for agenda item 19, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local
Government Act 1972, namely:

Paragraph 1; Information relating to any individual.

Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business

2



18.

19.

affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding
that information)

Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to legal
professional privilege could be maintained in legal
proceedings

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ISSUE
Report of the Chief Executive

REQUEST FOR DISCRETIONARY ALLOWANCE UNDER
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (DISCRETIONARY
PAYMENTS) REGULATIONS 1996

Briefing by the Director of People, Organisational
Development and Change / Borough Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

(Pages 187 -
194)

Contact Officer. Saira Malin, Democracy Officer, 01242 775153

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk

Andrew North

Chief Executive



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4
Page 1

Council

Monday, 27th June, 2011
2.30 -7.30 pm

Attendees

Councillors: Barbara Driver (Chair), Anne Regan, Garth Barnes,

lan Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Chris Coleman, Tim Cooper,

Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Wendy Flynn, Rob Garnham,
Les Godwin, Penny Hall, Colin Hay (Deputy Chair), Rowena Hay,
Diane Hibbert, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Paul Massey,
Andrew McKinlay, Heather McLain, Paul McLain, John Rawson,
Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett,

Charles Stewart, Klara Sudbury, Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett,
Andrew Wall, John Webster, Paul Wheeldon, Simon Wheeler,
Roger Whyborn and Jo Teakle

Also in attendance:

Minutes

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Councillors Holliday, McCloskey, McDonald and
Surgenor.
Grahame Lewis, Executive Director, had also given his apologies and the
Mayor wished him well in his operation on Thursday.

2. PRAYERS
Reverend Tim Mayfield opened the meeting with a prayer.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillors Barnes and Seacome declared a personal interest in agenda item 9
as members of the Cheltenham in Bloom committee. Councillor Thornton
declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 as a Friend of Montpellier
Bandstand and Gardens. Councillor Smith declared a personal interest in the
Notices of Motion relating to the County Council as a member of the County
Council. Councillor Garnham declared a similar interest.

4, TO APPROVE AND CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
16 MAY 2011
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 16 May 2011 be
agreed and signed as an accurate record subject to Councillor Holliday
and Smith being listed as giving their apologies for the meeting.

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS
The following responses were given to the public questions received:

-1-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 2

Question from David Stennet of the Friends of Imperial Square and
Gardens

The Friends of Imperial Square and Gardens have a positive feel about
the future of Imperial Gardens and concur with your plans showing the
extra pathway entrances to the Gardens. We will remain vigilant.

If the virtual images we have seen in the public consultation display
regarding the proposed new look of the Gardens become a reality then
Councillors, Parks Dept., Friends of Imperial Square and Gardens,
Cheltenham in Bloom and the people of Cheltenham can take a bow.

i) There is a lot to live up to and we would ask for the Council’s
guarantee that all parties observe their promises.

Floral grandeur is a major component of the project. It is proposed to
reduce the floral overall area from 650 square metres to 620 square
metres and from 48 flowerbeds to 33. Meanwhile, The Festivals’ tent
capacity is increased by one third to nearly 3000 square metres.

ii) As it is the intention to board over some of the flowerbeds when
Festivals take place, why can’t extra floral display beds be put on
the south and east sections to make up to the present volume?

We would encourage the planting of mature staked specimen trees
instead of young saplings to help restrict any acts of vandalism. The Jazz
Festival’s move away is welcome. This will relieve the eco-pressure on
Imperial Gardens. It is imperative that all damage to flowerbeds and
lawned areas be restored promptly after Festival use, otherwise strict
penalties should be imposed. It is unfair to drift into a repeat of the past
eighteen months when Imperial Gardens has looked like a wasteland.
The people of Cheltenham deserve better. Tents must go up and down
in double-quick time. There must be a covenant that The Festivals meet
the costs of restoration of the lawns and flowerbeds to the highest order.

We like the idea of Skillicorne Gardens being opened up, but caution
about possible noise and disturbance from loud music and drinking
disorders. Use for Wedding Parties is being suggested but this should not
lead to the extension of existing licences appertaining to both the Garden
Bar and Town Hall.

iii) Can the Council give us an assurance that they have no such
plans?

iv) Can you also re-state your commitment to The Gardens’ Code of
Conduct Policy being enforced, namely no ball games, no bicyle
riding, no alcohol drinking, no litter and no dogs allowed except on
leads?

This is particularly important at any time and more so how you are going
to spend £140,000 on the first step of the Imperial Gardens Upgrade.”

Response from Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Roger

-2
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.




Page 3

Whyborn

i) The Council will keep its promises.

ii) There will be increased planting of shrubbery and perennials around
the periphery of the gardens, also the central avenue with flowering trees,
as well as the replanting of Skillicorne gardens using climbing plants, for
example roses. Regarding the square meterage of flower beds, officers
will look at whether this can be increased in a way that gives a tasteful
and practical effect.

The contract between the Council and Cheltenham Festivals will require
that damage to flowerbeds and lawned areas are restored after Festival
use at their expense. Both sides will attempt to undertake this as promptly
as the weather allows.

A 75 day per annum rule will be applied to the length of time tents may
occupy the lawns.

iii) The council has no plans to extend the licensing hours in the Gardens.

iv) The council is committed to protecting the infrastructure and public
enjoyment of Imperial Gardens and will take reasonable and practical
steps within our power to deal with unwelcome behaviour. To do this we
will continue to work closely with the police and the community.

In a supplementary question, David Stennett, commented that recent
observations had dented his enthusiasm as the appearance of the
Imperial Gardens was not living up to expectations following the recent
Festivals. Only a limited amount of restoration work had been done and
turf needed reworking. He considered this tarnished the image of
Cheltenham and asked who was going to take the possibility for making
sure that the reinstatement work was carried out properly?

The Cabinet Member replied that some returfing work had already been
carried out following the Science Festival. Parks and Gardens staff were
still working on this and he asked the Friends to bear with the council as it
would be completed shortly.

2. | Question from Diane Lewis

Why can the argument "option 2 seeming the more likely option was
more based on that option being broadly acceptable to the Friends of
Imperial Gardens than option 1 being unacceptable to Cheltenham
Festivals" be used as a fair, rational and democratic means of arriving at
a decision to give the whole of Imperial Gardens to Cheltenham Festivals
and deprive the residents of Cheltenham of the most popular recreational
area in Cheltenham?

Response from Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Roger
Whyborn

The plans for Imperial Gardens which were put out on consultation were
arrived at after considerable deliberation as to the competing demands
for their usage. On the one hand, many tens of thousands of the tickets

-3-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.




Page 4

sold for Cheltenham Festivals are bought by citizens of the Borough,
whilst on the other hand it is recognised that Imperial Gardens is much
loved and well used, and has been dubbed the jewel in Cheltenham's
crown by some. We have sought to create a Festival in a Garden
approach, and to leave adequate space for circulating and sitting down,
and not just for tents. Indeed it is planned to create space around the bar
area where currently we have the crazy situation of having to close the
garden bar for the Literature festival! Moreover, we propose to reduce the
occupancy of the gardens from 107 to 75 days pa. Early indications from
the consultation are that we have pitched the design about right, with a
generally sympathetic response to the plans displayed.

In a supplementary question, Diane Lewis, asked why the council had
allowed Cheltenham Festivals to bring in numerous retail outlets
providing food and other services on the Saturday of the Jazz Festival
when the justification for the festivals being located in Imperial Gardens
was that they provided trade for businesses in Cheltenham.

In response the Cabinet Member said that the agreement with the
caterers, Fosters, at the Imperial Gardens and Town Hall, allowed for
certain supplementary services to be offered supplying food and drink
which Fosters were unable to supply. The Cabinet Member said he
couldn’t comment on this particular Saturday.

3. | Question from Fiona Wild

It should be noted that Imperial Gardens has the highest number of
visitors of any similar-sized garden in the country and the new design is
certainly ingenious. However, if the experiment of spreading the festival
tents more widely but sparsely across the whole area (and including
Montpellier Gardens) does not work and Ms Renney carries out her threat
to take the Festivals elsewhere, will the (I quote Clir. Rawson) "
historically important gardens", be restored to their former glory. In other
words, is there a Plan B?

Response from Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Roger
Whyborn

No, we are not planning on failure, and the proposed design of Imperial
Gardens is considered to be good in its own right. However | recognise
that usage of the gardens, including Montpellier Gardens, is a moving
situation. So if the Council in the future was faced with a decision to
further redesign the gardens - for whatever reason, it would base its
thinking on the situation at the time.

In a supplementary question, Fiona Wild, held up a photograph showing
the damage to a grassed area of Imperial Gardens. She asked whether
the council was going to go down as the first in local history to be held
over the barrel of a gun by Cheltenham Festivals and allow an act of
vandalism on the gardens from which the gardens would never recover.

In response, the Cabinet Member said ‘No’.

-4 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.




Page 5

COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR
The Mayor said she had written a letter of condolence To the family of Colour
Sergeant Kevin Fortuna, who had been killed recently in Afghanistan.

She referred to the recent death of former Councillor Gerry Gearing and asked
Council to stand for a minutes silence as a mark of respect. She invited
Councillor Garnham to say a few words.

Councillor Garnham reminded members that Gerry Gearing had been a
borough councillor for nine years from 1999 to 2008. During that time he had
served both his ward and party conscientiously and had been tenacious in
getting answers and actions on behalf of his constituents. He had taken pride in
being a Councillor and serving the people of both Park Ward and Cheltenham.
He thanked him for his personal support and said that the thoughts of
everybody were with his wife Diana and the family.

The Mayor referred to the Challenge she had put out to all councillors and
officers to help raise money for her charities.

She confirmed that she had asked that a seating plan be reintroduced for the
Council Chamber at Council meetings. This would benefit both herself and the
press and public in identifying speakers.

COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
The Leader added his own tribute to Gerry Gearing in that he had been an
enthusiastic director of Gloucestershire Airport.

The Leader reminded members that any bids for Community Pride awards had
to submitted by 1 July 2011.

MEMBER QUESTIONS
No member questions were received.

IMPERIAL GARDENS OUTLINE DESIGN AND CONSULTATION

The Cabinet Member Sustainability introduced the report as circulated with the
agenda. The report informed members of progress on the garden redesign and
consultation process and the Cheltenham Festival proposals for Imperial and
Montpellier Gardens. The intention was for the designs, together with feedback
from the consultation and today’s Council Debate to be reported back to
Cabinet for a decision at the end of July. If approved by Cabinet, phase 1 of the
works would be worked up in more detail and more accurate costings obtained.
Planning and listed building consent would be applied for where required with a
view to works being undertaken during this coming Autumn and Winter.

During the debate that followed, Members acknowledged that the festivals were
vital for Cheltenham and the council needed to support them. However the
gardens were an iconic part of Cheltenham which had been there long before
the festivals and needed to be protected. It was accepted that the balance

-5-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 6

between the festivals and the gardens was a difficult issue to resolve but it was
a very important issue to the people of the town and therefore they should have
the have the biggest say.

Councillor Malcolm Stennett, as the Chair of Economy and Business
Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee (EBI), raised particular
concerns about the involvement of overview and scrutiny in the process. Whilst
he supported the festivals he had seen no proper business plans. On 7 March
2011, EBI had requested a report on the issue but the paper had been light
weight and contained no economic information. Consequently the committee
had passed two resolutions. Firstly the committee had recommended that
Cabinet receive additional economic and financial information in order for them
to be in a position to assess the benefit of implementing changes to the town
centre parks in an endeavour to meet the requirements of Cheltenham
Festivals. Along with the proposed options consideration should also be given
to maintaining the status quo and / or using areas at the racecourse or in
Pittville Park. Secondly the committee requested that they be involved in
reviewing the economic aspects during the next stage of the consultation and
receive a detailed report on the options with a full financial breakdown when it is
available.

The Cabinet Member Sustainability had received a reminder in May that EBI
were expecting this report at their July meeting. The response received had
been disappointing as the Cabinet Member had refused EBI’s request for the
second time saying that he saw no benefit in officers spending time preparing
the information requested. As chair of EBI, he had insisted that a report was
received at their next meeting on the 18 July so that O&S comments could be
fed into the Cabinet meeting on the 26" of July. He would continue to press for
this report.

Councillor Stennett concluded that it was exceedingly worrying that work was
proceeding without giving due consideration to the full financial aspects of a
business case. It was after all a major change to a conservation area and there
appeared to be no future business plans for the next five years. This seemed
unprofessional. What would happen when further expansion of the festivals was
requested?

In response the Cabinet Member Sustainability said he had no more to add to
the written responses he had made to Councillor Stennett. The money being
spent on the gardens was not solely for the benefits of Cheltenham Festivals
but the expenditure was to benefit the people of Cheltenham. Therefore it was
not appropriate to justify improvements to the parks in business terms. He was
not prepared to spend thousands of pounds on consultants to verify the
economic figures supplied by the festivals.. With regard to future expansion he
was clear that the proposed schemes represented the limits for Imperial
Gardens and Montpelier Gardens. Cheltenham Festivals were well aware that
they would have to look elsewhere for future expansion though in his view a
total out-of-town venue would not be an option he would support.

Members asked a number of questions and and the responses of the Cabinet
Member are listed below:

-6 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 7

e Will the Cabinet Member give his reassurance that there will be a written
response to the concerns raised by Cheltenham in Bloom on page 15 of
the report.
¢ The Cabinet Member confirmed that he would reply in writing and

similarly to other comments he had received. This included those
from the Civic Society which had been received too late for inclusion
in the papers.

o Wil any new trees and plants be obtained from local producers to
enhance the local economy?

e They would do their best but the council was obliged to follow
procurement rules and ensure good value for money was obtained
on all its purchases.

e Can the Cabinet Member reassure members that the budget allocated of
£140,000 will be sufficient to cover the work and what would happen if it
proves to be insufficient or there are insufficient funds to carry out the
ongoing maintenance work?

e The Cabinet Member assured members that the plans would be
thoroughly costed before taking any action and there was no plan to
leave the work unfinished. The ongoing maintenance work was
budgeted for and any restoration work following a festival would be
carried out at Cheltenham Festival's expense.

The Leader added that the costs of Phase 1 had been fully costed in
this year’s budget and any Phase 2 requirements would form part of
future budget proposals.

e How confident was the Cabinet Member in the estimates for the
redesign work given the experience of Pitville Park when the tenders for
the work on the bridge came in well above the original estimates?

e He gave his personal assurance that all the works would be
delivered to time?

o Will the council receives some of the financial benefits from the redesign
work it is carrying out to extend the bar area and Skillicorne Gardens.

e There would be regular renegotiation of the contract with the
caterers and he was confident that the Cabinet Member Sport and
Culture would ensure the council receives its fair share of the profits.
The Cabinet Member Sport and Culture said that consideration of
Skillicorne Gardens would be taken into account when negotiating
any deals with catering companies. Currently the council received
10% of turnover as commission and the contract was due to be
renegotiated in October 2011.

o How will the success of the redesign work be measured to confirm that
the right decision had been made? Documentation of the alternative
options would have been useful.

¢ What guidance was going to be given to delivery lorries given the recent
damage where lorries had ripped up the turf leaving a quagmire?

e This had been noted and work was in progress to address the issue.

¢ What action was the council proposing to take on the fast food and
mobile take-aways present in the gardens at the recent festival? The
experience at the Jazz Festival on the May Bank Holiday was that the

mobile food outlets smelt unpleasant and their presence demonstrated a

lack of respect on behalf of Cheltenham Festivals. It was also

questioned why the festivals had asked for extra tentage space if it was
now being used for fast food outlets?

-7-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



10.

Page 8

e This would be reviewed along with the licensing requirements and
the council would want any such services to be of a high standard.
The Cabinet Member Sport and Culture said that burger vans had
not been part of the contract so he was concerned to hear about this
and would follow it up.

There had been poor communication from the council to the public on

the usage of the gardens and restoration work. Could a public notice be

put on the iron railings to explain the timetable?

e This would be considered with a view to publishing an annual plan in
a public place.

Can the Cabinet Member reassure members that any restoration work is

timetabled in both the calendars of Cheltenham Festivals and Parks and

Gardens to minimise the destructive aspects to the gardens and ensure

the impact of the festivals is hardly noticeable. Precision and attention to

detail are needed as the gardens are currently in a frightful state.

e No amount of precision would allow the grass to regrow overnight
after a festival but several options were being considered including
planting the grass seed before the Festival. There was already a
calendar in place which included spring bedding before the Science
Festival and then planting of summer bedding before the Literature
Festival and then restoration work for the winter.

Can the Cabinet Member give a straight yes or no answer to the

question asked by the Friends of Imperial Square and Gardens

regarding the council’s commitment to enforcement of the Gardens’

Code of Conduct Policy?

¢ Yes he would ensure the Code of Conduct was upheld

Who will be responsible for enforcement of the restoration of any

damage to the gardens and who will be accountable to members and to

the public?

e The contract between the council and Cheltenham Festivals would
be enforced in the usual way. He was sure that the member
concerned was well aware of the officers responsible for
enforcement and therefore he was not prepared to answer the
question in the chamber.

Could a suspended floor area be considered for the grassed areas as

well as the beds to minimise damage to the turf?

e This could be looked at but there was likely to be a cost involved.

The Mayor thanked members for their comments and hoped that they would be
considered by Cabinet when making their decision on the outline design in July.

FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2010/11 AND QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING
TO MAY 2011

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Community Development introduced the
joint report and made the following points:

The predicted overspend of £801,700 in the budget monitoring report to
the end of August 2010 had been converted to an underspend of
£174,086 in 2010/11 which was an outstanding achievement by officers
across the council.

£303,200 required Member approval at Council to carry forward

-8-

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 9

requests.

e The proposed solution for the Bath Road toilets was an innovative
approach involving local people in the service and satisfying their needs
at a reduced cost to the council.

¢ Indications were that there would be a favourable verdict to the Icelandic
Bank situation but this had not been assumed.

e The LAA performance reward grant was enabling a further round of
Community Pride awards to the value of £30,000.

¢ Aninnovative use of the New Homes Bonus was being proposed to fund
small environmental works and a fund to support events in the town.
Both of these initiatives would help to attract visitors and trade to the
town during the difficult economic climate.

e He supported the recommendations of the Section 151 Officer and
considered it was prudent to increase the bad debt provision in view of
the changes to the benefit regime.

e Additional proposals for bringing forward the roof repairs at the
Everyman Theatre and funding the much-needed toilet refurbishment at
the Town Hall were included.

¢ There had been a drop in income from offstreet parking. He considered
that this was due to the current economic climate, the increased usage
of buses by those eligible for concessionary fares and the public opting
for more greener ways of travel.

e The take up of the garden waste scheme had been slower than
anticipated in this financial year and if this trend continued there would
be a shortfall of income of £223,200 in 2011/12. He acknowledged that
some members of the public were angry at having to pay a charge for a
garden waste service which had previously been free. Despite the result
in the take-up for the new garden waste scheme he still considered that
the previous scheme had been unsustainable and it would not have
been possible to continue subsidising it to the tune of £1 million per
annum. A marketing campaign would now be put in place to encourage
people to take up the service.

The Cabinet Member Finance and Community Development concluded that
careful monitoring of the budget situation throughout the year had provided
early warnings of problem areas which could then be addressed. This would
continue to be a rolling programme in the current budget climate.

Councillor Garnham welcomed the use of the New Homes Bonus for
environmental improvements but questioned the benefits of spending £180,000
on promoting the town in order to attract visitors and trade. The Cabinet
Member had acknowledged in his introduction that footfall in the town was up
and therefore there was no point in spending more money on improving it still
further. He emphasised that the government was providing the New Homes
Bonus to mitigate the strain that new developments made on the infrastructure
of the town. Therefore the money should be spent on the residents of
Cheltenham on such things as improving pavements, flower displays, additional
street cleaning and increased litter bins not on promotion and cultural activity.

He proposed an amendment that recommendation 5 should be replaced with
the following:

-9-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 10

“ to establish a cross-party working group to address the spending of the New
Homes Bonus, as outlined in paragraph 6.4 on page 6 of the report, on items or
programmes of work that will truly mitigate the strain that the increased
population brings and report back to Cabinet”.

This was seconded by Councillor McLain.

Speaking for the amendment, Councillor Smith agreed that the purpose of the
bonus was for expenditure on infrastructure and to improve the quality of life for
people in the town. It was a significant amount of money and therefore it was
appropriate that it should be given appropriate consideration and consensus
achieved by a cross-party group. As Leader of the previous administration he
had been keen to spend funding from the Local Authority Business Growth
Incentive Scheme to support local businesses but the emphasis had been on
building a long-lasting legacy rather than funding for one-off events. The Joint
Core Strategy was one area which could benefit from additional funding.

Councillor Hibbert reminded members that a significant amount of money had
been redirected from Pittville Park during the last budget. The Friends of Pittville
Park had been very active in exploring options for funding for improvement work
and she asked the Cabinet Member whether he would be willing to meet with
them to discuss future funding. She suggested that some of the New Homes
Bonus could be used for this purpose.

The Cabinet Member Sustainability confirmed that he would be happy for such
a meeting to take place.

Speaking against the amendment, the Leader said he would resist the change
as the proposed spend was not for marketing as had been suggested. Another
member suggested that the cross-party budget working group was the
appropriate forum for this matter to be raised. It was also emphasised that retalil
businesses were currently struggling and promoting Cheltenham would help
boost the economy which in turn would have a beneficial effect on the well-
being of people in the town.

In seconding the amendment, Councillor McLain acknowledged the views of
both sides but considered that a meeting of a cross-party group over the next
four to six weeks would be the best option.

Upon a vote the amendment was LOST
Voting For 14, against 21 with 0 abstentions.

Debate continued on the main motion.

On the subject of green waste, some members felt clarity was needed on the
way the current position and predicted outcome was presented in the report.
The green waste scheme had been well publicised including extensive articles
in the Echo and therefore there was no benefit to be gained in spending further
money on marketing the scheme. They challenged the statement of the Cabinet
Member Finance that the service had been “free’ as it had always been
effectively paid for by council tax payers as part of the budget. The charge may
be may modest but it still presented difficulties for those on pensions and limited
incomes. The recent queues at local recycling sites were an indication that

-10 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 11

people were not prepared to take up the service. The council should give
consideration to the additional costs of dealing with the extra green waste
deposited in this way. The green waste bins provided were also not suitable for
many terraced properties or those in multiple occupancies and despite prompts
this issue had not been resolved. Members wanted to know how much had
already been spent on marketing the green waste scheme.

The Cabinet Member Sustainability said he did not have any figures on the
current marketing spend but it was not a great amount of money. He would
circulate a written response to members.

In support of the current position, the Leader acknowledged that the roll-out of
the kitchen waste scheme had been a priority for officers and Cabinet were now
asking them to refocus on the green waste scheme to ensure that it met its
2012 targets. There was no proposal to spend thousands of pounds on
marketing as some Members had suggested. The Cabinet Member Finance
reminded members that the budget was about choices and they could either
make a charge for green waste or make cuts elsewhere. He added that other
authorities around Cheltenham had introduced such a charge.

Members asked a number of questions and and the responses of the Cabinet
Member are listed below:

e Should the loss of income on car parks be featured on the Corporate
Risk Register? What is the target for fine income referred to in
paragraph 15.5 and in the incentives being given to staff to achieve this
target?

o The Cabinet Member Finance agreed to provide a written
response on the target.

o Will support for the Bath Road Toilets be in the base budget for the next
two to three years?

o The Cabinet Member confirmed that this had been factored into
the base budget, £5000 for services and £10,000 to the Bath
Road traders for the maintenance.

o Why was a similar approach not being adopted for the Cox’s Meadow
toilets which were now closed. They had been well used by local people
and travellers and the nearest public toilets were a mile and a half away
at Royal Well?

o There were no plans to adopt the approach used for the Bath
Road toilets but they would continue to look for alternative
provision of the facilities. The usage pattern had changed and it
was with reluctance that the facilities had been closed.

e Would it not be more prudent to transfer some of the underspends from
2010/11 to the general reserve to offset any future reductions in income
from car parking fees etc

e What was the rationale for forming a Local Authority Company with one
authority when the county strategy was for a joint waste partnership?

o The Leader responded that the setting up of the company was a
crucial step towards achieving the vision of the joint waste
partnership with shared waste services across the county.

-11 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 12

Would spending on youth work include the subsidy required by the
county for the safeguarding board which provided a critical role? How
would further spending on youth work be allocated?

o The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety indicated that she
would be happy to meet with Councillor McLain, as the county
member responsible for this area, to discuss the safeguarding
board.

The allocation of youth funding was work in progress in
consultation with the Social and Community O&S Committee.
A simplified explanation of the current Icelandic Bank situation was
requested.

o The Section 151 officer said that if the current situation
progressed as anticipated, the council would lose £546,000 of
the £11 million it had originally invested and would recover the
remaining amount. He would ensure that the net loss would be
reported to members in any subsequent reports and briefings

The Leader acknowledged the outstanding effort from officers in achieving this
budget outturn position but also stressed that this had not been without some

pain.

Councillor McClain proposed that the recommendations were taken on block
omitting recommendation 5 where a separate vote was requested.

Resolved that the following recommendations be approved:
Voting on all recommendations excluding 5:
For 32, Against O with 2 abstentions

1.

3.
4,

Receive the financial outturn performance position for the General
Fund, summarised at Appendix 2, and note that services have been
delivered within the revised budget for 2010/11 resulting in a
budget underspend of £174,086 which has been transferred to
General Balances pending decisions over its use in 2011/12.

Recommend the following use of the underspend:

o £48,000 to fund carry forward requests requiring Member
approval at Appendix 7 which includes £15,000 to fund the
arrangements for keeping the Bath Road toilets open (see
paragraph 3.4)

¢ note the Cabinet’s approval, under financial rules 4G, part 8.11,
to use the net underspend on new green waste schemes to fund
the full rollout of plastic bottles collection across the borough
in 2011/12 (estimated cost £17,000) (see paragraph 3.5)

o £124,300 to fund the one off costs of the establishment of a
waste company with Cotswold District Council as set out in the
exempt report to Cabinet on 21% June 2011.

e transfer the balance of £1,786 to General Balances

Note the treasury management outturn at Appendix 9.

Approve the allocation of the LAA performance award grant as set

out in section 5.

-12 -

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



1.

Page 13

5. Approve the allocation of the New Homes Bonus as set out in
section 6 including the use of £30,000 from the civic pride reserve.
(Voting: For 20, Against 13 with 1 abstention)

6. Approve the transfer of £50k from the benefits equalisation reserve
to the benefits bad debt provision as per paragraph 7.3.

7. Note the capital programme outturn position as detailed in
Appendix 11 and approve the carry forward of unspent budgets
into 2011/12 (section 8).

8. Note the position in respect of section 106 agreements and
partnership funding agreements at Appendix 12 (section 10).

9. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for council
tax and non domestic rates for 2010/11 in Appendix 13 (section 11).

10. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for sundry
debts for 2010/11 in Appendix 14 (section 12).

11. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the Housing
Revenue Account for 2010/11 in Appendices 15 to 17 (section 13).

12. Note the outturn prudential indicators Appendix 18 and recommend
that Council approve the revised prudential indicators for 2010/11,
marked with an asterisk (section 14).

13. Note the budget monitoring position to the end of May 2011
(section 15).

14. Approve the advance of property grant to support the
refurbishment of the Everyman theatre roof and the funding
schedule for the next 6 years as at section 9 and Appendix 19.

15. Approve the one-off contribution of £170k from the Property
Repairs & Renewals reserve to the programme maintenance
budget to fund maintenance works at the Art Gallery & Museum in
2011/12 (section 15).

16. Approvethe one-off contribution of £30k from the Property Repairs
& Renewals reserve to the programme maintenance budget to fund
toilet refurbishment works at the Town Hall in 2011/12 (section 15).

The meeting adjourned for tea from 5.10 to 5.25 pm

CONSTITUTION REVIEW WORKING GROUP - UPDATE ON THE REVIEW
OF THE CONSTITUTION

The Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the report as a member of
the constitution working group. The report advised members on the proposed
timescale for the review of the Constitution. The review was commenced last
year but was deferred pending the outcome of various matters which will have
an impact upon the drafting of the Constitution, including the Council’s decision
in December 2010 on strategic commissioning and the approval of a new
management structure. At that meeting the Council also approved
amendments to the Constitution to address actions identified by the Council to
respond to recommendations in the Public Interest Report. Amendments to the
Officer Delegation Scheme in Part 3H of the Constitution have also been made
under authority delegated to the Borough Solicitor to ensure that the Scheme is
consistent with the new management structure which was implemented in April
2011.

He advised that the Constitution Working Group had now resumed its work and

intends to complete the review by October 2011. This timescale reflects the

-13 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



12

Page 14

need for the Financial Rules to be amended in collaboration with the Council’s
partner authorities in the GO project.

He referred to an e-mail he had written to members on 25 June 2011
suggesting that as there seemed to be a consensus from members on the need
for change to the current scrutiny arrangements, a small working group be set
up and proposals brought back to the October council meeting. This timetable
would enable the constitution working group to consider the constitutional
changes required for the new arrangements in the same timescales. The
current timetable for the scrutiny review targeted the implementation of the new
arrangements following the elections in May 2012 but he hoped that this could
be brought forward once Council had agreed the new arrangements.

Resolved that the amendments that have been made to the Officer
Scheme of Delegation be noted and the timescale for the comprehensive
review of the Constitution be approved.

NOTICES OF MOTION

Motion A

Councillor Sudbury, seconded by Councillor McCloskey, proposed the following
motion.

“This Council notes with concern the County Councils proposals to cut £2
million from the £5 million budget for subsidised bus services. Bus journeys
provide a vital public service, helping to prevent social isolation for the elderly
and the vulnerable; allowing people to access essential healthcare services,
employment, and leisure and shopping opportunities. Encouraging people to
travel by bus also helps reduce congestion. We therefore believe the effective
use of public subsidy for bus services is an appropriate use of public money.

Specifically, we are concerned that the current proposals could and should have
been the subject of better consultation, with more meetings in Cheltenham
giving more detail on the cuts proposed and changes considered.

Therefore this Council;

1. Whilst understanding the financial pressures facing local authorities,
urges the county to listen to the residents of Cheltenham who are
concerned about cuts to their valued bus services.

2. Recognising the high turnout at a recent public meeting in Charlton
Kings about the threat to the P & Q service, appeals to the County
Council to extend the consultation period and hold more public
information sessions in the town with a view to protecting those
subsidised services that are most valuable to local people. *

As proposer of the motion, Councillor Sudbury, emphasised the value of the bus
services to local people for retail, leisure and employment. She felt that local
people had been left unclear about the exact nature of the proposals. The low
attendance of 10 people at the meeting arranged as part of the County Council
consultation at Charlton Kings contrasted with the 300 plus people who
attended the event organised by the local parish council. This was an example

-14 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 15

of the failure of the consultation organised by the County Council and there was
a need for more face-to-face events so people could have their say on the
proposals.

Other members disagreed that the consultation had been ineffective and said
there had been extensive coverage in the local media. They could not support
the motion as it appeared to focus on Charlton Kings whereas local bus
services were an issue across the town. They cited examples where the county
was proposing to reduce services which were not well used and therefore
uneconomic and other services which were being increased to respond to
residents needs. As the consultation had now closed the second part of the
motion was inappropriate.

Councillor McClain, speaking as the County Council Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Families explained that the County Council
were aiming to redesign the bus services by providing a hub of town centre
services with links to the rural bus services forming the spokes. The key
priorities were to provide transport to get people to hospital, schools and to
work. This would be achieved by asking bus companies to take on more, to
change the service or to provide flexible transport alternatives. If £2 million
pounds was not saved from this budget then it would have to be found else
where in the county’s budget. He was surprised that Councillor Sudbury as a
County Council member had not taken the opportunity to raise the issue at a
recent County Council meeting or with the county overview and scrutiny
committee. He also pointed out that this Council’s Cabinet had approved the
scrapping of the grant for Charlton Kings community transport as part of the
budget proposals. The reason given was that it was not the most effective use
of public money and similar tough decisions had to be taken at county level.

In supporting the motion members emphasised that the amendment was not
disputing that savings were needed but focused on the inadequate consultation.
The motion to Charlton Kings purely as an example of where the consultation
had been ineffective,

Councillor Barnes, as seconder of the motion, felt that it was appropriate to
discuss County Council matters in this chamber when they affected
Cheltenham. Frequently it was the young, vulnerable and elderly who are most
affected by these types of cuts and the consultation had not been effective.

In her summing up, Councillor Sudbury felt that some members had missed the
point of motion and emphasised that she had only been using Charlton Kings as
an example of inadequate consultation.

Upon a separate vote on each part of the motion they were both CARRIED.
Voting on part 1): For 23, Against 0 with 3 abstentions.
Voting on part 2): For 22, Against 8 with 4 abstentions.

Motion B
Councillor Smith seconded by Councillor Godwin proposed the following
motion.

-15 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 16

“It is now two years since the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on
Garden Land and Infill Sites was published and a first review of the document
should be undertaken.

Parts of the SPD are out-of-date- and as a result of changes introduced by
Planning Policy Statement (PPS3). There are also differences of opinion
regarding the interpretation of parts of the document from all sources, which
indicates that the time has come for the SPD to be reviewed and updated.

Therefore this Council;

1. Propose that members of the original working group, plus replacements
and additions where required, should be reconvened as soon as
possible with the aim of reporting back to the Council meeting on
October 10" 2011.

As proposer of the motion, Councillor Smith, considered that the aspirations of
the SPD were not being delivered and it was not working effectively. Therefore
it was appropriate to review the SPD and ensure it was still fit for purpose. The
results of the government’s National Planning Policy Framework were expected
in July and the SPD could be reviewed in the light of experience over the last
two years and the proposed national framework.

In seconding the motion, Councillor Godwin, indicated some areas where the
SPD was out of date and cited pages 5, 6, 9 and 12 as examples. The
document was important and this had been acknowledged by Planning
Inspectors who had referred to it as part of any appeals process. A recent
meeting had been held with officers to discuss this issue but members attending
did not consider it had been a very effective meeting and therefore the working
group should be reconvened to address this important issue.

In supporting the motion, members felt that the problems stemmed from
different interpretations of the document by officers and members and there
were a few paragraphs that needed reviewing. There appeared to continue to
be doubts and confusions whenever garden developments were discussed at
Planning Committee.

Speaking against the motion, the Leader said that feedback on the SPD he had
received was that it was working well and proving useful. The National Planning
Policy Framework related to all SPDs and planning documents and therefore its
publication did not justify the setting up of this working group. This would be
reviewed as part of the JCS work.

The Cabinet Member Built Environment did not recognize the SPD as being
fatally flawed or that the Planning Committee was making unsound decisions.
He was concerned that members should consider rewriting the SPD after only
two years.

Councillor Jordan, seconded by Councillor Webster, proposed an amendment
to delete paragraph 2 of the motion and amend paragraph 3 as follows:

“ Council requests that Planning Committee reviews the implementation of the
SPD and reports back to Council if it feels any changes are necessary.”

-16 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 17

In proposing the amendment, Councillor Jordan, considered this was an
appropriate matter for the Planning Committee to review.

Speaking against the amendment, Councillor Smith, considered that the
Planning Committee on the 21 July was too far away and the JCS would need
some input on this matter earlier. He suggested that it would be useful to have
some non-Planning Committee members on the working group to add some
balance.

The Head of Legal Services advised members that if the amendment was
carried there may be issues arising for Planning Committee if members were
minded to change the SPD and then the same set of members subsequently
made decisions based on the SPD which they had determined should change.
Therefore, a working group approach including some non Planning Committee
members may be a better option. Also, formulation of planning policy was
generally an Executive matter where Cabinet formulates proposals for Council
approval and he suggested that Cabinet should have some role to play in any
review that was carried out.

In his summing up, Councillor Smith expressed his concern about any working
group comprising only members of the Planning Committee and he felt, with
reference to the legal advice, that a wider working group approach would result
in a stronger planning framework.

Upon a vote on the amendment was CARRIED and this became the
substantive motion.
Voting: For 19, Against 13 with 0 abstentions.

Councillor Godwin, made it clear that he had not said that the SPD was ‘fatally
flawed’ but had suggested that it needed clarification in several places.

Councillor Smith hoped that Cabinet could put aside some money to support
this review. The SPD was currently a useful document for officers when vetting
applications but currently not so useful for the public or for members. He hopes
the chair of Planning Committee could pull together some work on this before
the next Planning Committee meeting.

Upon a vote the motion as amended was CARRIED unanimously.

Motion C
Councillor McClain seconded by Councillor Stennett proposed the following
motion.

“The Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (second review) was adopted in July
2006 and covers the period 1991 to 2011. Plan policies have been saved and
will form part of the Local Development Framework (LDF).

Important changes have occurred to core policies and proposals as a result of
central government changes contained in Planning Policy Statement (PPS3).
Whilst these changes have affected housing development policies, other
changes have occurred, or they have become outdated.

-17 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 18

Therefore this Council

1. Propose that a third review of the Local Plan policies as a matter of
urgency should be undertaken before final acceptance of the LDF”

As proposer of the motion, Councillor McClain sought advice on the statutory
process for reviewing planning policy. The legal position was that that the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning At 1990 dealing with the
preparation of local plans had been repealed. Therefore it was not possible to
have a third review of the Cheltenham Local Plan and the only way to change
the policies was via the LDF Process.

Having considered the position, Councillor McLain decided to withdraw rather
than amend his motion and would consider reframing it for a future meeting

Councillor Jordan referred members to the Cabinet report of the 19 April 2011
which set out a timetable for the review of SPDs.

Motion D
Councillor Godwin seconded by Councillor Wall proposed the following motion.

“The present system of dealing with planning appeals appears to be flawed.
Whether a planning application is refused by the committee, or as a result of an
officer’s delegated recommendation to refuse and the applicant goes to appeal,
we believe a substantial statement should be made in writing to the Planning
Inspectorate.

The statement should set out all of the reasons given for the refusal and carried
out professionally. The present system of sending a copy of the case officer’s
report to committee, plus a copy of the minutes to the Inspectorate is
inadequate.

Therefore this Council;

1. Propose that a time-limited review of the Council’s approach to planning
appeals, through a member group, or an officer report to the next
Council meeting, should be undertaken.

2. Ask that officers consider the re-employment of a qualified Appeals
Ofﬁcer o

As proposer of the motion, Councillor Godwin, said that the public were not
impressed with the council’s record at appeals and their poor showing at
inquiries and he cited several examples. Sometimes consultants had been
engaged to prepare the appeals who had little knowledge of the background.
Planning Inspectors had also complained about the lack of information
presented in supporting the council’s appeals. There was currently no
requirement for a separately articulated case on behalf the council which fully
represented the position of the Planning Committee, planning officers and the
council as a whole. A more professional and consistent approach was needed.

-18 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Page 19

In supporting the motion members welcomed the comments made by Councillor
Godwin. Councillor Fletcher suggested that the biggest mistake had been the
deletion of the planning officer appeals post. Other members suggested that
losing the officer was a false economy especially when consultants were being
used. There was a lack of evidence on whether outcomes would have been
different and this was where a time-limited review could help.

As the meeting had been in session for over four hours, the Mayor confirmed
that members wished to continue.

Speaking against the motion, the Cabinet Member Built Environment thought
the motion was a nonsense. There had been no specialist appeals officer since
2008 and performance had improved since then with 66% of appeals being
won. A consultant had been used on two appeals only in the last year and in
both cases there had been particular reasons. The current commissioning
exercise looking at Built Environment would also be looking at this area.

In his summing up, Councillor Godwin, referred to the statistics he had been
maintaining on planning appeals since 1991 and he considered that the appeals
officer was a key factor in their likely success. He was also concerned that in
some cases the relevant planning officer had been too busy to deal with the
appeal and another officer had been appointed to carry out this work.

Upon a vote on the motion was LOST
Voting: For 13, Against 19.

Motion E
Councillor Wheeldon seconded by Councillor Bickerton proposed the following
motion.

“With Cheltenham Borough Council’s electricity contract due to be renewed
shortly and in order to reach our COZ2 reduction target of a 30% reduction by
2015, purchasing zero carbon electricity from a green energy provider should
be considered.

Therefore this Council;

1. Recommends that purchasing zero carbon electricity from a green
energy provider be a major consideration when choosing the new
supplier. ¢

As proposer of the motion, Councillor Wheeldon, said that the contract renewal
provided the opportunity to reduce the council’s energy consumption and meet
its target on CO2 emissions in the next 12 months. The cost implication should
be relatively small.

As seconder of the motion, Councillor Bickerton, said that the cost of coal and
gas were likely to increase but the cost of renewable energy would fall,
therefore the motion was a sensible approach.

Upon a vote on the motion was CARRIED unanimously.

-19-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



13.

14.

Page 20

TO RECEIVE PETITIONS
No petitions were received.

ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND WHICH
REQUIRES A DECISION
There were no urgent items for discussion.

Barbara Driver
Chair

-20 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 25 July 2011.



Agenda ltem 9
Page 21

Cheltenham Borough Council
Council — 10 October 2011

A petition regarding the proposed development of Starvehall Farm

and playing fields

Accountable member
Accountable officer

Accountable scrutiny
committee

Ward(s) affected

Leader
Director Commissioning

Environment

Prestbury Ward

Significant Decision

No

Executive summary

Recommendations

A petition was received by Council on 10 August 2011 requesting the
following:

“We the undersigned petition Cheltenham Borough Council as follows: We
wish the protection you have afforded Starvehall Farm and the recreation
land adjacent to Prestbury Parish Council playing field in the local plan that
ends in 2011 be included in the new Local Development Framework
currently being developed”.

As the petition had in excess of 750 signatures it is entitled to a debate at
Council.

To recommend that officers consider the issues raised by the petition
as part of the Local Development Framework or the new Cheltenham
Local Plan

Financial implications

None arising from this report.

Contact officer: Head of Financial Services,
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154

$kupbxgsh.doc




Page 22

Legal implications

The petition must be considered in accordance with the Council’s Petition
Scheme made pursuant to the Local Democracy, Economic Development
and Construction Act 2009. The petition will be considered in accordance
with the Council Procedure Rules varied in so far as necessary to comply
with the attached Process.

Within the adopted local plan, the land at Starvehall Farm is neither
designated for development nor designated as an area for protection.

The procedure for the preparation and approval of local plans is being
reformed under the Localism Bill. Under these proposals a new
Cheltenham Local Plan would need to be prepared. If these proposals do
not receive royal assent then the existing Local Development Framework
will remain. Therefore, the future planning status and policies for this land
will be decided either as part of the Local Development Framework or in
the new Cheltenham Local Plan.

Contact officer: jonathan.noel@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272690

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

None arising from this report.

Contact officer: HR Operations Manager,
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355

Key risks

None arising from this report.

Corporate and
community plan
Implications

The local plan and emerging Joint Core Strategy provide the spatial
interpretation of the community strategy and corporate plan outcomes.

Environmental and
climate change
implications

The protection of this site could have positive environmental and climate
change implications.

1.  Background to the Petition Scheme

1.1 The petition provisions in the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act
2009 aim to address the perception nationally, as revealed in the results of the Place survey, that
the community is unable to influence local decisions.

1.2  The Council’s Petition Scheme (based on the national model scheme) is designed to ensure that
the public has easy access to information about how to petition their local authority and they will
know what to expect from their local authority in response. Included within the Scheme is the
requirement to have a full Council debate should a certain number of signatures be achieved.
Cheltenham Borough Council have set that threshold lower than that recommended by the
legislation at 750 signatures.

1.3  The legislation also recommends a 15 minute maximum period for the debate and
recognises that the issue may be referred to another committee where the matter is not

one reserved for full Council. The purpose of the requirement for Council debate therefore,
is not to ensure that the final decision relating to the petition issue is made at that Council

$kupbxgsh.doc



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 23

meeting but to increase the transparency of the decision making process, ensuring that
debates on significant petitions are publicised with sufficient notice to enable the petition
organiser and public to attend. It also ensures that local people know that their views have
been listened to and they have the opportunity to hear their local representative debate
their concerns. The outcome of debates will depend on the subject matter of the petition.

The petition

The petition was received on 10 August from Councillor Hibbert on behalf of the Prestbury Green
Working Group. It had in excess of the 750 signatures required to trigger a debate at Council.
The wording of the petition is set out the Executive Summary of this report.

Councillor Diane Hibbert was nominated as the petition organiser.

The Council is therefore required to debate the petition for a maximum of 15 minutes in
accordance with the Petitions Scheme approved by Council on the 13 May 2010. A process for
dealing with a petition was produced by officers and is attached as Appendix 1 as a process to be
followed for the debate at this meeting. The debate should conclude with one or more decisions
taken pursuant to the Petition Scheme as follows

° taking the action requested in the petition (provided the matter is reserved to full Council for
decision)

° referring the matter to Cabinet or an Appropriate Cabinet Member or Committee (including

Overview and Scrutiny) for further consideration

holding an inquiry into the matter

undertaking research into the matter

holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

calling a referendum

writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the petition

taking no further action on the matter

Background information to the subject of the petition

Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006)

On 29 June 2006 Cheltenham Borough Council formally adopted Cheltenham Borough Local
Plan Second Review. This plan is the statutory development plan for the Borough and provides
the primary basis for the consideration of land use and development.

The local plan has a plan end date of 2011, however all local plan policies are ‘saved’ until such a
time as replaced under the current Local Development Framework arrangements or its
prospective successor; a proposed return to Local Plans currently being proposed by the
Government. In respect of Cheltenham, all policies will be retained until replaced by the
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy and future review of wider
development management policies, site allocations and designations which will ultimately sit
beneath the Joint Core Strategy either as a separate Development Plan Document or as a series
of chapters and policies within a new local plan.

In preparing Cheltenham Borough Local Plan; assessment of urban capacity indicated that

$kupbxgsh.doc



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Page 24

housing requirements to 2011 were likely to be met on previously developed sites. As such only
a small number of sites were allocated for development, set out in policies PR1 and PR2 of the
local plan. Outside these allocations remaining development needs over the plan period was
identified as being made up of existing commitments i.e. sites which already had planning
permission and windfalls i.e. sites which are unallocated. The result of this was that no greenfield
sites were allocated for development.

In respect of land at Starvehall Farm, no designation of this area was made by the local plan. The
area is neither designated for development, nor designated as an area for protection as seems to
be suggested in the petition wording. In terms of classifying the site the area falls within the
principal urban area as defined on the local plan proposals map. The Tatchley Lane link located
to the east of Starvehall Farm is safeguarded under local plan policy PR3 to deliver a transport
scheme. It should be noted that table 7 associated with local plan policy PR3 states ‘the Tatchley
Lane link is currently under reconsideration and may be superseded by alternative proposals,
although no decision to this effect has been made by the County Council.” The proposed
development at Starvehall Farm intends to relocate the link road in accordance with the details
set out in table 7.

Current situation

The petition asks Cheltenham Borough to make decisions in respect of Starvehall Farm within the
context of the emerging Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy. The
emerging JCS will be considerd by Council on 10" November 2011. The JCS will establish the
strategic requirements for development over the plan period to 2031, in doing so it will identify
locations for any strategic requirements which cannot be met within existing built up areas. As
such, sites such as Starvehall Farm will not be considered specifically within the JCS given it falls
within the existing built up area of Cheltenham.

Until the new ‘local plan’ for Cheltenham, which will include the Joint Core Strategy plus
development management policies, site allocations and designations, is finalised, sites falling
within the built up area will be considered within the context of saved local plan policies and
relevant national planning guidance. This is supported within the Inspectors Report of the
Adopted Local Plan Second Review (2006), where reference is made directly to Starvehall Farm:
‘...whilst it is undeveloped land, it is wholly within the urban area and its development should be
accorded appropriate priority in the sequential test set out in PPG3.” The inspector’s decision is
clear that the site is considered as being sequentially preferable to sites outside of the Principal
Urban Area.

In respect, of the petition, the means by which the site could be considered and allocated for
protection would be within a development plan document (DPD) or as a policy contained within a
new Local Plan. However, councillors should be aware that a timetable has yet to be agreed for
the production of any DPDs or a new local plan beyond the Joint Core Strategy but it is currently
unlikely to be before 2014. It is therefore, not possible to bring this forward in advance of the
current planning application for housing development at Starvehall Farm which is due to be
determined at Planning Committee on 27" October 2011.In considering this application regard
must be had to the saved policies of Cheltenham Borough Local Plan together with any other
material considerations.

Reasons for recommendations
To recommend that officers consider the issues raised by the petition as part of the Local
Development Framework or the new Cheltenham Local Plan.

$kupbxgsh.doc



Page 25

Report author Contact officer: Strategic Land Use Officer;
Jjames.hartley@cheltenham.gov.uk tel:01242 264379

Appendices 1. Process for dealing with a petition at council

Background information 1. Council’s petition scheme — report to Council 13 May 2010

$kupbxgsh.doc




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 26



Page 27

Appendix 1
Process for dealing with petitions at Council

The following is the recommended process to be followed for the debate of a
petition at the Council meeting in accordance with the Council's Petition Scheme.
The Council Procedure Rules shall be suspended in so far as necessary to
facilitate this process.

1. The Mayor will remind members of the procedure to be followed

2, Statement by the petition organiser

The Mayor will invite the petitioner organiser or their representative to come to
the microphone and speak for up to 5 minutes on the petition.

There will be no questions and the petition organiser/their representative will take
no further part in the proceedings.

3. Clarification on the background information in the officer’s report

Members will be invited to ask any questions for clarification as to the facts in the
officer’s report.

4. Statement by the relevant Cabinet Member

The Cabinet Member whose portfolio is most relevant to the petition will be
invited by the Mayor to speak for a maximum of 5 minutes on the subject of the
petition. They may wish to refer to the background report from officers circulated
with the papers for the meeting.

They may also wish to propose a motion at this point; if so, the motion must be
seconded.

5. Debate by members

Where a member has proposed a motion (which is seconded), the usual Rules of
Debate (Rule 13) will apply.

If there is no motion, the Mayor will invite any member who wishes to speak on
the petition to address Council for up to a maximum of 3 minutes.

When the 15 minutes set aside for the debate (as laid down in the Council’s
Petition Scheme) is up, the Mayor may decide to extend the time allowed for the
debate but will bring it to a close when they feel sufficient time has been allowed.

6. Conclusion of Debate
The debate should conclude with one or more decisions taken pursuant to the
Petition Scheme as follows:



Page 28

taking the action requested in the petition (provided the matter is reserved
to full council for decision)

referring the matter to Cabinet or an Appropriate Cabinet Member or
Committee (including Overview and Scrutiny) for further consideration
holding an inquiry into the matter

undertaking research into the matter

holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

calling a referendum

writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in
the petition

taking no further action on the matter



Agenda ltem 10
Page 29

Cheltenham Borough Council
Council — 10 October 2011
Constitution Working Group - Review of the Constitution

Accountable member Cabinet Member Corporate Services — Colin Hay

Accountable officers Director of Resources, Director of Commissioning and the Borough
Solicitor

Accountable scrutiny Economy and Business Improvement

committee

Ward(s) affected None specifically

Key Decision No

Executive summary This Report brings together the work carried out by the GO project finance

officers, the Audit Committee, the Constitution Working Group and the
Strategic Commissioning Cross Party Members Group on the Financial
Procedure Rules, the Responsibility for Functions and the review of the
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements.

The Council is being asked to approve the revised Financial Procedure
Rules which are set out in Appendix 1 of the report and which are
proposed to be formally approved by the other partners of the GO project.
The revised Financial Procedural Rules reflect the Council’'s current
Political and Management Structures and are intended to be generic
between the GO partners, with local variation where necessary. It is
intended that the new Rules should take effect, 1% April 2012.

The Council is being asked to approve, in principle, a revised Part 3 of the
Constitution Responsibility for Functions which is set out in Appendix 2 of
the report. The revisions propose a fundamentally different approach to
the Responsibility for Functions which is drafted on the basis that the
functions delegated to Committees, Cabinet and Cabinet Members are
prescribed in greater detail than at present, with those functions not so
prescribed being exercised by Officers. This proposal provides greater
clarity as to the functions exercised by Members and provides for more
flexibility within the Officer delegations. The effectiveness of the proposed
revisions is reliant upon sufficient safeguards elsewhere in the
Constitution, particularly in Part 2 Article 13 (Principles of Sound Decision
Making). Other parts of the Constitution will require significant review,
consequent upon the proposed changes. Once the Council has approved
the revised Scheme of Delegation in principle, the Constitution Working
Group will undertake the further revisions which are necessary to
implement these revisions and also any changes to the Overview and
Scrutiny arrangements referred to below. This comprehensive review will
be brought to the Council for approval as soon as possible, but, in any
event, in time for implementation on or before May 2012.




Page 30

Finally, the report provides an update on the progress of the review of the
Council’'s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements which intends to report its
recommendation to the Council in December 2011.

Recommendations

The Council is asked to

1. Approve the Financial Rules set out at Appendix 1 for
implementation on 1% April 2012.

2. Delegate to the Director of Resources, in consultation with the
Chair of Audit Committee, authority to make any textual or other
amendments to the Financial Rules approved under paragraph 1
above, which arise from further consideration by the GO
partnership and which do not materially affect the approved
Rules.

3. Approve in principle Part 3 Responsibilities for Functions set out
in Appendix 2 and the Corporate Policy Table in Appendix 3

SUBJECT TO

a) Leader/Cabinet approving the Executive Functions set out in
Part 3E (Appendix 2).

b) Consequential amendments to be approved by Council
following further consideration by the Constitution Working
Group.

4. Note the progress of the Overview and Scrutiny Review and to
agree the timescales.

Financial implications

The revisions to the Financial Rules provide a robust but more
flexible approach to financial management across the Council which
maintain the principles of sound, stewardship of public funds.

A common set of rules will facilitate joint working across the GO
partner organisations and support the drive for effectiveness and
efficiencies to be delivered via the shared service.

There are no specific revenue or capital implications of this report.

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk,
01242 264123

Legal implications

Contained in the report.
Contact officer: Sara Freckleton,

sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.qov.uk. 01684 272011

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

The proposed changes will need to be communicated to members and
officers once approved.

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk,
01242 264355

Key risks

See attached risk assessment — Appendix 4




1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.2

2.3

2.4

Page 31

Background

A comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution was commenced last year to address both
the Council’s Action Plan approved in March 2010 and to recognise the fact that the last full
review of the Constitution was in 2005.

In December 2010, the Council approved a number of amendments to the Constitution which
were deemed to be necessary to satisfy the Council’'s Action Plan, recognising that the
comprehensive review was still ongoing. The Constitution Working Group last reported to the
Council on the 27" June 2011 with an update on the progress of the review.

The Working Group has undertaken a comprehensive review of Part 3, and has commented upon
proposed revisions to the Financial Procedure Rules, and these two significant pieces of work are
now placed before the Council for approval.

The proposed approach to the Responsibilities for Functions (Scheme of Delegation) - Part 3 will
result in a requirement for consequential considerable amendment to other parts of the
Constitution particularly the Articles (Part 2) in order to ensure that the decision-making is carried
out transparently with robust safeguards. Therefore, the Council is being asked to approve, in
principle, the proposed revisions to Part 3 to enable the fully revised Constitution to be placed
before the Council for approval once the Constitution Working Group is satisfied that all
necessary amendments, including those needed to accommodate the outcome of the Overview
and Scrutiny review, have been addressed.

As Members are aware, the GO project involving the Council and its other partners (Cotswold,
West Oxford and Forest of Dean) is nearing first stage implementation and it is intended that, as
far as is possible, the Financial Rules to which the participating authorities work are consistent
(with any local variations as appropriate).

Review of Financial Rules — Part 4H of the Constitution

The Financial Rules which are set out in Part 4 of the Council’'s Constitution were last updated in
2009 although remain substantially as approved in 2005. Amendments need to be made to these
Rules in order to reflect the current structure, policies and procedures of the Council.

The Council is committed to sharing its Financial, Human Resources and Payroll services with its
partner authorities (Cotswold, Forest of Dean, West Oxfordshire) through the GO project from 1°
April 2012. Agreement has therefore been reached within the GO partnership with a view to
agreeing a set of Financial Procedure Rules which is common to the partnership authorities, with
some local variations as necessary to reflect specific procedural or Constitutional requirements of
the individual authorities.

The draft Financial Procedure Rules which are attached at Appendix 1 have been considered and
approved by finance officer representatives from each of the GO authorities and have, in
Cheltenham Borough Council’'s case, taken into account amendments suggested by the
Constitution Working Group and the Audit Committee. Each Authority will need to approve the
new Rules and this may lead to further amendments being suggested.

The Council is being asked to approve the Financial Procedure Rules as set out in Appendix 1.
Any revisions which are proposed as a result of the consideration by other partner authorities and
which have a material effect on the proposed Rules will be brought to the Council for approval. It
is suggested that authority be delegated to the Director of Resources in consultation with the
Chair of Audit Committee to make any textual and other amendments which do not materially
affect the Rules but which ensure consistency of approach across the GO authorities and
alignment with the GO systems and processes.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 32

Review of Responsibilities for Functions

Part 3 of the Constitution deals with the allocation of the Authority’s functions to various bodies
and individuals, e.g. Council (i.e. full Council), Committees (and Sub-Committees), Cabinet,
Cabinet Members and Officers. A fully revised Part 3 has been prepared for consideration by
Council and Cabinet and is included at Appendix 2 to this report.

The majority of the Authority’s functions are Executive Functions and these fall to the Leader of
the Council to allocate. These Functions are set out in Part 3E (Appendix 2). However, the
Authority also has a number of important Non-Executive Functions and it is for Council to decide
how these will be allocated. These Non-Executive Functions are set out in Parts 3B-D (Appendix
2).

The new draft Part 3 is considerably shorter than the current Part 3. This is due to:

(a) rewriting and shortening of much of the current text;

(b) transfer of a number of current tables/schedules to appendices to the Constitution;

(c) a fundamental change in approach to the allocation/delegation of functions to Officers.

The current Part 3 operates on the basis of those functions delegated to Committees, Cabinet
and Cabinet Members being drawn in a wide sense and the delegated functions to Officers being
closely prescribed. The new draft Part 3 is drawn on the basis of the functions delegated to
Committees, Cabinet and Cabinet Members being prescribed in more detail than at present;
Officers will then be able to exercise all other functions not so prescribed (and subject to certain
safeguards as referred to below). This new approach potentially has at least two key benefits:

e greater clarity as to what the Functions of Members actually are;

e a clearer and more flexible scheme of Officer delegation because Officers will simply
exercise those Functions not allocated elsewhere in Part 3 and there will not be detailed line
by line delegations which will quickly become out of date.

It will be important to build in safeguards to the new approach to Officer delegation. The
proposed safeguards are fourfold:

(i) the delegator (e.g. Council, the Leader) or a Cabinet Member (in respect of an Executive
Function falling within their portfolio) may direct in any particular case that an Officer shall not
exercise their delegated power and that the matter shall be referred upwards to Council, the
Leader, the Cabinet Member, etc. for decision;

(i) Key Decisions and Significant Decisions cannot be made by Officers except where the Chief
Executive or an Executive Director is exercising their urgency powers;

(iii) all Officers must comply with the principles of sound decision making set out in Article 13 of
the Constitution (these principles, which include the obligation to comply with Financial Rules
and Contract Rules, are being reviewed to ensure that they are comprehensive and robust
and an updated Article 13 will be referred to Council subsequently for approval along with the
final version of Part 3);

(iv) where the Chief Executive, Executive Directors or Directors sub-delegate their Functions,
they will be obliged to ensure that the empowered Officer is fully aware of the responsibilities
and accountabilities that come with those Functions.

It should be noted that the description of Functions and service areas delegated to Officers
reflects the Chief Executive’s proposals to transfer some functions from the Director Operations
to other Directors, principally the Director Wellbeing & Culture in readiness for the creation of the



3.7

3.8

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 33

proposed local authority company with Cotswold District Council.

The proposed delegations to officers in Part 3D and E include provision for the Chief Executive
and Executive Directors to undertake functions where other officers are absent or unable to act.
Where a statutory officer (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer) is
acting in their statutory capacity, then their nominated deputy will act in their absence or when
they are unable to act.

Appendix 3 to the report contains a draft table showing the Authority’s current corporate (as
opposed to operational) policies, plans and strategies. This document is cross referenced in the
new Part 3 and is intended to set out which parts of the Authority are responsible for which
policies, etc. and who the Lead Members/Officers are together with other information such as
when the policy, etc. is up for review. The table includes those policies, etc. which comprise the
Policy Framework, .i.e. those which are produced by the Executive and approved by Council.
Some elements of the table remain to be populated.

Review of Overview & Scrutiny Arrangements
The objective of the review is to ensure an effective scrutiny process operates in Cheltenham
Borough Council which supports commissioning and achieves positive outcomes for the town.

As Members are aware, a review of the Council’'s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements are
currently taking place. It is intended that any changes are implemented following the elections in
May 2012.

On 25 June, the Cabinet Member Corporate Services wrote to all members suggesting that as
there seemed to be a consensus from members on the need for change to the current scrutiny
arrangements, a small working group be set up and proposals brought back to the October
Council meeting. This timetable would enable the Constitution Working Group to consider the
constitutional changes required for the new arrangements in the same timescales.

Councillor Penny Hall is Project Sponsor, and Councillor Colin Hay as Cabinet Member
Corporate Services is a key stakeholder for the review which is being managed by the
Democratic Services Manager. The Strategic Cross Party Members Group is acting as a
sounding board for the review to ensure the commissioning requirements are met.

The review is informed by a variety of sources to enable a view to be formed on what matters are
being scrutinised and how effectively this is being done. The sources of information include:

e An analysis of the items on scrutiny agendas over a 12 month period starting from June 2010
by source, type and outcome.

e A scrutiny questionnaire sent to all members, officers and co-optees in August.

¢ An interactive workshop with members and officers involved in the scrutiny process in
October.
Consideration of the needs of the commissioning process.

o Consideration of best practice and scrutiny reviews carried out by other councils.

This approach was agreed by the Strategic Cross Party Working Group on 19 July 2011. At the
commencement of the review it became apparent that it could not be completed as
comprehensively as is necessary in time for the October meeting of Council. A revised plan was
considered and agreed by the Project Sponsor and by the Constitution Working Group.

Good progress has been made on the review and is currently on target against the plan in that:-



4.8

5.2

Page 34

- the analysis of scrutiny agendas is in progress.

- the questionnaire has been issued to members and officers with 21 responses received from
members and 11 from officers. Responses are currently being analysed but initial indications
are that 65% of members who responded thought that overview and scrutiny could be
operating more effectively. 50% of members responding thought the size and structure of
scrutiny needed reviewing as well as the agenda for scrutiny meetings and reports. These
responses confirm the need and appetite for a review to be carried out and
recommendations for improvements brought back to Council.

- a workshop has been held with officers involved in commissioning (12 September 2011) to
consider the potential impact of commissioning on overview and scrutiny.

- the Democratic Services Manager is working with the scrutiny team at Gloucestershire
County Council to run a workshop at the Democratic and Member Services network meeting
on 30 September to examples for best practice from other councils.

- workshops are being planned with officers and members in October. It is important that we
get members and officers buy in during the review hence the workshops are an important
part of the process. At the workshops it is intended to review the results of the analysis and
get ideas on the potential new arrangements.

The revised timescale which is now proposed for the review is:

10 October 2011 — update report to Council

12 December 2011 — report on revised scrutiny arrangements for approval by Council
January to May 2012 — detailed arrangements and preparation for implementation
May/June 2012 — Member induction and implementation of new arrangements.

Reasons for recommendations
To ensure

. that the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules are up to date and reflect the current structure,
policies and procedures of the Council as well as assisting the implementation of the
shared arrangements under the GO partnership.

o that the Responsibility for Functions (Scheme of Delegation) is clear, robust and
transparent.

To update the Council on the progress of the review of the Council's Overview and Scrutiny
arrangements.

Alternative options considered

The retention of a similar approach to officer delegations as that in the current Part 3 was
considered. The Constitution Working Group decided to pursue the revised approach in view of
the benefits set out in section 3 above but also subject to the safeguards in that section.

Consultation and feedback

Consultation on the proposed Financial Rules has taken place with the GO partnership (Finance
Officers) with the Senior Leadership Team, the Constitution Working Group and the Audit
Committee.



Page 35

7.2 Consultation on the proposed revised Part 3 has taken place with Officers, the Constitution
Working Group and informally with Cabinet Members.

7.3  Consultation on the review of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements has taken place
as set out in section 4 of this report.

7.4 If Members wish to make any further observations or comments on the Constitution, particularly
any suggestions for amendment, then these can be made to any member of the Constitution
Working Group (Councillors Les Godwin, Colin Hay and Duncan Smith) or to the Borough
Solicitor/Monitoring Officer. The Working Group will continue to meet and would welcome any
input from Members to inform the review.

Report authors Contact officers:
Sara Freckleton, sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272011

Rosalind Reeves, rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.qgov.uk, 01242 774937

Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264125

Appendices 1. Financial Rules

2. Part 3 Responsibilities for Functions (inc draft appendices — Lead
Member portfolios, Allocation of local choice functions)

3. Corporate Policy Table

4. Risk Assessment

Background information | Council Constitution




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 36



Page 37

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
Financial Rules

These financial rules relate to each of the Local Authorities forming the GO
Shared Services, being Cotswold District Council, Cheltenham Borough
Council, Forest of Dean District Council and West Oxfordshire District
Council. This Shared Service provides shared financial, payroll, procurement
and human resources services across the partnering authorities. Each
council’'s governance structure is laid down in their constitutions.

CONTENTS
1.0 Introduction Page 7
2.0 Status of Financial Rules Page 7-8
FINANCIAL RULES:
A: Financial Management
A1 Introduction Page 9
A2 Emergencies Page 9
A3 Full Council Page 9-10
A4 Cabinet Page 10-11
A5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s) Page 11
A6 Audit Committee Page 11
A7 Standards Committee Page 11
A8 Other Committees Page 12
A9 Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) Page 12
XX Council — Financial Rules Page 1 of 67

Updated 29-09-2011



Page 38

A10 Monitoring Officer

A11 Section 151 Officer

A12 Directors and Heads of Service
A13 Employees

A14 Internal Audit

A15 External Audit

Page12-13
Page 13-15
Page 15
Page 15
Page 16

Page 16

B: Financial Planning, Budget Preparation and Budget Monitoring

B1 Introduction

B2 Full Council

B3 Cabinet

B4 Section 151 Officer

B5 Directors and Heads of Service

B6 Budget Holders and Other Employees

B7 Preparation of Capital Programme
B8 Resource Allocation

B9 Increases in Estimate

B10 Carry Forward of Budget

B11 Maintenance of Reserves

C: Scheme of Virement

C1 Introduction

C2 Full Council

C3 Budget variations within a Service

C4 Virement Rules / Limits

XX Council — Financial Rules
Updated 29-09-2011

Page 17
Page 17-18
Page 18
Page 18-19
Page 19-20
Page 20
Page 20-21
Page 21-22
Page 22
Page 22

Page 22-23

Page 24
Page 24
Page 24

Page 24-26

Page 2 of 67



Page 39

D: Risk Management and Insurance

D1 Introduction Page 27
D2 Cabinet Page 27
D3 Audit Committee Page 27
D4 Section 151 Officer Page 28
D5 Directors and Heads of Service Page 28-29
D6 Budget Holders and Other Employees Page 29

E: Internal Controls and Audit

E1 Introduction Page 30
E2 Internal Audit Page 30
E3 External Audit and Inspection Page 31

E4 Audit Committee Page 31-32
E5 Section 151 Officer Page 32
E6 Directors and Heads of Service Page 33
E7 Preventing Fraud and Corruption Page 33-34
E8 Ex-Gratia / Maladministration Payments Page 34

F: Assets

F1 Introduction Page 35
F2 Full Council Page 35

F3 Cabinet Page 35

F4 Chief Executive Page 35

F5 Director or Head of Property Services Page 36

F6 Monitoring Officer Page 36-38
F7 Section 151 Officer Page 38

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 3 of 67

Updated 29-09-2011



Page 40

F8 Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Holders
F9 Information and Communication Technology (ICT)
F10 Stocks and Stores

F11 Write—off of assets

F12 Petty Cash and Cash Floats

F13 Intellectual Property

G: Treasury Management
G1 Introduction

G2 Full Council

G3 Cabinet

G4 Section 151 Officer

G5 Banking Arrangements

G6 BACS Payments and Cheques

H: Financial Systems and Accounting Procedures
H1 Introduction

H2 Section 151 Officer

H3 Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Holders
H4 Employees

H5 Orders for Work, Goods and Services

H6 Payment of Accounts

H7 Payments to Employees and Members

H8 Travel and Subsistence Claims

H9 Value Added Taxation (VAT)

H10 Trading Accounts / Business Units

XX Council — Financial Rules
Updated 29-09-2011

Page 38-39
Page 39-40
Page 40
Page 41
Page 41-42

Page 42

Page 43
Page 43
Page 43
Page 43-44
Page 44-46

Page 46-47

Page 48
Page 48-49
Page 49-50
Page 50
Page 51-52
Page 52-53
Page 53-54
Page 54
Page 54-55

Page 55

Page 4 of 67



Page 41

H11 Journals

I: Income

[1 Introduction

I2 Cabinet

I3 Section 151 Officer

14 Directors and Heads of Service
I5 Budget Holders

16 Employees

I7 Accounts Receivable (Debtors)
I8 Debt Recovery

19 Write off of unrecoverable debt

J: Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
J1 Introduction
J2 Section 151 Officer

J3 Head of Revenues and Benefits

K: Council Tax Benefit and Housing Benefit
K1 Introduction
K2 Section 151 Officer

K3 Head of Revenues and Benefits

L: External Arrangements
L1 Partnerships:
L1.1 Introduction

L1.2 Cabinet

XX Council — Financial Rules
Updated 29-09-2011

Page 55

Page 56
Page 56
Page 56
Page 57
Page 57
Page 58
Page 58
Page 59

Page 59

Page 61
Page 61

Page 61

Page 62
Page 62

Page 62

Page 63

Page 63

-58

-59

-60

Page 5 of 67



Page 42

L1.3 Section 151 Officer

L1.4 Directors and Heads of Service
L2 External Funding:

L2.1 Introduction

L2.2 Section 151 Officer

L2.3 Directors and Heads of Service
L3 Work for Third Parties:

L3.1 Introduction

L3.2 Cabinet

L3.3 Section 151 Officer

L3.4 Directors and Heads of Service

Appendices

Appendix A1 - Schedule of Financial limits

XX Council — Financial Rules
Updated 29-09-2011

Page 63-64

Page 64

Page 64-65
Page 65

Page 65

Page 66
Page 66
Page 66

Page 66-67

Page 6 of 67



Page 43

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Financial Rules, together with Contract Procedure Rules and other forms
of guidance on procedure and conduct, provide the framework for managing
the council’s financial affairs, ensuring high integrity and accountability. They
apply to every Member and Officer of the council and anyone acting on behalf
of the council.

1.2 To conduct its business efficiently the council needs to ensure that there
are sound financial management policies in place and that these are strictly
adhered to. Part of this process is the establishment of Financial Rules that
set out the financial policies of the councils forming the GO Shared Services.

1.3 These Financial Rules are made pursuant of the Local Government Act
1972, Section 151 the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended)
and all other enabling powers.

1.4 The Financial Rules provide clarity over the accountabilities of individuals,
ensures that the council uses best practice when dealing with financial
matters and that council resources are used wisely.

1.5 For the purpose of these Financial Rules, the description “Council” shall
refer to the Full Council, made up of elected members, and the term “council”
shall relate to the local authority.

1.6 The financial limits approved as part of these Financial Rules are
summarised in Appendix A1 — Schedule of Financial Limits.

2.0 Status of Financial Rules

2.1 These Financial Rules relate to each of the Local Authorities forming the
GO Shared Services, being Cotswold District Council, Cheltenham Borough
Council, Forest of Dean District Council and West Oxfordshire District
Council. This service provides shared financial, payroll, procurement and
human resources services across the partnering authorities.

2.2 The Financial Rules shall be complied with by all Officers and Members
from each of the above Local Authorities. If job titles and roles differ between
the councils, the responsibilities defined in the Rules shall be adopted by the
most appropriate level of employee within each council’s structure, agreed
locally.

2.3 The Financial Rules shall apply to all Officers within the GO Shared
Services, irrespective of the client council. Full access to financial systems
and records shall be given to delegated Officers within the Shared Services in
order to facilitate transactional processing and other finance related work, as
required.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 7 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 44

2.4 The Financial Rules identify the financial responsibilities of Council,
Cabinet and Cabinet Members, other Members, the Head of Paid Service
(Chief Executive), the Monitoring Officer, the Section 151 Officer, other
Directors and Heads of Service and all other employees and agents of the
council.

2.5 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring that all staff
in their departments are aware of their responsibilities according to the
Financial Rules and other internal regulatory documents and comply with
them.

2.6 Cabinet Members and Senior Officers should maintain a written record
where these responsibilities have been delegated to members of staff,
including seconded staff.

2.7 Where responsibilities have been delegated or devolved to other
responsible Officers, references to the Members or Senior Officers in the rules
should be read as referring to them.

2.8 All Members and Employees have a general responsibility for taking
reasonable action to provide for the security of the assets under their control,
and for ensuring that the use of these resources is legal, is properly
authorised and provides value for money. Nothing included in or omitted from
these Financial Rules shall detract from this responsibility.

2.9 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for maintaining a continuous review
of the Financial Rules and advising the Cabinet of any non-material additions
or changes necessary.

2.10 The Rules will be formally reviewed every 5 years under the control of
the Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the Head of GO Shared Services,
GO Shared Services Heads of Finance and all those who deal with financial
matters within and on behalf of the council. The revised Rules will be reported
to each council for approval. In the meantime, if material changes make a
review of the Rules necessary, this should be the subject of a report by the
Section 151 Officer at each council.

2.11 Should an instance of non-compliance with these rules be discovered the
Section 151 Officer may, after consultation with the Chief Executive, make a
report to the Leader, Full Council and/or Cabinet, as appropriate. Non-
compliance with financial rules may also lead to disciplinary action being
taken.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 8 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 45

FINANCIAL RULES

A: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
A1 Introduction

A1.1 Financial management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to
the running of the council, including the policy framework and budget.

A1.2 Key processes and controls must be in place to ensure good financial
management and help the council conduct affairs in an efficient, effective and
economic manner.

A1.3 Monitoring systems must be in place to review compliance with financial
standards and to ensure compliance with legal and corporate requirements for
accountability.

A2 Emergencies

A2.1 Nothing in these Financial Rules or the Contract Rules shall prevent the
Cabinet, the Executive Board or a Director from incurring expenditure
essential to meet any immediate needs created by an emergency, or which is
referable to Section 138 of the Local Government Act 1972. This should be
done in accordance with the council’s constitution. Any such action shall be
reported as soon as possible to Cabinet, detailing the nature of the
emergency, the action taken, the financial implications and any other
consequences.

A3 Full Council
A3.1 The Full Council for each authority is responsible for:

¢ Adopting the council’s Constitution and Members’ Code of Conduct
and for approving the policy framework and budget within which the
Cabinet operates.

e Approving and monitoring compliance with the council’'s overall
framework of accountability and control. The framework is set out in the
council’s written Constitution.

e Approving procedures for recording and reporting decisions taken. This
includes decisions taken by the Council, the Cabinet, Committees and
Officers. These delegations and details of who has responsibility for
which decisions are set out in the council’s Constitution.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 9 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 46

A3.2 The Full Council (together with the Section 151 Officer) has a statutory
responsibility to ensure:

e The setting of the annual budget, including the allocation of financial
resources to different services and projects, proposed reserves, the
Council tax base and the setting of the Council tax.

e The preparation of the annual Statement of Accounts, in accordance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, before 30" June
following the year end to which they relate. The Section 151 Officer
shall sign and date the draft Statements before 30" June of each year
and the final audited Statements before 30" September each year)

e The publishing of the Statement of Accounts, and the external auditor's
Certificate, Opinion or Report by 30" September each year following
the year end to which they relate. The Council has given delegated
authority for the Statement to be approved by Audit Committee or other
approved Committee as per the council’s constitution, and signed by
the person presiding at the Committee meeting at which the approval is
given.

e The Statement of Accounts are made available for public inspection for
20 days prior to the date set by the external auditor, on or after which
the electors rights under Section 15 (2) and 16 (1) of the Audit
Commission Act 1988 can be exercised in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003. Also to ensure publish of the
Annual Audit and Inspection letter received from the external auditor.

e That public notice is given by advertisement of the conclusion of the
audit and that the Statement of Accounts and the external auditor’s
report are available for inspection.

A4 Cabinet

A4.1 The Cabinet is responsible for discharging executive functions in
accordance with the policy framework and budget and for monitoring
compliance with the agreed policy and related executive decisions.

A4.2 Executive decisions can be delegated to a Committee of the Cabinet, an
individual Cabinet Member, an Officer, a Joint Committee.

A4.3 The constitution contains a requirement to ensure that an individual
Cabinet Member consults with relevant officers before taking a decision within
his or her delegated authority. In doing so, the individual member must take
account of legal and financial liabilities and risk management issues that may
arise from the decision.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 10 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 47

A4.4 No member shall ask an employee to incur expenditure for which there
is no appropriate provision in the budget, unless in consultation as part of an
emergency as detailed in paragraph A2.1.

A4.5 A record shall be kept of the decision making process.

A5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s)

A5.1 The council has Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s), responsible for
the scrutiny of Cabinet decisions before or after they have been implemented
and for holding the Cabinet to account. These Committee(s) are also
responsible for making recommendations on future policy options and
reviewing the general policy and service delivery of the council.

A5.2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s) do not have authority over any
financial activity, other than to support the work of the Committee itself, but
can make reports to Cabinet and the council concerning any matter.

A6 Audit Committee

A6.1 The council has an Audit Committee, responsible for ensuring effective
internal control and independent assurance mechanisms across all areas of
the council.

A6.2 The Audit Committee is responsible for Internal Audit, External Audit
provision, risk management, the signed approval of the Annual Statement of
Accounts and the Corporate Governance Framework. This Committee does
not have authority over any financial activity, other than to support the work of
the Committee itself, but can make reports to other Committees and the
council concerning any matter.

A7 Standards Committee

A7.1 The council has a Standards Committee, established by Full Council,
responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct amongst
Members of the council and co-opted Members on its Committees and Sub-
Committees. In particular, it is responsible for advising the council on the
adoption of the Members’ Code of Conduct, and for monitoring the operation
of the code.

A7.2 The Standards Committee does not have authority over any financial
activity, other than to support the work of the Committee itself, but can make
reports to other Committees and the council concerning any matter.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 11 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 48

A8 Other Committees

A8.1 Planning and Licensing Committees-
Planning regulation and licensing are quasi-judicial functions and are
exercised though Planning and Licensing Committees within the council,
under powers delegated by Full Council. The terms and references of these
committees are set out in the Constitution.

A8.2 Joint Committees-

The council can set up Joint Committees with other organisations to oversee
the management of activities or facilities. The financial activity of Joint
Committees is governed by their terms of reference. The council’s procedural
and Financial Rules apply to Joint Committees unless there has been specific
agreement in line with the constitution to operate under other rules.

A9 Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive)

A9.1 The Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) is responsible for the
corporate and strategic management of the council and fulfils the statutory
role of Head of Paid Service. He or she must report to and provide information
for Full Council, Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Audit
Committee and any other Committees as required. He or she is responsible
for establishing a framework for management direction, style and standards
and for monitoring the performance of the organisation.

A9.2 The Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) is also responsible, together
with the Monitoring Officer and/or other delegated Officer, for the system of
record keeping in relation to all Full Council’s decisions.

A10. Monitoring Officer

A10.1 The Monitoring Officer is a statutory role within the council, and is the
lead Solicitor for the Authority. This role cannot be the Head of Paid Service
or the Section 151 Officer. The Monitoring Officer's role is defined in the
Constitution, including responsibility for:

e Advising, as appropriate, the Council on amendments to the
constitution or making such amendments as necessary to take account
of decisions of the Council, a Committee, the Cabinet or Leader and
changes of law or fact. He or she shall notify Members, the Head of
Paid Service and other Officers as he/she considers appropriate.

e Contributing to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of
conduct through the provision of support to the Standards Committee.

¢ Receiving and acting on reports made by ethical standards officers and
decisions of the First-Tier Tribunal.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 12 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 49

e Conducting investigations into matters referred by an Initial
Assessment Sub-Committee or an Appeals Sub-Committee of the
Standards Committee, or arranging for such investigations to be made,
and making reports or recommendations in respect of them to the
Standards Committee.

e After consultation with the Head of Paid Service and the Section 151
Officer, reporting to Council (or Cabinet in relation to an Executive
function), if he or she considers that any proposal, decision or omission
has given rise to maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of
stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report
has been considered.

A11 Section 151 Officer

A11.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that every local
authority in England and Wales should make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their
officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. This Officer
must be a member of a specific accounting body.

A11.2 The Section 151 Officer is therefore a statutory role of the council, with
statutory duties in relation to the financial administration and stewardship of
the council. He or she (or his/her designated deputy) shall have the right and
duty to advise the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Senior Management
Team on priorities in relation to resources and capital expenditure. This
statutory responsibility cannot be overridden.

A11.3 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:
e The proper administration of the council’s financial affairs.

o Determining the council’'s accounting records, including the form of
accounts and supporting accounting records and its accounting control
systems, in compliance with the Accounts and Audit regulations 2003.

¢ Providing financial information and advising on the corporate financial
position to the authority as required.

e Ensuring that the Annual Statements of Accounts are prepared in
accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom.

¢ Signing the Annual Statement of Accounts and certifying that it
presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the council at
the financial year end.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 13 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 50

e Preparing the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Annual
Revenue Budgets and Capital Programmes, within the Policy
Framework.

e Reporting to Full Council (under the requirement of Section 25 of the
Local Government Act 2003), when it is considering its budget, council
tax and housing rents (if applicable) for the new financial year. This
‘Section 25’ report to include the robustness of estimates and
adequacy of reserves.

e Advising the council on the level of reserves needed for meeting
estimated future expenditure, in accordance with the statutory
requirement for billing authorities to maintain financial reserves (under
Sections 32 and 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992).

e Treasury Management.

¢ Advising the Cabinet or Full Council about whether a decision is likely
to be considered contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the
approved budget.

¢ Providing regular reports to the Cabinet on the council’s finances and
financial performance.

¢ Monitoring compliance with the Financial Rules and Contract
Procedure Rules and reporting, where appropriate, breaches of these
rules to the Cabinet and/or full Council.

e Formally reviewing the Financial and Contract Procedure Rules every 5
years and reporting the revised Rules to the council for approval.

¢ Maintaining a continuous review of the Financial and Contract
Procedure Rules and making any non-material changes to the Rules,
as considered necessary, or as part of the formal 5 year review.

¢ Advising the Cabinet of any material additions or changes necessary to
the Financial Rules.

¢ Issuing advice and guidance to underpin these rules for Members,
employees and agents of the council to follow.

A11.4 Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires:

o The Section 151 Officer to nominate a properly qualified member of his
or her staff to deputise should he or she be unable to perform the
Section 151 Officer duties personally.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 14 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 51

The council to provide the Section 151 Officer with sufficient staff,
accommodation and other resources, including legal advice where
necessary, in order to carry out the Section 151 Officer duties.

A12 Directors and Heads of Service

A12.1 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for the delivery of their
own service(s) and for the day to day management of their service(s) budgets.
Spending and income generation should be in accordance with service
budgets and performance monitored against budget.

A12.2 Each Director or Head of Service is responsible for:

Complying with the Financial and Contract Rules and other internal
regulatory documents and ensuring that all employees within his or her
service(s) are aware of the existence and content of these Rules.

Advising Cabinet Members of the financial implications of all proposals
and ensuring that the financial implications have been agreed by the
Section 151 Officer.

Consulting with the Section 151 Officer or delegated Deputy and
seeking approval on any matter liable to affect the Council’s finances
materially (defined as in excess of £10,000), before any commitments
are incurred.

Ensuring that all systems and controls within his or her service(s) are
operated to prevent, minimise and detect any opportunity for fraud,
theft or other irregularity. He or she should ensure the accountability
and control of employees and the security, custody and control of all
other resources within the service(s).

A13 Employees

A13.1 All employees and/or agents acting on behalf of the council are
responsible for:

Complying with the Financial and Contract Procedure Rules and any
other internal regulatory documents of the council.

Keeping accurate and comprehensive records to support transactions
they undertake on the council’'s behalf. These records must be in
accordance with the accounting systems and policies established by
the Section 151 Officer.

Avoiding conflicts of interest and ensuring compliance with the
employees code of conduct.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 15 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 52

A14 Internal Audit

A14.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 (England) requires that the
council must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its
accounting records and its system of internal control, in accordance with the
proper practices in relation to internal control.

A14.2 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that arrangements
are put in place to ensure financial stewardship, probity and compliance with
laws and regulations within the council.

A14.3 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for providing a written report
to those charged with governance, which includes an opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the council’'s control environment under the
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006.

A14.4 The council’s Internal Audit function is responsible for reviewing and
reporting on corporate and departmental internal control arrangements, both
financial and operational, as appropriate. This function can be provided by a
suitably qualified external body (for example a shared Internal Audit Service).

A14.5 Internal Audit shall provide positive assurance when financial controls
are effective and recommendations for improvement where they are not. They
shall advise all levels of management on the operation of financial and
operational controls to help prevent things going wrong.

A14.6 Internal Audit are responsible for the investigation and reporting of all
suspected irregularities, at the request of the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring
Officer, the Chief Executive or a Director.

A15 External Audit

A15.1 The council’'s External Auditor is responsible for considering whether
the council has proper arrangements in place for:

e Securing financial resilience; reviewing the council’s financial
governance, financial planning and financial control processes.

e Challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
looking at how the council is prioritising resources and improving
efficiency and productivity.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 16 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 53

B: FINANCIAL PLANNING, BUDGET PREPARATION AND
BUDGET MONITORING

B1 Introduction

B1.1 Full Council is responsible for agreeing the council’s policy framework
and budget, which will be proposed by the Cabinet. In terms of financial
planning, the key elements are the corporate plan, the annual revenue
budget, the capital programme and the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

B1.2 The policy framework comprises a number of statutory plans and
strategies that are listed in the council’s Constitution.

B1.3 The budget is the financial expression of the council’s plans and policies.
It reflects Council, Cabinet and Committee priorities and gives authority to
Budget Holders to incur expenditure or collect income. It should take due
account of the risks and opportunities facing the council.

B1.4 The revenue budget must be constructed to ensure that resource
allocation properly reflects the service plans and priorities of the council.
Budgets are needed so that the council can plan, authorise, monitor and
control the way money is allocated and spent. It is illegal for the council to
budget for a deficit.

B1.5 Medium term financial planning covering a minimum period of 4 years,
which incorporates both revenue and capital plans, involves a planning cycle
in which Members, the Chief Executive, Directors and Budget Holders plan for
significant events and changes to spending and income. This allows for
measured and appropriate action to be taken each year when setting detailed
budgets and avoids the need for urgent or undesirable action.

B2 Full Council

B2.1 Full Council is responsible for the approval and adoption of its annual
Budget in February of each year prior to the start of the next financial year.

B2.2 This includes:

The allocation of financial resources to services and projects.

The control of capital expenditure.

The approval of the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

The control of the council’s borrowing requirement.

Setting the rate of Council Tax.

Setting the Council Tax base (unless delegated under the constitution)

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 17 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 54

B2.3 Full Council is responsible for approving procedures for agreeing
variations to approved budgets, plans and strategies forming the Policy
Framework, unless otherwise delegated under the constitution.

B2.4 Full Council is responsible for setting the level at which the Cabinet,
Cabinet Members and Officers may reallocate budget funds from one service
to another (see virement rules, Section C).

B3 Cabinet

B3.1 The general format of the annual budget will be approved by Cabinet, on
the advice of the Section 151 Officer, in the autumn of each year prior to the
start of the next financial year.

B3.2 The Cabinet is responsible for:

e Co-ordinating the development of the Budget and Policy Framework
and submitting budget proposals to Full Council in February prior to the
start of the next financial year.

e Taking in-year decisions on resources and priorities in order to deliver
the budget and Policy Framework within the financial limits set by the
council.

¢ Monitoring financial performance against the budget.

B4 Section 151 Officer

B4.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that a revenue
budget is prepared on an annual basis and a Medium Term Financial Strategy
is prepared on a minimum 4 year basis for consideration by the Cabinet,
before submission to Full Council in February prior to the start of the next
financial year.

B4.2 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:

¢ Determining the format and the timetable for the budget, to be agreed by
Cabinet in the autumn prior to the start of the next financial year.

¢ Supplying the financial information that needs to be included in policies,
strategies and performance plans in accordance with statutory
requirements and agreed timetables.

¢ Providing guidance to Officers on budget preparation.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 18 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 55

Advising Full Council on Cabinet budget proposals in accordance with his
or her responsibilities under Section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972. This advice to be presented to Full Council at its budget setting
meeting in February, as part of his or her S25 Report.

Ensuring that expenditure is committed only against an approved budget
and that all Officers responsible for committing expenditure comply with
the Financial Rules and other relevant guidance.

Establishing a framework of budgetary management and control, ensuring
that financial performance information is monitored sufficiently frequently
to allow corrective action to be taken if targets are not likely to be met.

The preparation of Budget Monitoring reports, to be reported to Cabinet,
reflecting significant variations to income and expenditure budgets (in
excess of £10,000) and the overall financial position, on a minimum
quarterly basis.

Ensuring that appropriate and timely information is provided on receipts
and payments, in order to allow budgets to be monitored effectively.

Ensuring that systems are in place to measure activity and collect accurate
financial information for use in local financial performance indicators.

Complying with all legal requirements and CIPFA’s Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting and CIPFA’s Service Reporting Code of
Practice for Local Authorities.

B5 Directors and Heads of Service

B5.1 Directors and Heads of Service should manage their budgets
responsibly and prudently and not create future commitments without
approved budget.

B5.2 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for:

Contributing to the development of the Policy Framework, budgets and
performance plans within their areas of responsibility. Budget estimates
should be prepared in line with guidance issued by the Section 151 Officer
and have regard to known spending patterns, legal requirements and
agreed corporate and/or service plans.

Contributing to the development of corporate and service targets,
objectives and performance information in their areas of responsibility.

Developing their services’ performance plans in line with statutory
requirements and corporate guidance.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 19 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 56

¢ Achieving the targets, objectives and levels of performance as set out in
the corporate plans (including achievement of budgetary targets within
their areas of responsibility).

e Complying with the accounting guidance provided by the Section 151
Officer and ensuring that income and expenditure is properly recorded and
accounted for in their service areas. Income and expenditure should not
be miscoded as a means of applying unauthorised virement.

e Monitoring income and expenditure within their approved budgets and
reporting to the Section 151 Officer and Cabinet Member significant
variations to budget (in excess of £10,000). He or she should also take
the necessary action required to improve the financial position.

B5.3 Directors and Heads of Service are able to delegate budget
responsibilities to Service Managers within their given area of responsibility.
Any such scheme of delegation should be documented and the Budget Holder
made aware of their levels of authority and the contents of the Financial
Rules. Adequate training and support should be provided to Budget Holders
to enable them to carry out their financial responsibilities and internal controls
should be established to ensure that budgets are properly monitored.

B6 Budget Holders and Other Employees

B6.1 Each delegated budget holder and employee shall be responsible for the
sound financial management and budgetary control of their delegated area.
This will include the monitoring and control of all financial and finance related
systems and the monitoring and control of access to computerised financial
records. Significant variations to budgets should be reported to their Director
or Head of Service.

B7 Preparation of Capital Programme

B7.1 Capital expenditure involves acquiring or enhancing fixed assets with a
long-term value to the authority, such as land, buildings, and major items of
plant and equipment or vehicles. Capital assets shape the way services are
delivered for the long-term and create financial commitments for the future in
the form of financing costs and revenue running costs. Capital expenditure
may include loans and grants which are used by others for capital purposes.

B7.2 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for defining whether expenditure
is classed as capital or revenue expenditure, having regard to Government
regulations and accounting requirements.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 20 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 57

B7.3 The council can set a “de minimis” level for treating capital expenditure
as revenue, to avoid unnecessary work in identifying potential capital spend.
The current “de minimis” level is set at £10,000. Expenditure falling within the
definition of capital expenditure will be charged to revenue if is for £10,000 or
less.

B7.4 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that a capital
programme is prepared on an annual basis for consideration by Cabinet,
before submission to Full Council for approval as part of the annual Budget
setting process.

B7.5 Each Director or Head of Service will prepare a business case for each
new item to be included in the capital programme, including details of the
scheme, the capital budget requirement, a project plan, associated revenue
expenditure and any other details requested by the Section 151 Officer.

B7.6 No capital scheme shall commence which will increase the revenue
expenditure of the council until such revenue provision has been approved.

B7.7 The Government places strict controls on the financing capacity of the
authority.This means that capital expenditure should form part of an
investment strategy and should be carefully prioritised in order to maximise
the benefit of scarce resources.

B7.8 New capital schemes in year should be approved as follows:

¢ Amounts not exceeding £100,000 — by Cabinet

¢ Amounts in excess of £100,000 — by Full Council.
This approval is subject to the availability of the approved budget.
B7.9 As part of the capital programme, an asset management plan shall be
maintained by a designated Director or Head of Service and a capital strategy
shall be maintained by the Section 151 Officer. The plan and strategy shall be
reported to Cabinet every three years.
B7.10 Once a capital project has been approved, a Director, or delegated
employee, will be accountable for the delivery of the scheme and must comply
with the council’'s Contract Procedure Rules, Financial Rules and any other
internal regulatory documents.

B8 Resource Allocation

B8.1 Where there is a mismatch between available resources and required
resources, service needs should be prioritised and resources fairly allocated.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 21 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 58

B8.2 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:

¢ Developing and maintaining a resource allocation process that ensures
due consideration of the council’s policy framework.

e Advising on methods available for accessing additional resources and
assessing their financial implications.

e Assisting in the allocation of resources to budget holders.

B9 Increases in Estimates

B9.1 Other than by virement or supplementary estimate, expenditure
estimates may not be increased as a result of increased income, unless the
service is designated as a trading service by the Section 151 Officer, in
consultation with the relevant Director and Cabinet Member. In these
circumstances expenditure estimates approved by the Council may be
increased as a result of increased income, in line with the virement rules set
out in the Financial Rules.

B10 Carry Forward of Budget

B10.1 Carry forward of planned underspend of revenue budgets into the
following financial year will only be allowed with the agreement of the Section
151 Officer, in order to meet the needs of approved service delivery. All
applications shall be submitted to the Section 151 Officer in accordance with
the agreed year end timetable.

B10.2 Section 151 Officer approval is subject to evidence that the underspend
is as a result of timing, has been committed for the same purpose as
originally intended, and will be spent in the new financial year. The Section
151 Officer will report agreed carry forwards to the Cabinet each year.

B10.3 All other carry forward requests, including budget under spends that
have been carried forward in previous financial years, will be subject to Full
Council approval at the Financial Outturn meeting held after the year end
(unless otherwise delegated under the constitution).

B11 Maintenance of Reserves

B11.1 Full Council must set the level of general reserves it wishes to maintain
before it can decide the level of the Council Tax. Reserves are maintained as
a matter of prudence. They enable the council to provide for unexpected
events and thereby protect it from overspending should such events occur.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 22 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 59

B11.2 The Section 151 Officer has a statutory obligation under the Local
Government Act 2003 to report on the adequacy of the council’s reserves to
Cabinet and Full Council, at the time the Council considers its budget for the
coming year.

B11.3 Reserves can be maintained for three main purposes:

e A working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows
and avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing (This forms part of
general reserves).

e A contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or
emergencies (This also forms part of general reserves).

¢ A means of building up funds to meet known or predicted requirements
(Earmarked reserves).

B11.4 The Section 151 Officer has delegated authority to approve in year
transfers to and from earmarked reserves to support the activities of the
council.

B11.5 The transfer to and from general reserves shall be the responsibility of
Full Council. As part of the annual budget approval process, Full Council may
delegate the amount by which such funds may be utilised and approved by
Cabinet in meeting unforeseen expenditure.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 23 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 60

C: SCHEME OF VIREMENT

C1 Introduction

C1.1 The scheme of virement is intended to enable the Cabinet, Directors and
Heads of Service and Budget Holders to manage budgets with a degree of
flexibility within the overall Policy Framework determined by the council, and
therefore to optimise the use of available resources.

C1.2 Virement is the switching of resources between approved budgets at a
service or cost centre level. This transfer of budgetary provision may be used
if additional expenditure is required on an existing budget, providing that an
equal expenditure saving or additional income can be made on another
budget, subject to the Virement Rules.

C2 Full Council

C2.1 Full Council is responsible for agreeing procedures for virement of
expenditure between budget headings. The virement scheme is administered
by the Section 151 Officer within the guidelines set by Full Council. Any
variation from this scheme requires the approval of Full Council.

C2.2 Virement in excess of £100,000 are deemed to change the Budget and
Policy Framework and require the approval of Full Council.

C3 Budget Variations within a Service

C3.1 Action to correct actual or projected variations in budgeted income or
expenditure within an approved cost centre / service is delegated to the
relevant Service Manager or Budget Holder, in consultation with GO Shared
Services. These variations should not have a financial impact on the
approved net budget on the cost centre / service.

C4 Virement Rules / Limits
C4.1 The prior approval of the relevant Cabinet Member and the Section 151
Officer is required for any virement, of whatever amount, where it is proposed

to vire as a result of a fortuitous increase in income to a cost centre not
designated as Trading. The rules below cover the delegated virement limits.

C4.2 The following rules apply to virement between services:

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 24 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 61

C4.2.1 Revenue budgets:

Amounts up to £10,000 —
Approval by relevant Director(s) or Head of Service(s). The Section
151 Officer should be informed of this virement.

Amounts over £10,000 but not exceeding £25,000 —

Approval by relevant Director(s) or Head of Service(s) and the Section
151 Officer. Relevant Cabinet Member(s) to be informed of this
virement.

Amounts over £25,000 but not exceeding £50,000 —
Approval by Cabinet Member(s) in consultation with Section 151
Officer.

Amounts over £50,000 but not in excess of £100,000 —
Approval of Cabinet.

Amounts in excess of £100,000 —
Approval of Full Council, or as delegated in the constitution.

C4.2.2 Capital Schemes:

Amounts up to £50,000 —

Approval of relevant Director(s) or Head of Service(s), with the
agreement of the Section 151 Officer. Cabinet Member(s) to be
informed.

Amounts over £50,000 but not exceeding £100,000 —
Approval by Cabinet

Amounts in excess of £100,000 —
Approval of Full Council, or as delegated in the constitution.

C4.3 Virement that is likely to have a financial impact on the level of service
activity falling under the responsibility of another Director should only be
implemented with the approval of each Director or Cabinet Member
concerned.

C4.4 Virement must not be aggregated or disaggregated in order to avoid the
Virement Rules.

C4.5 No virement relating to a specific financial year will be made after 31st
March in that year.

XX Council — Financial Rules

Page 25 of 67

Updated 29-09-2011



Page 62

C4.6 Where an approved budget is a lump sum budget or contingency intended for
allocation during the year, its allocation will not be treated as a virement, provided
that:

e the amount is used in accordance with the purposes for which it has been
established.

e the Cabinet or Full Council has approved the basis and the terms,
including financial limits, on which it will be allocated. Individual
allocations in excess of the financial limits should be reported to the
Cabinet or Full Council as required.

C4.7 The virement must not contravene any statutory requirement.

C4.8 All virement must be properly documented and approved. A record of all
virement should be maintained by the Section 151 Officer and reported to the
appropriate Cabinet Member.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 26 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 63

D: RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE

D1 Introduction
D1.1 Risk is the chance of something going wrong which may result in loss,
damage, injury, failure to achieve objectives or missed opportunity caused by
an unwanted, uncertain or lack of action or event. It includes corporate and
strategic risks. All organisations, whether they are in the private or public
sectors, face risks to credibility, people, property and continued operations.
D1.2 Risk management is the planned and systematic approach to the
identification, evaluation and control of risk. Its objectives are to secure the
organisation’s opportunities and assets and to ensure its continued financial
and organisational well-being. Risk management is, therefore, an integral
part of good business practice.
D1.3 It is essential that robust systems are developed and maintained for
identifying and evaluating all significant opportunities and risks to the council
as an integral part of management. This should include the active participation
of all those associated with the planning and delivery of services.
D1.4 The Council’'s Risk Management Policy and Strategy sets out criteria for
risk assessment and guidance on how it should be managed.
D2 Cabinet
D2.1 The Cabinet is responsible for:

¢ Implementing the council’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy.

e Promoting a culture of risk management awareness throughout the
council

e Ensuring that adequate insurance cover exists where appropriate.

D3 Audit Committee
D3.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for:
e Approving the council’s annual risk management strategy

¢ Ensuring that risk management procedures are satisfactorily carried
out.

e Ongoing monitoring and review of the risk management strategy.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 27 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 64

D4 Section 151 Officer

D4.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:
e Preparing the Risk Management Policy & Strategy for Audit committee.
¢ Promoting the culture of Risk Management throughout the council.

e Advising the Cabinet on appropriate insurance cover for known
insurance risks and assets owned and/or used in connection with the
council’s activities.

e The negotiation, and where appropriate, settlement, of insurance
claims, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer and other Employees
as appropriate.

e Ensuring that all appropriate Employees are included in a suitable
fidelity guarantee insurance.

e Reviewing annually, or at any such other period considered necessary,
all insurances, in consultation with Directors and other Employees as
appropriate.

D5 Directors and Heads of Service:

D5.1 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for risk management
and the regular review of risk and opportunity within their services, having
regard to advice from the Section 151 Officer and other specialist Officers
(e.g. Health & Safety Advisor).

D5.2 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for:
¢ Actively managing opportunities and risk in their area of responsibility.

e Providing prompt notification to the Section 151 Officer for all new
risks, properties, services or vehicles which require to be insured and
of any alterations affecting existing insurances. This should include any
areas of responsibilty undertaken in respect of an external
organisation, whether or not linked to the council’s activities.

¢ Providing notification to the Section 151 Officer in writing of any loss,
liability or damage or any event likely to lead to a claim. Further
notification should be given to the Section 151 Officer immediately on
receipt of any insurance claim.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 28 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 65

e Consulting with the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer
concerning the terms of any indemnity which the council is requested
to give.

e Ensuring that all employees:-

- are aware of their responsibilities for risk management and insurance.

- receive adequate support and training to carry out their responsibilities.

- comply with the council’s standards of financial management.

- are personally protected from risk.

D6 Budget Holders and Other Employees

D6.1 Budget Holders and other Employees are responsible for:

Identifying opportunities and risks in their service areas.

Assessing the likelihood of their occurrence and evaluating the possible
impact. This involves arranging them in order of priority, recording the risks
and judging the potential financial cost, lost time, inconvenience or
upheaval, disruption to service, bad publicity or loss of service quality.

Taking steps to minimise potential losses. Effective action will represent a
judgement between the likely risk and the cost or effort required to
safeguard against it.

Notifying the Section 151 Officer promptly of all new risks, properties or
vehicles which require insurance and of any alterations affecting existing
insurance.

Notifying the Section 151 Officer immediately of any loss, liability or
damage which may lead to a claim against the council, together with any
information or explanation required by the Section 151 Officer or the
council’s insurers.

Recording any incident which may result in a loss.

Consulting the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer on the terms
of any indemnities which the council is required to give.

Ensuring that the council’'s employees, or anyone covered by the council’s
insurance, do not admit liability or make any offer to pay compensation
which may prejudice the assessment of liability in respect of an insurance
claim.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 29 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 66

E: INTERNAL CONTROLS AND AUDIT

E1 Introduction

E1.1 Internal control refers to the systems of control devised by management
to help ensure the council’'s objectives are achieved in a manner which
promotes economical, efficient and effective use of resources and that the
council’s assets and interests are safeguarded.

E1.2 The council faces a wide range of financial, administrative and
commercial risks, both from internal and external factors. Internal controls are
necessary to help manage these risks and to monitor progress towards its
strategic objectives.

E2 Internal Audit

E2.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require that the council must
undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records
and of its system of internal control, in accordance with proper practices in
relation to internal control.

E2.2 The internal audit function should operate in accordance with the
CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United
Kingdom, the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (UK and Ireland)
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and with any
other statutory obligations and regulations.

E2.3 Internal Audit shall provide an independent, objective, assurance and
consulting activity for the review of the council’'s system of internal control.

E2.4 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for providing a written report to
those charged with governance, which includes an opinion on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the council’s control environment under the CIPFA Code
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006.

E2.5 The Head of Internal Audit has the right to meet the Chair of the Audit
Committee in private.

E2.6 Internal Audit shall have direct access to the Head of Paid Service, the
Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer, all levels of Management and
Elected Members.

E2.7 Internal Audit shall have full and complete access to all information,
records, facilities and personnel relevant to the performance of an audit
review.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 30 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 67

E3 External Audit and Inspection

E3.1 The Audit Commission is responsible for appointing external auditors to
each local authority in England and Wales. The basic duties of the external
auditors are defined in the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local
Government Act 1999.

E3.2 The external auditor's main objectives are to review and report on the
financial aspects of the council’'s corporate governance arrangements, the
financial statements and the arrangements to manage its performance.

E3.3 External Audit is responsible for considering whether the council has
proper arrangements in place for:

e Securing financial resilience; reviewing the council's financial
governance, financial planning and financial control processes.

e Challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
looking at how the council is prioritising resources and improving
efficiency and productivity.

E3.4 The council may, from time to time, be subject to audit, inspection or
investigation by other external bodies, such as HMRC, all of whom have
statutory rights of access.

E4 Audit Committee

E4.1 The Audit Committee provides a broad base audit role across all areas
of the council, while promoting and ensuring effective governance, internal
control and assurance mechanisms.

Audit Committee is responsible for:

¢ Reviewing internal and external reports and assessments in respect of
corporate governance.

e Considering the Head of Internal Audit's annual report and opinion and
annual internal audit plan and the level of assurance it gives over the
council’s corporate governance arrangements.

¢ Monitoring the operational Internal Audit plan and the audit planning
process; ensuring that internal audit work is planned with due regard to
risk, materiality and supports the council’s corporate aims and
priorities.

e Consulting with the Audit Commission on the appointment of the
council’s external auditor.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 31 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 68

Consideration and review of the external audit annual Report to those
charged with governance (ISA 260) and all associated reports and
other documents.

Reviewing all matters relating to external audit, including audit and
inspection planning, action points and reports

Monitoring and review of actions required arising out of external and
internal audit recommendations.

Ensuring effective liaison between external and internal audit and any
other inspection agency.

Reviewing and signing approval of the audited annual statement of
accounts and annual governance statement, including the statement of
the system of internal financial control by 30" September of each year
following the financial year end.

E5 Section 151 Officer

E.5.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:

Advising and assisting the council to put in place a control environment
which provides reasonable assurance of effective and efficient
operations, financial stewardship, probity and compliance with laws
and regulations.

Ensuring that an adequate and effective Internal Audit Service is
maintained, with the authority to access all assets, records, documents,
correspondence and control systems of the council, and such records
belonging to third parties, such as contractors, when required.

Ensuring that effective procedures are in place to investigate promptly
any suspected fraud or irregularity.

Ensuring that all External Auditors and Inspectors are given access at
all reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and assets
which they consider necessary for the purposes of their work.

Working with the appointed External Auditors and Inspectors and
advising the Audit Committee, Cabinet, Directors and Heads of Service
on their responsibilities in relation to external audit and inspection.

Ensuring there is effective communication between External and
Internal Audit.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 32 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 69

E.6 Directors and Heads of Service

E6.1 Each Director and Head of Service is responsible for:

Establishing sound arrangements for planning, appraising, authorising
and controlling their operations, in accordance with the Code of
Corporate Governance and the Annual Governance Statement.

Achieving continuous improvement, economy, efficiency and
effectiveness within services.

Implementing processes to check that established controls are being
complied with and to evaluate their effectiveness.

Reviewing existing controls and establishing new controls where
necessary, in order to reflect changes within the council. They shall
consult with Internal Audit on any proposed new systems, before
implementation.

Ensuring that Internal Auditors are given access to all records and
assets of the authority, in accordance with their authority as set out
above.

Ensuring that all External Auditors and Inspectors are given access at
all reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and assets
which they consider necessary for the purposes of their work.

Considering and responding promptly to recommendations in audit
reports. Implementing agreed actions arising from audit
recommendations in a timely and efficient  fashion.

Notifying the Section 151 Officer and the Head of Internal Audit
immediately of any suspected fraud, theft, irregularity, improper use or
misappropriation of the Council’s property or resources.

Ensuring that, as far as possible, the same officer is not responsible for
receiving or paying money and rendering accounts or issuing receipts
for the same.

E7 Preventing Fraud and Corruption

E7.1 The council has an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy / Strategy and
maintains a culture which will not tolerate fraud or corruption. The council’s
expectation of propriety and accountability is that Members and all Officers at
all levels will lead by example in ensuring adherence to legal requirements,
rules, procedures and practices.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 33 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 70

E7.2 The council also expects that individuals and organisations (e.g. service
providers, contractors and suppliers) that it comes in contact with, will act
towards the council with integrity and without thoughts or actions involving
fraud and corruption.

E7.3 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the development and
maintenance of an Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Whistle-blowing Policy.

E7.4 The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring that all legislation,
including the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1988, the Bribery Act 2010 and
the Fraud Act 2006, is adhered to.

E7.5 Each Director and Head of Service is responsible for ensuring that the
systems operated within his or her control seek to prevent or minimise the
opportunity for fraud, corruption or irregularity to arise. And that all staff are
aware of and comply with the council’s anti-fraud and whistle blowing policies.

E7.6 Whenever any matter arises which involves, or is thought to involve,
irregularities concerning cash, stores or other property of the council, or any
suspected irregularity in the exercise of the functions of the council, the
Director or Head of Service has a duty to immediately notify the Section 151
Officer and the Monitoring Officer, who shall take such steps as they consider
necessary by way of investigation and report.

E7.7 All Members and Employees must be aware of the maintenance of the
Register of Interests, which should be updated annually or more frequently if
other changes occur. Any offer of hospitality or gifts must be recorded,
whether accepted or refused.

E8 Ex-Gratia / Maladministration Payments

E8.1 A payment is sometimes made to compensate someone for loss or
damage incurred through no fault of the council. Most usually, this is to an
employee who has suffered loss or damage in the course of their duties but
can be to a member of the public for a minor loss within the influence of the
council (such as thefts from secured lockers at Leisure Centres) This is
funded through the council’s insurance arrangements.

E8.2 Compensation payments under the local complaints procedure up to
£5,000 shall only be made following an investigation by the Section 151
Officer and a Director or Head of Service and/or the Monitoring Officer, and
with the approval of at least two of those employees.

E8.3 Compensation payments in excess of £5,000 shall only be made
following a report from one of the three employees named in Financial Rule
E8.2, above and with the following approval:-

e Amounts £5,001 to £50,000 — by Cabinet Member
e Amounts £50,001 to £100,000 — by Cabinet
¢ Amounts in excess of £100,000 — by Council

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 34 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 71

F: ASSETS

F1 Introduction

F1.1 The council holds assets in the form of property, vehicles, equipment,
furniture, cash and other items worth many millions of pounds. It is important
that assets should be safeguarded and used efficiently in the delivery of
services. Assets should be used to achieve the approved policies and
objectives of the council with the minimum of waste, inefficiency or loss.

F1.2 This involves ensuring that appropriate assets are acquired, in line with
the Council's Procurement Strategy; that they are recorded and kept securely
and are disposed of effectively and economically when no longer required.

F2 Full Council

F2.1 Full Council is responsible for deciding the extent of the Property
Portfolio and for agreeing acquisitions and disposals. Approval is delegated
to Cabinet for acquisitions not exceeding £500,000 (for Social Housing) and
not exceeding £250,000 (for other land or property), unless otherwise
delegated in the constitution.

F2.2 Assets no longer required should be disposed off in accordance with the
law and the rules and policies of the council, so as to maximise benefits.

F3 Cabinet

F3.1 The Cabinet is responsible for approving terms for land / property
acquisitions, as above 2.1

F4 Chief Executive (or other delegated Officer)
F4.1 The Chief Executive (or other delegated officer) is responsible for:
e Determining applications for the assignment of leases and granting
sub-leases and under-leases and other applications for consent

required by leases, as delegated in the constitution.

e Signing contracts for the sale or purchase of land, for which the
disposal/acquisition has been agreed by the Cabinet or Full Council.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 35 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 72

F5 Director or Head of Property Services (or other delegated Officer)
F5.1 The Director or Head of Property Services is responsible for:

¢ Maintaining a terrier / asset register of all properties and assets owned
by the council, in a form approved by the Section 151 Officer. This shall
record the purpose for which the property is held, its location, its extent
and plan reference, purchase details, particulars of nature of interests
and rents payable and particulars of tenancies granted.

e Advising Members, the Section 151 Officer, Cabinet, Council and other
Officers on property-related issues.

e Processing all authorised acquisitions and disposals of land and
property.

¢ The maintenance of council-owned property including open-spaces.
Such maintenance work to be carried out within the terms of contracts
for responsive maintenance to Council properties.

¢ in the case of non-housing capital building contracts, consulting with
the relevant Cabinet Member and the Section 151 Officer, where the
contingency sum in the contract is likely to be exceeded. Financial
Rules in respect of budget approval and /or virement are to be
followed.

F5.2 The Director or Head of Property Services (or other delegated Officer)
has authority to sell surplus equipment on receipt of bids where appropriate,
with the following notifications:-

e Estimated residual value not in excess of £5,000 — in consultation with
the Section 151 Officer

e Estimated residual value £5,001 to £10,000 — in consultation with
Section 151 Officer. Cabinet Member to be informed.

e Estimated residual value in excess of £10,000 — in consultation with the
Section 151 Officer. Cabinet to be informed.

F6 Monitoring Officer (or other appropriate Officer as delegated in the
Constitution)

F6.1 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer), in consultation with
the relevant Cabinet Members and relevant Ward Member(s) and the relevant
Director, has authority, in the case of the resale of former Council houses, to
give the Council’s consent in all cases under Section 157(1) of the Housing
Act 1985 where consent is obligatory and in other cases approved by the
Cabinet; and authority to approve applications for the sale of former Council
houses in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 36 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 73

F6.2 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer), in consultation with
the relevant Ward Member(s) and a 48 hour period being allowed for any
response to such consultation, has authority to approve all transactions
relating to the council’s properties (except residual housing land) within their
existing classifications; including:

New leases granted by the Council
e Determination of applications for the Council's consent as landlord,
required under leasehold covenants, including assignments, sub-letting
and alterations/improvements
Rent reviews
Lease terminations (including surrenders);
Lease renewals
Institution of proceedings for breach of any leasehold covenant (including
recovery of rent arrears and forfeiture) and enforcement of any resultant
Court Order or Warrants for Possession (in consultation with the Head of
Property Services)

e Licences regulating the use or occupation of council property.

F6.2.1 Such approval (where appropriate) is to be on terms recommended by
the District Valuer, or an independent Valuer.

F6.3 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer), in consultation with
the relevant Cabinet Member and the relevant Ward Member(s), has authority
to agree the sale of Council-owned land on terms recommended by the
District Valuer, or an independent Valuer, where the following conditions are
fulfilled:

e The sale price of the land and easements does not exceed £50,000 and
easements up to £25,000 per annum

e The terms of the sale are not unusual or contentious.

e The Cabinet Member and the Ward Member(s) have no objection to the
sale.

F6.4 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer) has similar delegated
authority in relation to land purchases and easements, as set above.

F6.5 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer), in consultation with
the appropriate Director and Head of Property Services, has authority to
approve the granting of way leaves, licences and other rights of use in respect
of Council property.

F6.6 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer) has the authority to
instigate any investigations he/she considers necessary in particular cases
regarding the lease of Council-owned commercial premises.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 37 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 74

F6.7 The Monitoring Officer (or other delegated Officer) shall have custody of
all title deeds under secure arrangements agreed with the Chief Executive.

F7 Section 151 Officer

F7.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:

Ensuring that an asset register is maintained in accordance with good
practice for all fixed assets with a value in excess of £10,000. The purpose
of an asset register is to provide the Council with information about fixed
assets so that they are safeguarded, used efficiently and effectively and
are adequately maintained.

Ensuring that assets are valued in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

Maintaining a property database for all land, properties, plant and
machinery, and moveable assets currently owned and used by the
Council.

Managing the risk implications of the Property Portfolio, particularly in
terms of insurance cover.

Co-ordinating the security of the council’s administrative and operational
offices.

F8 Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Holders

F8.1 Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Holders are responsible for:

Ensuring that records and assets are properly maintained.

Drawing up contingency plans for the security of assets and continuity of
service in the event of disaster or system failure.

Ensuring that lessees and other prospective occupiers of council land or
property are not allowed to take possession or enter the land until a lease
or agreement has been established. The lease or agreement should be in
a form approved by the Head of Property Services, in consultation with the
Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer, where appropriate.

Ensuring the proper security and safe custody of all buildings, vehicles,
equipment, furniture, stock, stores, money and other property belonging to
the council.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 38 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 75

e Where land or buildings are surplus to requirements, preparing a report
containing a recommendation for the disposal of the land, in consultation
with the Head of Property Services and the Section 151 Officer.

¢ Maintaining an inventory of moveable assets (all furniture, fittings and
equipment, plant and machinery) above the value of £500, held within his
or her areas of responsibility. The Director or Head of Information
Community Technology shall maintain a separate register of all ICT
equipment, on behalf of the council, as per financial rule F9.2.

e Passing title deeds of council property to the Monitoring Officer who is
responsible for the custody of all title deeds on behalf of the council.

e Ensuring that council assets are not taken, borrowed or used by a Member
or Employee for their personal use without proper authority.

e Ensuring, in accordance with arrangements agreed by the Section 151
Officer that all assets are correctly identified and insured.

¢ Notifying the Section 151 Officer and the Director or Head of Property
Services of any proposals to acquire or dispose of council property.

e Arranging for the valuation of assets for accounting purposes to meet
requirements specified by the Section 151 Officer.

e Ensuring that all Employees under their management are aware that they
have a personal responsibility with regard to safeguarding the council’s
assets and information, including the requirements of the Data Protection
Acts and software copyright legislation. This should include confidentiality
of information, whether held in manual or computerised records.

F9 Information and Communication Technology (ICT)

F9.1 All ICT equipment, irrespective of its individual value, shall be procured
by, or with the prior approval of the Director or Head of Service responsible for
ICT Services (or his or her delegated Officer), particularly where the
equipment has a strategic value or requires network access.

F9.2 This Director or delegated Officer shall maintain a register of all ICT
equipment above the value of £250 owned by the council, including its
location and serial number.

F9.3 Certain equipment to be determined by the Director or Head of Service
responsible for Information Communication Technology, such as cameras,
blackberries, etc shall be procured by him or her and recorded in the ICT
inventory.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 39 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 76

F9.4 The Council’s internal IT policy and guidance should be followed, and in
particular, no unofficial or unlicensed software shall be used on the council’s
computer equipment, under any circumstances.

F9.5 Computer games supplied as part of licensed software shall not be
played in council time.

F10 Stocks and Stores

F10.1 Disposable items such as stationery, goods for sale or materials may
be held in store. They should be properly controlled and accounted for to
ensure they are used only for council purposes.

F10.2 Stocks shall not be in excess of normal requirements except in special
circumstances, with the approval of the Director or Head of Service, who shall
keep a written record and justification of such circumstances.

F10.3 Each Director or Head of Service shall be responsible for the care and
custody of the stocks and stores within his or her service(s).

F10.4 Directors or Heads of Service shall arrange for periodical test
examinations of stocks and ensure that all stocks are checked at least once a
year, where appropriate, as determined by the Section 151 Officer. This is to
be under the supervision of persons without direct responsibility for the
custody of the stocks or stores being checked.

F10.5 The Section 151 Officer shall be entitled to receive from each Director
or Head of Service such information as he or she requires in relation to stocks
or stores, for the accounting, costing and financial records at the financial year
end.

F10.6 Budget holders are responsible for investigating discrepancies and
pursuing them to a satisfactory conclusion. Where this is not possible or the
amount is over £250, this should be reported to the Section 151 Officer and
Head of Internal Audit.

F10.7 Adjustments in respect of stock deficiencies and surpluses shall be
subject to the approval of the Section 151 Officer, or in the case of major
items, the Cabinet.

F10.8 Private individuals or companies shall not be permitted to purchase
items previously acquired by the council unless they:

¢ Are sold through a retail outlet incidental to the provision of a specific
service (e.g. Leisure centre or Museum shop), or

e Are obsolete or surplus to requirements and are sold as a means of
disposal, in accordance with the council’s disposal policies.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 40 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 77

F10.9 Individual Members and Employees of the council must not use the
auspices of the council to purchase works, goods or services for their
personal use.

F11 Write-offs

F11.1 Limit of the council to write off and/or dispose of obsolete stock, per
individual item:

e Estimated residual value up to £250 - Directors or Heads of Service.
e Estimated residual value over £250 - Section 151 Officer.

F11.2 At any one time up to £5,000 may be written out of stock records with
the Section 151 Officer approval. If the accumulated amount to be written out
exceeds £10,000 during the financial year, a report must be made to Cabinet.
Individual amounts in excess of £5,000 shall be approved by Cabinet.

F12 Petty Cash and Cash Floats

F12.1 Maximum limits for cash holdings shall be agreed with the Section 151
Officer and shall not be exceeded without his or her express permission.

F12.2 The Section 151 Officer may provide petty cash advance accounts or
cash floats for such Employees as may need them for the purpose of
defraying petty cash or other expenses. Petty cash accounts shall be
maintained in the imprest system and shall be controlled by the Employee
designated by the Director concerned.

F12.3 Payments from any such account shall be limited to minor individual
items of expenditure up to a maximum of £50. The Section 151 Officer has
discretion to allow larger payments in exceptional circumstances.

F12.4 All payments shall normally be supported by a receipted voucher and
proper VAT receipts where appropriate. However, the Section 151 Officer has
discretion to allow payments to be obtained without obtaining receipts in
exceptional circumstances.

F12.5 Payments in reimbursement of travelling or subsistence expenses shall
not be paid out of petty cash accounts.

F12.6 An employee responsible for a petty cash or cash float shall, if so
requested, give the Section 151 Officer a certificate as to the state of such a
float.

F12.7 Change floats are not to be used for any other purpose than for
providing change, with the exception of cash advances in special
circumstances, subject to the approval of the Section 151 Officer. Such
approval should be recorded.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 41 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 78

F12.8 When an Employee responsible for such an account leaves the
employment of the council, or ceases to be entitled to hold an advance, his or
her Director or Head of Service shall ensure that he or she accounts to him for
the amount advanced.

F13 Intellectual Property

F13.1 Intellectual Property is a generic term that includes inventions and
writing. If these are created by an Employee during the course of
employment, as a general rule they belong to the Employer. There is a variety
of legislation covering different types of intellectual property.

F13.2 Certain activities undertaken by the council may give rise to items
which are patentable e.g. the development of software. These are collectively
known as Intellectual Property.

F13.3 The Monitoring Officer, in conjunction with Section 151 Officer shall
determine a policy and procedure guidance relating to intellectual property of
the Council.

F13.4 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for implementing the
council’s intellectual property procedures and for putting controls in place to
ensure that Officers do not carry out private work in the council’s time.

F13.5 Officers should be made aware of the Employer’s rights with regard to
intellectual property.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 42 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 79

G: TREASURY MANAGEMENT

G1 Introduction

G1.1 Many millions of pounds pass though the council’'s books each year and
must be carefully managed in a way which balances risk with return, but with
the overriding consideration being the security of the council’s funds.

G1.2 The general policy objective is that the council should invest prudently
the surplus funds held on behalf of the community, giving priority to security
and liquidity of the funds.

G1.3 The council has adopted CIPFA’'s Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in Local Authorities. All of the council's borrowings and
investments are carried out in accordance with this code.

G2 Full Council

G2.1 Full Council is responsible for approving the Treasury Management
Policy / Strategy Statement, proposed by the Cabinet, setting out the matters
detailed in CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local
Authorities.

G3 Cabinet or other appropriate Committee

G3.1 The Cabinet is responsible for:

Proposing the Treasury Management Policy Statement to the Council, in
accordance with advice from the Section 151 Officer.

¢ Decisions relating to Treasury Management within the Policy Statement.

¢ Deciding an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy.

e Implementing and monitoring performance against the Treasury
Management Policy Statement.

e Delegating responsibility for borrowing, investment and financing to the
Section 151 Officer.

G4 Section 151 Officer
G4.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:
e Controlling all money in the hands of the council.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 43 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 80

Acting in accordance with the CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in Local Authorities.

Reporting to the Cabinet a proposed Treasury Management Strategy for
the coming financial year at or before the start of the financial year.

Implementing and monitoring the council's Treasury Management
Statement.

Reporting to the Full Council twice in each financial year on treasury
management activity and prudential indicators and the exercise of his or
her delegated treasury management authority. One such report will
comprise an annual report on treasury management outturn, for
presentation by 30th September of the succeeding financial year.

Ensuring that all investment and borrowing is made in the name of the
council.

Ensuring that all securities that are the property of the council and the title
deeds of all property in the council’s ownership are held securely.

Acting as the council’s registrar of stocks, bonds and mortgages and
maintaining records of all borrowing and investment of money by the
council.

Arranging for all trust funds to be held, where possible, in the nhame of the
council. All Officers acting as Trustees by virtue of their official position,
shall deposit securities, etc. relating to the trust with the Section 151
Officer unless the deed otherwise provides.

Where funds are held on behalf of third parties, arranging for their secure
administration, approved by the Section 151 Officer, and maintaining
written records of transactions.

Ensuring that all trust funds are operated within any relevant legislation
and the specific requirements of each trust.

G5 Banking Arrangements

G5.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:

Operating bank accounts as he/she considers necessary. No bank
accounts may be opened in the council’s name, or closed, without the prior
approval of the Section 151 Officer.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 44 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 81

Instructing the council’s bankers to prohibit an overdrawn position on the
aggregate bank accounts of the council beyond the level set out in the
facilities agreement between the council and its bankers.

Ensuring that an up to date list of all authorised bank signatories on the
council’s bank accounts is maintained and made available to the council’s
bankers.

Designated Officers from within GO Shared Services are permitted to act
as authorised bank signatories for each of the councils being served by
the Shared Services.

Ensuring that an up to date list of Officers holding Business Charge Cards
or Government Procurement cards on behalf of the council is maintained,
showing individual approved credit limits.

Advising on secure arrangements for banking and cash handling.

Authorising the provision of change floats at the request of the Directors or
Heads of Service (see Petty Cash Financial Rules).

Ensuring that designated Officers within GO Shared Services are given
access to the bank account details of each of the councils being served by
the Shared Service, to facilitate transactional processing and other finance
related work, as required.

G5.2 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for:

Ensuring that banking and cash handling is carried out in accordance with
Financial Rules.

Ensuring that Officers are properly trained and aware of their
responsibilities.

Ensuring that Officers are personally protected against risk.
Ensuring that loans are not made to third parties and that interests are not

acquired in companies, joint ventures or other enterprises without the
approval of the Council, following consultation with the Section 151 Officer.

G5.3 Budget Holders are responsible for:

Ensuring that all Officers are aware of the controls required over banking
and cash handling and follow instructions thereon.

Ensuring that cash held on the premises is kept to a minimum, held
securely, and is always within the limits agreed with the council’s insurers.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 45 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 82

Cash in excess of these limits should be banked before the end of the day.
Cash should not be held at an Officers home as this may negate the
Council’s insurance cover.

¢ Holding change floats issued to the service by the Section 151 Officer and
accounting for them when required to do so.

o Ensuring that keys to safes and other receptacles used for holding cash
are kept secure by the person of those responsible at all times. Loss of
keys must be reported to the Section 151 Officer as soon as possible.

e Ensuring that, where money passes from one Officer to another, there are
procedures in place to evidence the transfer, the amount and the
certification of the Officers involved.

e Ensuring that Council money is not kept with or confused with unofficial
funds, e.g. tea, lottery or pools funds.

e Ensuring that payments are not made from cash received.

¢ Implementing documented procedures for recording, receipting and
banking money. Banking should be carried out as frequently as is
necessary to keep the amount of money within insurance limits. Each
deposit to the bank should be accompanied by a properly completed bank
paying-in slip showing:

- the name and title of the Officer making the banking.

- the total deposited, analysed in denominations of cash and cheques.

- the name of the cheque payees and a debtors reference, where this is
available, on the reverse of the slip (also on the reverse of the cheque
where payment is by cheque).

N.B. Cheques received to a value in excess of £10,000 must be banked on
the day of receipt.

¢ Reconciling income records to the Council’s financial information system,
checking that all money received has reached the correct budget head.
Discrepancies should be investigated and corrected immediately.

G6 BACS Payments and Cheques

G6.1 The payment of all monies from the council, with the exception of sums
payable from advance accounts or business credit cards, shall be by BACS or
other instrument drawn on the council’s bank account by the section 151
Officer, including cheques when payment by BACS is not possible or
appropriate.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 46 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 83

G6.2 All BACS transmissions, irrespective of value, will be supported by an
authorisation form signed by the Officer responsible for producing the
payment, plus either the Section 151 Officer or another authorised bank
signatory.

G6.3 All individual BACS payments and cheques drawn for an amount in
excess of £25,000 shall be countersigned by another authorised Employee,
who shall be an authorised bank signatory to the bank account.

G6.4 All cheque stocks shall be ordered only on the authority of the Section
151 Officer, who shall make proper arrangements for their safe custody.

G6.5 All cheques drawn on the council’'s main bank accounts shall bear the
facsimile signature of the Section 151 Officer or other employee authorised to
do so.

G6.6 All manually prepared cheques for an amount in excess of £5,000 shall
be countersigned by another authorised employee, who shall be an
authorised bank signatory to the bank account.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 47 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 84

H: FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES

H1 Introduction

H1.1 Sound systems and procedures are essential to an effective framework
of accountability and control. They are needed to ensure that accounting
records can be relied upon to present a true and fair view of the council’s
financial activity and that management information is appropriate, accurate
and timely.

H1.2 The council must operate within legal requirements and adopt best
practice guidance. The council will follow the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting and the Service Reporting Code of Practice for
Local Authorities.

H2 Section 151 Officer

H2.1 The Section 151 Officer has a statutory and professional responsibility
for ensuring that the council’s financial systems are sound and for making
arrangements for the proper administration of the council’s financial affairs,
including:-

Selecting suitable accounting policies that comply with legislation and
best practice guidance, and ensuring that they are applied consistently.

Determining the accounting systems and procedures, form of accounts
and supporting financial records.

Ensuring that delegated Officers within the GO Shared Services are
given access to the financial records of each of the councils being
served by the Shared Service, to facilitate transactional processing and
other finance related work, as required.

Issuing advice, guidance and procedures for Officers and others acting
on the council’s behalf.

Establishing arrangements for the audit of the council’s financial affairs.

Approving any new financial system to be introduced and any changes
to be made to existing financial systems.

Producing timetables for accounting tasks such as the production of
budgets and final accounts and the collection or submission of other
financial information for processing (e.g. Accounts Payable deadlines).

Ensuring that all suspense and holding accounts are controlled and
reconciled on a monthly basis.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 48 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 85

e Ensuring that all bank accounts are controlled and reconciled to the
main accounting system regularly (at least monthly) to confirm that all
transactions have been processed into the Council’'s accounts.

H2.2 The Section 151 Officer has a statutory responsibility for ensuring that
the annual Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting and the Service Reporting
Code of Practice for Local Authorities.

H3 Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Holders

H3.1 Each Director or Head of Service shall ensure that all financial and
computerised systems for which he or she is responsible are adequately
controlled and comply with the requirements laid down by the Section 151
Officer. Any proposed changes to these systems / procedures or any new
systems / procedures must be also approved by the Section 151 Officer.

H3.2 Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Holders are responsible for:-

e The proper operation of financial processes in their areas of responsibility
and ensuring that all Officers under their management are aware of, and
properly operate, the financial systems relevant to their area of work.

e Establishing and maintaining sound financial processes within their areas
of management.

e Documenting systems and ensuring that Officers are properly trained in
their use.

e Ensuring that financial transactions are recorded in a timely and accurate
manner, and are processed into the main accounting system using correct
accounting codes. Transactions should not be processed to incorrect
accounting codes as a way of avoiding virement rules.

e Using only their own accounting codes unless they have the express
written permission of another Budget Holder to use theirs.

e Properly recording the nature and value of income, expenditure and assets
and referring to original documentation where possible.

e Ensuring that income and expenditure are accounted for separately and
are not set off against each other.

e Accounting for revenue and capital income and expenditure separately.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 49 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 86

¢ Maintaining a complete audit trail allowing financial transactions to be
traced from the accounting records to the original documentation and vice
versa.

e Ensuring that vouchers and documents with financial implications are not
destroyed, except in accordance with arrangements under Data Protection
legislation, approved by the Section 151 Officer.

¢ Implementing organisational structures that provide adequate segregation
of duties to minimise the risk of fraud, error or other malpractice. In
particular, ensuring that Employees charged with the duty of examining
and checking the amounts of cash transactions (or cash equivalents) shall
not themselves be engaged in any of these transactions.

o Establishing an effective scheme of delegation, identifying Officers
authorised to act on their behalf in respect of financial transactions,
determining the limits of their authority and ensuring that the scheme
operates effectively.

e Supplying a written record of authorised Officers within his or her area of
responsibility, with specimen signatures and delegated limits, to the
Section 151 Officer, and ensuring they are maintained up-to-date.
Directors shall still remain responsible for the activities of delegated
functions.

¢ Implementing and documenting effective contingency arrangements in a
disaster recovery plan, including back-up procedures, to allow systems to
resume operation quickly in the event of an interruption in service.
Wherever possible, back-up information should be securely retained in a
fireproof location, preferably off-site, or in an alternative location within the
building.

e Ensuring that computer and other systems are registered in accordance
with Data Protection legislation and that staff are aware of their
responsibilities under this and the Freedom of Information legislation.

e Carrying out accounting tasks to meet the standards and timescales set by
the Section 151 Officer or his delegated Deputy.

H4 Employees

H4.1 Each nominated employee shall ensure that all financial and finance
related systems are reconciled to the council’s main financial management
system quarterly, unless more frequent reconciliation is required by the
Section 151 Officer.

H4.2 Any amendments to a prime record should be made in ink and initialled
by the Employee making it. Correcting fluid, or any other means of
obliteration, shall not be used to amend prime financial records.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 50 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 87

H5 Orders for Work, Goods and Services

H5.1 Requisitions and official orders shall, in addition to any requirement
under the Contracts Procedure Rules, be in a form approved by the Section
151 Officer and are to be authorised only by Employees designated for that
purpose.

H5.2 Requisitions and official orders shall be issued for all works, supplies or
services to be supplied to the council, except for supplies of public utility
services, periodical payments such as rent or business rates, for petty cash
purchases or such other exceptions as the Section 151 Officer may approve.

H5.3 Requisitions or official orders shall clearly indicate the nature and
quantity of the work or services required and any relevant contract or agreed
prices.

H5.4 Each requisition and order shall conform to the guidelines contained in
the council’'s Contract Procedure Rules.

H5.5 Prior to placing an order Employees shall ensure that provision has been
made in the budget for the cost of the works, goods or services to be
supplied. Where applicable, these should comply with European Community
Directories and prescribed procedures.

H5.6 All goods and services shall only be ordered by an authorised Officer, in
accordance with written delegations and procedures.

H5.7 All orders for goods and services must be approved by budget holders
before being issued to the supplier. The approval limits will normally be
assigned in accordance with the following levels of authority:-

¢ Authorised Budget Holder —Up to £10,000, subject to individual
approved limit

e Budget Holder or Manager —£10,001 to £50,000, subject to individual
approved limit

e Manager or Director or Head of Service— £50,001 to £100,000, subject
to individual approved limit

e Director or Head of Service or Section 151 Officer or Deputy Section
151 Officer — £100,001 to £250,000

e Section 151 Officer or Deputy Section 151 Officer— Amounts over
£250,000

Each Director or Head of Service will agree the appropriate approval
limit for individual Officers within their service with the Section 151
Officer or Deputy Section 151 Officer, based on their level of
responsibility and/or their budget amounts.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 51 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 88

H5.8 All ICT equipment, irrespective of its individual value, shall only be
procured by, or with the prior approval of the Director responsible for ICT
Services (or his or her delegated Officer), particularly where the equipment
has a strategic value or requires network access.

H5.9 All goods and services received shall be checked, to ensure that they
are in accordance with the order, are for the correct quantity and quality
standards and that any work has been completed satisfactorily. Proper entries
shall be made in inventories or stores records, where appropriate.

H5.10 All orders should be checked to ensure prices, calculations, trade
discounts, other allowances and credits are correct

H5.11 All expenditure, including VAT shall be accurately recorded against the
correct allocated budget and any exceptions corrected.

H5.12 All appropriate evidence of the transaction and payment documents
shall be retained and stored for the defined period, in accordance with the
council’s document retention schedule.

H6 Payment of Accounts

H6.1 The payment of all monies from the council, with the exception of sums
payable from advance accounts or business credit cards (if applicable), shall
be by BACS or other instrument drawn on the council’'s bank account by the
section 151 Officer, including cheques when payment by BACS is not
possible or appropriate.

H6.2 Payment will only be made if the budget holder is satisfied that the
requirements of Financial Rules H5.9 and H5.10 have been met. All payments
should be made to the correct organisation /individual, for the correct amount.

H6.3 VAT invoices must not be altered. If the amount of the invoice is
incorrect, either a replacement or a credit note shall be requested

H6.4 Purchase invoices received into a department shall be passed without
delay to the GO Shared Service, Financial Services, to be examined as
considered necessary. For this purpose, Financial Services are entitled to
make such enquiries and to receive such information and explanation as they
may require.

H6.5 Payment will not be made on the basis of a statement or a reminder
account.

H6.6 Payments shall be made within 30 days of receipt by the council or
within any mutually agreed terms, in order to avoid the possibility of penalty
interest becoming payable.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 52 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 89

H6.7 Any penalty interest becoming payable under the Late Payment of
Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 shall be charged back to the
appropriate budget head unless, in the view of the Section 151 Officer,
unreasonable delays were occasioned by another Employee.

H6.8 A Director must consult with the Section 151 Officer before entering into
any mutual payment terms with a supplier. All such agreements must be
made in writing.

H6.9 Prepayment for goods and services should be avoided where possible,
in order to minimise risk to the council. If a prepayment is unavoidable then it
should be approved by the GO Shared Services.

H7 Payments to Employees and Members

H7.1 The interpretation and application of pay scales, conditions of service
and other related matters shall be the responsibility of the Head of Paid
Service (Chief Executive), with whom Directors shall confer, as necessary, in
connection with their application to employees in their areas of responsibility.

H7.2 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that budget provision
exists for all existing and new employees and for making all payments of
salaries and wages to all staff and Members, in accordance with agreed terms
and conditions and timescales.

H7.3 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the maintenance of proper
national insurance, income tax and other statutory pay records and for the
accurate and timely payment of pension contributions and other deductions to
third parties.

H7.4 The GO Shared Services Head of Human Resources, in consultation
with the Section 151 Officer, shall approve and control the arrangements for
payments of salaries and wages to all staff, including the process for
payments for overtime and for payment of allowances to Members.

H7.5 Directors and/or Managers must notify the GO Shared Services, as early
as possible of all appointments, dismissals, resignations, absences from duty,
transfers and proposed changes of employees, together with such other
information as is necessary to maintain adequate personnel records for the
council.

H7.6 No new appointments or changes to arrangements for existing
employees are permitted without adequate budget provision. All appointments
shall be made in accordance with the council's rules and approved
establishments, grades and scales of pay.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 53 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 90

H7.7 Directors and/or budget holders are responsible for the monitoring of
spending against approved employee-related budgets, ensuring that the
manpower budget is not exceeded without appropriate authority and that it is
managed to enable the agreed level of service to be provided.

H7.8 All Employees and Members shall notify the GO Shared Services,
Human Resources Service of any discrepancy between what they expected to
be paid and what they have received, including payments made in error. In
the event of an overpayment the recipient will normally be asked to refund the
council over the same time period for which the error was made. If the council
makes an underpayment it will be corrected as soon as is reasonably
practical, each case being agreed individually. Failure to report an
overpayment may result in disciplinary action.

H8 Travel and Subsistence Claims

H8.1 Claims for payment of allowances, travelling and subsistence following
the process approved by the GO Shared Services Head of Human
Resources, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer.

H8.2 Claims shall normally be submitted monthly and always by the end of
April following the financial year end. Employees are responsible for ensuring
that journeys made and expenses claimed have been properly incurred and
supporting VAT receipts are obtained. All claims to be authorised by an
employee’s line manager.

H8.3 The council reserves the right not to pay any travel and/or expense
claims that are not submitted in a timely manner, without good reason. Line
Managers are responsible for approving or not approving all claims. In the
case of any queries, line Managers should consult with their Director or Head
of Service.

H9 Value Added Taxation

H9.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for advising Directors and Heads
of Service and Members, in the light of guidance by appropriate bodies and
relevant legislation as it applies, on all taxation issues that affect the council.
Written advice shall be made available to all relevant Employees.

H9.2 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for maintaining the council’s tax
records, making all tax payments, receiving tax credits and submitting tax
returns by their due date as appropriate.

H9.3 The Section 151 Officer or his /her authorised representative shall be
responsible for liaising with HM Revenue and Customs on all VAT related
matters and for submitting and signing the necessary returns/claims in a
timely manner.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 54 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 91

H9.4 VAT must be correctly claimed on expenditure (Input Tax) and valid tax
invoices retained by the council

H9.5 VAT must be correctly charged on income from works, goods and
services supplied by the council (Output Tax) and a valid VAT invoice or VAT
receipt issued to any party outside the council, in accordance with the form
approved by the Section 151 Officer.

H9.6 Under no circumstances shall an Officer or Member use the auspices of
the council to purchase goods or services for their own private purposes to
avoid paying VAT. To do so may result in disciplinary action.

H10 Trading Accounts / Business Units

H10.1 It is the responsibility of the Section 151 Officer to advise on the
establishment and operation of trading accounts and business units. These
shall be accounted for in accordance with CIPFA’s Service Reporting Code of
Practice.

H10.2 The Section 151 Officer shall be consulted if a business unit wishes to
enter into a contract with a third party, where the contract exceeds the
remaining life of their main contract with the council. In general, such
contracts should not be entered into unless they are capable of being
terminated within the main contract period without penalty.

A service designated as a trading service may increase expenditure estimates
approved by the Council, in consultation with the relevant Director and
Cabinet Member and the Section 151 Officer as a result of increased income,
in line with the virement rules set out in the Financial Rules.

H10.3 A trading account or business unit for the provision of sports, recreation
or cultural activities may increase its fees and charges during the year in order
to remain in line with competitors and demand, in consultation with the
relevant Cabinet Member.

H11 Journals

H11.1 All journal entries and other daily input into the Financial Management
system (Agresso) may only be processed by authorised Employees, with the
approval of the Section 151 Officer. This will normally be restricted to Officers
within the GO Shared Services, Financial Services.

H11.2 Journals shall only be processed within the general ledger of the
council. No journals are permitted between different company / council
general ledgers.

H11.3 The GO Shared Services Head(s) of Finance is responsible for
ensuring that a daily report of all journals raised on the finance system is
produced and retained for audit purposes. This report shall be checked and
signed as agreed by a delegated senior Officer within GO Shared Services.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 55 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 92

I: INCOME

11 Introduction

1.1 The council seeks to maximise its income to enable it to meet its financial
objectives. The Local Government Act 2003 enables authorities to charge for
discretionary services. Sources of income need to be identified and fees and
charges authorised at an appropriate level.

12 Cabinet

12.1 The Cabinet is responsible for:-

Setting fees and charges for services, approved as part of the annual
budget setting process.

Approving procedures for the write off of bad debts.

Approving the write off of bad debts in excess of the approved Section
151 Officer limit, under Financial Rule 19

12.2 Statutory fees and charges shall be set in accordance with the relevant
legislation and the prescribed notice period for changes to fees and charges
shall be given.

12.3 Non statutory fees and charges may be increased or reduced during the
year by the Director or Budget Holder, in order to remain in line with
competitors and demand, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member.

I3 Section 151 Officer

13.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:-

Agreeing arrangements made for the collection of income due to the
council and approving the procedures, systems and documentation for
its collection.

Ensuring that all claims for funds, including grants are made by the due
date

Agreeing the arrangements for ordering and supplying all receipt forms,
books or similar items and satisfying him/herself regarding the
arrangements for their control.

Operating the approved procedures for the write off of bad debts
(Financial Rule 19).

Recommending to Cabinet the fees and charges to be set for all
services.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 56 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 93

14 Directors and Heads of Service

14.1 Each Director or Head of Service is responsible for:-

¢ Recommending to the Section 151 Officer the fees and charges to be
set for goods or services falling within their control, apart from those
charges fixed on a statutory or nationally agreed basis.

This shall not apply to ad-hoc charges of a minor nature where a
flexible pricing policy has been agreed, charges associated with
partnership working which are set on a cost recovery basis, or
rechargeable works.

¢ Informing the Section 151 Officer and relevant Cabinet Member of the
particulars of all new sources of income arising from the work of their
service, as soon as it becomes known.

e The identification, prompt collection, control and monitoring of all
income due to the council within their area of responsibility.

15 Budget Holders

15.1 Budget Holders are responsible for:-

Identifying all activities in their areas of management for which charges
should be made, to whom, when, how much and whether VAT should be
added.

Maximising income within the council’s policies and legislation.

Maintaining a record of all income due to the council, including details of
contracts, leases, grants and other arrangements.

Ensuring that all income generated by their service is accounted for and
that proper records are maintained, using systems and documentation
approved by the Section 151 Officer.

Ensuring that all Employees under their management are aware of, and
operate, the internal controls that exist in their area.

Where money is to be collected by debtor account, ensuring that the
details of work done, goods supplied, services rendered or other amounts
due, are correctly recorded and the debtor accounts rendered promptly.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 57 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 94

e Assisting in the collection of debts that they have originated by providing
further information requested by the debtor and by pursuing the debt on
the Council’'s behalf and taking prompt action to recover debts, in
conjunction with the Section 151 Officer, whilst having regard for the cost
of collection. Debtor accounts should be reviewed regularly to identify
unpaid accounts and recovery action required.

o Where responsibility for the collection of a debt has not been passed to the
Section 151 Officer, establishing and initiating appropriate recovery
procedures, including legal action, where necessary, for debts which have
not been paid promptly.

e Ensuring that at least two employees are present when post is opened so
that money received by post is properly identified, recorded and accounted
for.

e Securing all income to safeguard against loss or theft and ensuring the
security of cash handling.

e Ensuring that income is paid fully and promptly into the appropriate
Council bank account in the form in which it is received and that
appropriate details are recorded on the paying-in slip to provide a
complete audit trail.

e Ensuring that no expenditure is paid from income received.
¢ Reconciling income systems with the council’s main accounting system
monthly to ensure that all income received has reached the correct budget

head and investigating where there is a discrepancy.

e Monitoring levels of income received and outstanding to establish trends
and anomalies which should be investigated.

¢ Notifying the Section 151 Officer of outstanding income relating to the

previous financial year as soon as possible after 31st March, in line with
the financial year end timetable.

16 Employees

16.1 Personal cheques must not be cashed from Council money nor cash
advances taken against credit card transactions out of any money held on
behalf of the Council.

17 Accounts Receivable (Debtors invoices)
17.1 A Budget Holder or delegated Officer must authorise all debtors’ invoices

for amounts less than £5.00, and all credit notes raised, irrespective of value.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 58 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 95

17.2 VAT must be properly recorded. Failure to do so may result in the council
being unable to reclaim VAT and, in some circumstance, a penalty payment
imposed by HMRC.

17.3 Cash payments must be checked on receipt. In situations where
electronic receipting is not available, an official, sequentially numbered receipt
must be issued for a cash payment at the time of its receipt. A receipt must be
issued for other forms of payment if requested by the payer. The transfer of all
money between officers must be documented and the recipient should sign a
receipt.

17.4 Payments received in “Full and Final Settlement” shall only be accepted
and accounted for if they are sufficient to clear fully the appropriate debt,
unless with the approval of the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer.

I8 Debt Recovery Procedures

18.1 Once raised, a debtor's invoice may not be cancelled except by full
payment, the issue of a credit note or by its formal writing off. A credit note
can only be issued to correct a factual inaccuracy or administrative error in the
calculation and/or biling of the original debt, or to recognise that an
overpayment of housing benefit is being recovered from an on-going benefit
entitlement.

18.2 There must be proper documented systems for the payment of
outstanding debtors’ invoices, including milestones and timelines, which shall
be followed by delegated Officers.

18.3 Outstanding debtors that are to be chased through legal proceedings are
to be dealt with following the council’s debt recovery procedures.

18.4 Interest can be charged on unpaid debts, in accordance with the debt
recovery procedures.

18.5 Solicitor fees incurred in the recovery of unpaid debt can be charged to
the debtor, in accordance with debt recovery procedures.

19 Write off of unrecoverable Debts

19.1 The limits on the council to write off individual debts are:-

o The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt for which a bankruptcy
or liquidation notice has been received.

e The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt of a deceased person
who has a nil estate.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 59 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 96

e The Section 151 Officer can write off any other individual debt to a
maximum amount of £5,000, where the amount is unlikely to be
recovered or where proceedings are inappropriate or unjustified. This
authority cannot be delegated.

¢ All other individual debts, in excess of £5,000 can only be written off
with the approval of Cabinet or other delegated Committee.

19.2 The value of unrecoverable debts written off will be charged back against
the cost centre / service from which the original invoice was raised, thus
canceling the original credit to the service. This can be overwritten in
exceptional circumstances, with the approval of the Section 151 Officer.

19.3 A record will be maintained by the Section 151 Officer of all bad debts
written off under delegated approval given by Financial Rules above.

19.4 The Section can delegate the waiving of standard off-street car park
charge notices to the Director or Head of Service responsible for Car Parking,
who shall maintain records detailing the reason and amounts waived. This
authority cannot be delegated further. The records shall be made available to
the Section 151 Officer or Cabinet on request.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 60 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 97

J: COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES

J1 Introduction

J1.1 The council collects large amounts of money for its own purposes, for
other authorities and, in the case of Non-Domestic Rates, for the Government.

J1.2 The rules that apply to the collection of these sums are set out in
legislation, regulation and good practice guidance.

There are documented procedures and a timetable for tax calculation, billing,
refunds, recovery and enforcement that accord with statutory requirements
and the council’s own regulations.

J2 Section 151 Officer

J2.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the collection and recovery of
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates. He or she should ensure that
accounting procedures are in place to support the correct treatment and
presentation of transactions in the council’s accounts.

J3 Head of Revenues and Benefits

J3.1 The Head of Revenues and Benefits is responsible for the day to day
management of the Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates systems. He or she
should ensure that:-

e All transactions, records and accounts are calculated accurately,
completely and promptly. They should be supported by evidence and
handled only by authorised staff.

¢ Adequate separation of duties is in place to enable the work of one Officer
to be subject to check by another.

e Accounting procedures reflect the correct treatment and presentation of
transactions in the Council’s accounts.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 61 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 98

K: COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT and HOUSING BENEFIT

K1 Introduction

K1.1 The council is responsible for paying Council Tax Benefit and Housing
Benefit to entitled claimants. It is also responsible for guarding against fraud
and investigating where it is suspected. The council receives subsidy from the
Government to pay for most of the Benefits. It has to demonstrate sound
administration and accurate payment to prove its entitlement to subsidy.

K1.2 All benefit transactions must be legitimate, appropriate and in
accordance with relevant verification framework regulations.

K2 Section 151 Officer

K2.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the payment of Council Tax
Benefit and Housing Benefit. He or she should ensure that accounting
procedures are in place to support the correct treatment and presentation of
transactions in the Council’s accounts and subsidy claims.

K3 Head of Revenues and Benefits

K3.1 The Head of Revenues and Benéefits is responsible for the day to day
management of the Council Tax Benefit and Housing Benefit systems. He or
she should ensure that:-

e All transactions, records and accounts are calculated accurately,
completely and promptly. They should be supported by evidence and
handled only by authorised staff.

¢ Adequate separation of duties is in place to enable the work of one Officer
to be subject to check by another.

¢ Overpayments are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s policy and
recovery is efficient and effective.

e All fraud prevention and detection is in accordance with statute,
professional guidance and the council’s financial rules and other policies.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 62 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 99

L: EXTERNAL ARRANGEMENTS

L1 PARTNERSHIPS

L1.1 Introduction

L1.1.1 The council provides a distinctive leadership role for the community
and brings together the contributions of a variety of stakeholders. It must also
act to achieve the promotion or improvement of the economic, social and
environmental well-being of its area.

L1.1.2 Partnerships play a key role in delivering community strategies and
delivering the shared vision of services, based on user needs.

L1.1.3 A partner is defined as being either an organisation (public or private)
undertaking, part funding or participating in a project or a body whose nature
or status gives it a right or obligation to support the project.

L1.1.4 This section of the Financial Rules sets out the financial implications of
working in partnership with external organisations.

L1.2 Cabinet

L1.2.1 The Cabinet is responsible for approving delegations, including
frameworks for partnerships. The Cabinet is the focus for forming partnerships
with other local public, private, voluntary and community sector organisations
to address local needs.

L1.2.2 The Cabinet can delegate functions, including those relating to
partnerships, to Officers. These are set out in the Scheme of Delegation that
forms part of the council’s Constitution. Where functions are delegated, the
Cabinet remains accountable for them to full Council.

L1.2.3 The Chief Executive or delegated Officer shall represent the council on
partnership and external bodies, in accordance with the Scheme of
Delegation.

L1.3 Section 151 Officer

L1.3.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:-

e Ensuring that the accounting arrangements to be adopted relating to
partnerships and joint arrangements are satisfactory.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 63 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 100

Promoting and maintaining the same high standards of conduct with
regard to financial administration in partnerships that apply throughout
the council.

Considering the overall corporate governance arrangements and legal
issues when arranging contracts with external bodies.

Ensuring that the risks have been fully appraised before agreements
are entered into with external bodies. He or she should advise on
effective controls to ensure that resources are used efficiently and
effectively.

Ensuring that all funding notified by external bodies is received and
properly recorded in the council’s accounts.

L1.4 Directors and Heads of Service

L1.4.1 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for:-

Ensuring that appropriate approvals are obtained before any
negotiations are concluded in relation to work with external bodies.

Carrying our risk management appraisals, prior to entering into an
arrangement with an external body, in accordance with procedures
specified by the Section 151 Officer.

Ensuring that partnership agreements do not impact adversely on the
services provided by the council.

Ensuring that partnership agreements and arrangements are properly
documented and information provided to the Section 151 Officer to
enable a note to be entered into the council’s Statement of Accounts
concerning material items.

Maintaining a register of all contracts entered into with external bodies,
in accordance with procedures specified by the Section 151 Officer.

L2 EXTERNAL FUNDING

L2.1 Introduction

L2.1.1 External funding can be an important source of income to the council,
but funding conditions need to be carefully considered to ensure that they are
compatible with the aims and objectives of the council.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 64 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 101

L2.1.2 The council shall seek to maximise its resources by attracting external
funding where appropriate. However, in some instances, available funding
may be linked to tight specifications and may not be sufficiently flexible to link
to the council’s strategies.

L2.2 Section 151 Officer

L2.2.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for:-

Ensuring that any match funding requirements are considered prior to
entering into an external agreement and that adequate future revenue
budgets are in place to meet these requirements.

Ensuring that all funding notified by external bodies is received and
properly recorded in the council’'s accounts.

Ensuring that all audit requirements are met.

L2.3 Directors and Heads of Service

L2.3.1 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring that:-

Funds are acquired only to meet the priorities approved in the policy
framework by the council.

Any match funding requirements are considered prior to entering into
an external agreement and consulting with the Section 151 Officer to
ensure that adequate future revenue budgets are in place to meet
these requirements.

Key conditions of funding and any statutory requirements are complied
with and that the responsibilities of the Accountable body are clearly
understood.

All claims for funds are made by the due date and income received in
accordance with the agreement.

The project progresses in accordance with the agreed project outline
and that all expenditure is properly incurred and recorded in the
council’'s accounts.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 65 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 102

L3 WORK FOR THIRD PARTIES

L3.1 Introduction

i_3.1.1 Current legislation enables the council to provide a range of services to
other bodies. Such work may enable a Service area to maintain economies of
scale and existing expertise. Arrangements should be in place to ensure that
any risks associated with this work are minimised and that such work is within
current legislation.

L3.1.2 Contracts for the work should be drawn up using guidance provided by
the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer to the council. The
proposals should be costed properly in accordance with guidance provided by
the Section 151 Officer.

L3.1.3 Guidance with regard to the financial aspects of third party contracts
and the maintenance of the contracts register should be followed.

L3.2 Cabinet

L3.2.1 The Cabinet is responsible for approving contractual arrangements for
any work carried out by the council for third parties or external bodies in
addition to the normal business. This responsibility can be delegated to the
Senior Leadership Team (Directors) of the council.

L3.3 Section 151 Officer

L3.3.1 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for issuing guidance with regard
to the financial aspects of third party contracts and the maintenance of the
contract register.

L3.4 Directors and Heads of Service

L3.4.1 Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring that:-

e Approval is obtained before any negotiations for the work are
concluded.

e Contracts operate to the benefit of the council and do not impact
adversely upon the services provided for the council.

¢ No contract is subsidised by the council.
e The Service area has the appropriate expertise to deliver the contract.

e Appropriate insurance arrangements are put in place.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 66 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



Page 103

o Wherever possible, payment is received in advance of the delivery of
the service to the third party.

e The council is not put at risk from any bad debts.
e All contracts are properly documented and appropriate information

given to the Section 151 Officer to enable a note to be entered into the
Statement of Accounts.

XX Council — Financial Rules Page 67 of 67
Updated 29-09-2011



This page is intentionally left blank
Page 104



¥ J0 T 93ed

Page 105

‘sieah ¢ A1ans adIAI8g JO pesH Jo alnjpuadx3 |euden 6.9 0z abed

J0308.1q pareubisap Ag 1auiqed o} pauodal aq 0y Abajens |elde) pue ueld juswabeue) Jossy
[1ouno) Ag - 0000013 JO SS8IX8 Ul SjUNOWY alnjpuadx3 |euden 8'/9 0z obed

18uIgeD Ag - 000‘001 3 Buipasoxa Jou sunowy

-:panoidde aq 0} Jeak ul sawayods |elded maN
‘aln)puadxa anuaAal Se passe|o sI ainjipuadxa alnypuadx3g |euden ¢/9 0z abed

1B yolym mojaq ‘ainjipuadxs |ejided Jo uonesyisselo 1oy 189S 000°0L3F JO |9AS], Shwiuiw ap,,
‘000013 40 SS92X3 Ul Se paulap ‘s}abpng Bulioyuop 196png v 61 abed

alnjipuadxa pue awooul 0} saduelieA Juediubis 109))81 0} }auIge) 0} suodal Buloyuol Jebpng
siseq Auayuenb wnwiuiw e uo Jauige) 0} papiwgns aq 0} suodas Bulojuow 126png Buuoyjiuopy 19b6png Zveg 61 abed
"Jeak |eioueuly 1xau ay} Jo uonesedalid pue Buluue|d 19bpng L9 g] obed

uels ay) 03 Joud Jeak yoea Jo Aieniga4 ul 1ouno? [In4 Ag [eaosdde pue 1auige) Ag uoielapisuod

1oy} ‘siseq Jeah  wnwiuiw e uo pajodal pue pasedaid aq 0} ABajens [eloueuld WIS WNIPSA
"Jeak |eloueuly 1xau ay} Jo Jels ayj o} Joud Jeak uoneledalid pue Buluue|d 196png Lz9 /| abed

yoeas jo Aieniga4 ui 326pnq |enuue sy jo uodope pue [eaosdde ayj 1o} ajgisuodsal [1IoUNo) [n4
‘000013 40 SS92Xa Ul SE paulap ‘Ajjelsjew saoueuly S,[IoUN0o Juswabeuel [eloueUIH AN g G| abed

10948 0] A|9YI| SJepew 1o} [eacidde Jeo1Q LG UOIOSS UIB}gO 0} SSDIAISS JO SPESH JO S10303lIg
‘a1ejal Aoy} yoiym o} pua Jeah [eroueuly Buimojjoy Jaquisidas yios Ag Juswabeuel [elouBUIH ey 0l abed

paysiignd aq 0} 1odal Jo uoluido ‘S}eolla0 S, JoJIpne [BUJS)XS pUB SjUN0J2Y JO JUBSWS)eS [eul
‘a]ep siy} Ag JieyD sapiwwon buinoidde Aq pue Juswabeuel [eloueUIH Zev 0l abed

JaoI0 1LGL uonoas Aq paubis ag 0} sjuswalels paypny "aiejal Asy} yoiym o) pus Jeak |eioueul

Buimojjo} Jaquisidas yiog Agq SJUNOD2Y JO JUBLUISIE)S Pa)ipNe JO a8)iwo) Jpny Aq jeaclddy
"8]ep siy} Ag 19010 LG uonoas Ag panoidde se paubis aq aq sjunodoy yeiq siejal Aauy) uswiabeuey |eloueul4 VY 0} obed

yolym 0} pua JeaA |eloueul) Buimoljo) aunp Yyiog Agq Sjunoooy Jo Juswislels yelp jo uoneledald
‘sieak g A1ana 19210 LGS AQ SBINJ JoBJUOD pUB |BIOUBUIH JO MBIASI B0 snjejs |eloueul 0L'Z g abed
uonduosaq uoI}09g|eoualajey JaquinN

a|ny obed

TV xipuaddy

SHWIT |eldUBUIS JO 3|NPAYIS - S3|NY [eldueuUl]




v Jo ¢ 98ed

Page 106

[1ouno) Ag [eaosdde - 000‘001 3 JO SS9IXa Ul SjunoWYy €83
1ouige) Aq jeaocisdde - 000001 F JO SS8IX8 UI JOU ‘000‘0S3F JO SS8IXa Ul SjUnowy sjuswAed uonesuadwon €83 ¢ obed
uonensiulpelely / enelo-x3
Jaquia Jouige) Ag [eaosdde - 000‘0GF JO SS2IXa Ul JOU ‘000‘GF JO SSOIXS Ul Sjunowy €83
199140 Bunioyuop sjuswAed uonesuadwon 2’83 ¢ obed
Jo/pue Jojoalig pue JaoO LGL uonoas Aq jeaosdde - 000‘GF 4O SS9OX3 Ul JOU SJUNOLY uonessiuiwpelely / enelo-x3
[1ouno) jo [eaosdde - 00O‘00L 3 JO SSBIX3 Ul SjUNOWY
1auige) Jo |eaocidde - 000‘00 13 JO SS8IXa Ul JOU ‘000'0G3F JO SS9Xa Ul Sjunowy
"PaWLIoUI 8q 0] (S)Jagquialy JBuigqe) JadI0 LG Uonoas Jo Juswsaalbe ypm ‘(s)aoinies sjuswaliA Jebpnqg jeuded| zzvo Gz obey
JO peaH Jo (s)Jojoaliq Jueasal jo [erosdde- 000 0GF JO SSO0Xa Ul Jou sjuawaliA 19bpng eyden
[1ouno) Jo [eaosdde - 000‘001 3 JO SSOIX3 Ul SjunoWYy
12uIge) Jo |eacldde - 0000013 4O SS90Xa Ul JoU ‘000053 JO SS99X3 Ul SjUNOLY
12010 |G| UOIDSS YUM UOoIje}NsSuoo sjuswialIA 1ebpng snusasy| Lz vD Gz abed
ul ‘JIaquisi Jauige) Jo [eaosdde - 000‘0GF JO SSOIX UI JOU ‘000'GZF JO SSBIXa Ul Sjunowy
pawLiojul 8q 0} Jaquwiawl Jauige) 1900 LGl Uoi0as ayl pue (s)adlAleg Jo peaH
J0 (s)Joyoanq Jueasjal Aq jeaocidde - 000‘GZ3 JO SS8IXa Ul JOU ‘000013 JO SSBIX3 Ul Sjunowy
‘pawIojul 8 0} Ja2IO LGl Uonoas sjuswalIA 1ebpng snusasy| LZv¥D Gz abed
"(s)221n18S JO pesH Jo (s)J0j0a11q Jueasjal Ag [eaosdde - 000‘0LF JO SSOIX8 Ul JoU SjuUNoOWY
"S92IAI9S paleys OO YlIM UOoNe)NSUod SJUSWBIIA JO aWayos L'€D yz abed
ul ‘Jap|oH 18bpng Jo Jabeuely ao1nias Aq panoidde aq 0} 821AI8S B UIYYIM SuofelieA 19bpng
‘lounon Aq panoidde aq 0} spwi| Juswalin paroidde o} suoneLea SJUSWBIIA JO BWayos 12D yz abed
‘ouno) Agq panoidde aq 0} ‘sieaA |eloueuly
snolnald ul piemio} pallied uaaq sey eyl puadsiapun Buipnjoul ‘spiemio} ALied Jayio ||y
‘papuajul se asodind awes 10} papaau Ji ‘18oO LGl uonoasg spienuoy Auen|  zoLg zz obey
Ag panoidde aq ueo Jeah |eloueuly 1Xxau Ul papaau puadsiapun jbpng Aue jo piemioy} Alied
uonduosaq uoI}09g|eoualajey JaquinN
a|ny obed

TV xipuaddy

SHWIT |eldUBUIS JO 3|NPAYIS - S3|NY [eldueuUl]




v Jo € 98ed

Page 107

uonoesuel; Jad 063 JO WNWIXeW e 0} pa}iwi| S}eols yseo Ajjad wouy sjuswied

use) Aned

€cld

L ebed

90O LGL UodeS auj Aq Jauige) o) apew

aq ||eys Jodal e ‘Jeal [eroueul ay} Bunp 000‘01LF PESIXS O USHILIM SJUNOWE Paje|NWNIDE §|
ouigqe) Aq panoidde aq 0] 000'GF JO SSBIX UI N0 USJLIM SJUNOLWIE [BNPIAIPU|

900 LG uonoag Aq

panoidde aq 0} ‘awi} auo Aue e spiodal 18SSEe JO JN0 UdJILIM 8 0} 000‘GF JO JUNOWE WNWIXE[N|

S810)S puUE SY20)}S

clhid

| obed

1901JO LG Uuonoas AQ - 0GZ3 JO SS80Xa Ul anjeA pajewisy
92IAJ8S JO SpeaH Jo siojoalig A - 0GZ3 4O SS9X8 Ul JoU anjeA pajewiisy
- )00)S 8)8]|0SgO JO [esodsIp 10 1O SJIAA

S810)S puUE SY20)}S

Lhid

| obed

JIPNY [EUIS)U| JO PESH pUE
18010 LG uonoag ay) 0) payodal 8q 0} 0GZF JO SSS0Xa Ul SBI0)S pue SY00)s Ul salouedalosiq

S0I0)S pUB SYJ01S

9014

Ot ebed

"0GZ3 JO Ssooxe
ul anjea e yum juswdinba | D ||e 40 AIojusAul Ue ulBjuiewW 0} 80IAISS JO PESH JO Jojoalidg 19|

Sjessy

¢'64

6¢ abed

"00GF JO SS90X8 Ul anjeA e yym (s)eale
90IAISS JIBY] Ul S}OSSE 9|geanow ||e jo AIOJuaAul Ue ulejulewl 0} 99IAI9S JO SpeaH Jo siojoallg

Sjessy

184

6¢ abed

"000°01 3 JO SS80Xa Ul 8NjeA B Ulm S}asSe paxly [|2 pJodaJ O} paulejulell aq o) Ja)sibay j1essy

Sjessy

L4

g¢ abed

"uonjoalgo-uou Jisyy 0} Joalgns ‘(s)iaquus|y PIEAA PUB JBqWISI JBUIge) Jueasjal
3y} YIm uoie)nsuod ul ‘wnuue Jad 000‘sz3 Buipasoxa Jou sjuswases pue 000‘0s3 Bulipesoxa
JOU S}UBWasSEs pue puegl Jo [esodsip 0} Ajlioyine sey (1210 pajebsiap Jo) JeoO Bulojuopy

pueT jo |esodsiq

€94

,€ abed

pawiojul 8q 0} JauIge)
"JOOIO LG UOIIDSS Sy} YIM UOIE}NSUOD Ul - 000‘0L 3 4O SS90X3 Ul aNn|eA [enpisal pajewlsg
palwlIojul 8q O} JBqUWIBIA J8uIge) J8dIO |G| uonoes sy}

YIM UONBYNSUOD Ul - 000‘0LF JO SSOIX8 Ul JOU ‘000‘GF JO SSSOXa Ul anjeA [enpisal pajewi}s]
"JOIO |G| UOIDSS 8y} YIM UOIE)NSUOD Ul - 000'GF JO SS80X8 Ul Jou anjeA |enpisal pajewnsy
-juawdinba snjdins jo sjes Joy Aioyine (1ao1yQ pajebslaq J0) seoiniag Auadoud Jo pesH

uawdinba snjdins Jo |esodsig

[A°E

9¢ obed

‘1ouno) Agq panoidde aq 0} sjunowe asay} JO SS89Xa Ul SUoIISINboy
“18UIqe) Ag |BeAoidde pajebajep - (Auadolid
pue pue| Jayjo 104) 000°0GZ3 Pue (BuisnoH [e100S 10j) 000’0053 Buipesdxa Jou sjunowy

Auadoud pue pue| jo uonisinboy

l¢d

G¢ abed

uonduosag

uoioasg

EEEIEIEY
o|ny

JaquinN
obed

TV xipuaddy

s}HwiIq [eIDUBUIS JO 3|NP3aYDS - S9NY |eldueul




v Jo v 98ed

Page 108

‘pajsanbal se jauiqe) Jo JaoIO LG Uoi0as ay} 0} payiodal aq
PINOYS SIY] "PSAIBM SJUNOWE PUB SUOSEaJ JO SPJ0JaJ UIEJal [|[BYS OYM ‘10}0alI(J JUBAS|aI BU} O}
saonjou abieyd yied Jed }19a1)s-10 plepuels Jo Buiniem ay) sjebajep ued 1o LG uoloas ayl

198Q peqg

76l

09 abed

"@9)lLWo) pajebs|ap Jayjo

J1o 1auIgEe) JO [eAoidde ay) yum AjUo 40 USHILIM 84 O} 000'GF JO SS80X8 Ul SJUNOWE [BNnpIAIPUI ||y
'000°G3

JO SS80X8 Ul JOU JUNOWE [BNPIAIPUI UE 10} ‘J8oIlO 1G] Uonoas ayl Ag 1gep peq e Jo 1o SlIAA

19°Q ped

L6l

09 ebed

90IAI9S JO pesH Jo
Jojoauig Aq panoidde aq 0} ‘pasiel S8)ou JIpalo ||e pue ‘GF UBY) SS8| SJUNOWE 10} Pasiel SS0I0AU|

So]0U JIpal) pue Sa0I0AUl SI0)ga(

WA

g6 abed

"S80IAIaS paleys OO UIyIMm Jad1yQ Joluag pajebajep
e Aq paalbe pue paxoayo aq o} Wa)sAs aoueuly 8y} uo pasiel sjeunol |je jo uodal Ajleq

sjeulnor

€1IH

GG abed

"S90IAIBS paleys 09 Ag panoidde aq 0} ‘s|gepioaeun Ji ‘Sa2IAISS pue spoob Joy JuswAhed-aid

sjuswAed

6'9H

€6 abed

‘1ounod ayj Aq 1dieoal Jo sAep o¢ uiyim pied aq 0} sjunodoe jo JuswAhed |y

sjuswAed

9'9H

26 abed

1800 LG uonoag Ainda( 40 1221Q LGL UONOSS - 000 0GZF JO SSBIXS Ul Sjunowy
190140 LG uoioag AindaQ 4o 18210 LG UOIROSS
10 92IAI8S JO pesH J0 40323l - 000'0GZ3F JO SS8IXa Ul Jou ‘000'00L F JO SS8IX8 Ul Sjunowy

92IAJ8S JO pesH
10 103081 Jo Jabeuely pasLoyne - 00000 L3 JO SS90X8 Ul JoU ‘000'0GF JO SSe0X8 Ul SJUNOWY

Jabeue Jo Japjoy 186png pasiioyine - 000‘0SF 4O SS8X8 Ul JoU ‘000013 JO SS80Xa Ul Sjunowy

Japjoy 19b6png pasuoyine - 000‘0L3 JO SS8IXa Ul JOU SjUNOWY

-:(sjunowe 126png uo paseq os|e jng) Alioyine

JO sjaAs] Buimojo} ay} ulyum paubisse Ajjewlou ‘SiapJlo [elolj0 pue suonisinbal aseyoind
JO Jo |enoidde ay) 4o} s8I0 10} SHWI| [enplAlpul 8Aoldde 0} 90IAI8S JO SpeaH 10 sJoyoalig

S80IAIBS PUB SPO0L) ‘SHIOAA 10} SIBPIO

L'GH

LG abed

000'G3 JO SS99X8 Ul sjunowe
Jo} ‘Auojeubis yueq pasuoyine Jayjoue Aq paubisiajunod aq 0} umelp sanbayo jenuew |y

sjuswAed sOyg pue anbay)

999

Ly ebed

000°GZ3 JO Ssaoxa Ul sjunouwe 1oy ‘Aiojeubis yueq pssiioyine
Jayjoue Aq paubisiejunod aq o0} sjuswhed SOvg Jo/pue umelp senbayo pasiendwod ||y

sjuswAed gOyg pue anbay)

€99

J{ abed

uonduosag

uoioasg

9ouaI9 ey
o|ny

JaquinN
obed

TV xipuaddy

s}HwiIq [eIDUBUIS JO 3|NP3aYDS - S9NY |eldueul




Page 109

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

PART 3 RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

Contents

PART 3A | INTRODUCTION Page //
PART 3B | COUNCIL FUNCTIONS Page //
PART 3C | COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS Page //
PART 3D | OFFICER NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS Page //
PART 3F | EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS Page //
Tables

1 Functions of Council Page //
2 Functions of Committees Page //
3 Functions of Committees Page //
4 Non-Executive Functions of Officers Page //
5 Executive Functions Page //
6 Additional Executive Functions of Officers Page //




Page 110 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

PART 3A

INTRODUCTION

3A.1

3A.2

3A.3

3A4

3A.5

3A.6

3A7

The Authority consists of a number of distinct elements which are each
allocated certain functions. The most important elements are Council (all
councillors), Committees (undertaking specific functions delegated by
Council/specified in statute) and the Executive (Leader and Cabinet). These
are the primary decision making bodies within the Authority and they exercise
different powers and functions. To assist the efficient working of the Authority
these bodies have delegated some of their functions to other parts of the
Authority including Sub-Committees and Officers.

This Part 3 of the Constitution describes the way in which the Authority's
powers and functions are distributed amongst the various parts of the
Authority and who may lawfully exercise those powers within any limits or in
accordance with any conditions.

The law' provides a framework under which functions:

(a) must be the responsibility of the Executive

(b) must not be the responsibility of the Executive

(c) may or may not be the responsibility of the Executive
(d) must be exercised by Full Council

Functions which are the responsibility of the Executive (called "Executive
Functions") may be delegated by the Leader of the Council to a Committee of the
Executive, an individual Member of the Executive (Cabinet Member) or an
Officer (exercising Executive Functions). Executive Functions may also be
delegated to another local authority or exercised jointly through a joint committee
or officer of another authority. The delegation of Executive Functions is set out in
Part 3E ‘Executive Functions’ below.

Functions which are not the responsibility of the Executive (called ‘non-
Executive Functions’) are the responsibility of Council, Committees (and Sub-
Committees) or Officers (exercising non-Executive Functions) and these
Functions are set out in Part 3B ‘Council Functions’, Part 3C ‘Committee
Functions’ and Part 3D ‘Officer Non-Executive Functions’ below.?

Any reference in this Part 3 of the Constitution to any Function, and any
delegation of power includes all action associated with that Function or
power and all related enforcement actions.

A Key Decision® shall only be taken by Cabinet, unless such a decision has been

! Local Authority (Functions & Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 as amended (see Appendix ??7?)

2 Non-Executive Functions may also be delegated to another local authority or exercised jointly through a joint
committee or officer of another local authority.

® Relates to Executive Functions and is defined in Article 13

2



Page 111 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

specifically delegated by the Leader to a Cabinet Member or an Officer or
unless the Leader, Chief Executive or Executive Director is exercising their
urgency powers (as set out in Part 3E below).

3A.8 A Significant Decision* shall only be taken by Council or a Committee unless
such a decision has been specifically delegated to a Sub-Committee or Officer
or unless the Chief Executive or Executive Director is exercising their urgency
powers (as set out in Part 3D below).

* Relates to non-Executive Functions and is defined in Article 13

3



Page 112 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

PART 3B
COUNCIL FUNCTIONS
3B.1  The functions that may only be exercised by Council are set out in Table 1

below:
Table 1

Determine which plans, strategies and polices shall comprise the Authority’s Policy
Framework® and from time to time approve, adopt and amend those plans,
strategies and policies

Determine and amend the Authority’s Budget®

Approve the Authority’s Statement of Accounts’

Approve a departure from the approved Policy Framework and/or the approved
Budget®

Appoint and remove the Leader’

Change the executive arrangements of the Authority '

Establish, abolish and decide the terms of reference and the composition of
Council Committees and make appointments including co-opted members to them
and other non-Executive bodies"’

Make and amend Procedural Rules, Financial Rules and Contract Rules'™

Change the name of the Borough or a parish"

Elect a Mayor (Council Chairman) and Deputy Mayor (Council Vice-Chairman)™

Confer the title of Honorary Alderman'® and grant the Freedom of the Borough

Promote or oppose local or personal bills

Where it is the function of the Authority, divide Parliamentary Constituencies and
local government electoral divisions into polling districts'®

Appoint an Electoral Registration Officer’” and Returning Officer for local
government elections'®

Make, amend, revoke or re-enact Byelaws

Dissolve small parish councils and make orders for grouping parishes, dissolving
groups and separating parishes from groups and make temporary appointments to
parish councils'®

Fill Council or Parish Council vacancies in the event of insufficient nominations

Change ordinary year of election of parish councillors®

Submit proposals to the Secretary of State for an Order for pilot schemes for local
elections?'

Confirm the appointment or dismissal of the Chief Executive (Head of Paid
Service) and designate officers as the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance
Officer*

5 Policy Framework is defined in Article 4

® Budget is defined in Article 4

” Accounts & Audit Regulations 1996 as amended

8 Subject to Rule 4 Budget & Policy Framework Rules (Part 4G)
° Stat ref //

%s// LGA 2000

"'5101 LGA 1972

255 135, ///, 151 LGA 1972 (For Procedural, Financial and Contract Rules see Part 4)
¥ 5574 & 75 LGA 1972

* §53-5 LGA 1972

155249 LGA 1972

'® 5518 & 31 Rep of the People Act 1983

"7 $8(2) Rep of the People Act 1983

'8 535 Rep of the People Act 1983

Y5510, 11 & 91 LGA 1972

2 553 LGPIH Act 2007

%' 310 Rep of the People Act 2000

2 35485 LG(MP)A89 and s151 LGA 1972



Page 113 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Make a scheme for the payment of allowances to Members and determine the
amount of all allowances payable to Members of the Council

Establish and abolish Joint Committees (in respect of non-Executive functions)®

Authorise applications to the Secretary of State for approval of housing land
transfers®

Undertake community governance review””

Adopt or amend the Code of Members’ Conduct™

Take decisions and/or give advice on matters brought to Council by the Leader,
Cabinet, Officers and other bodies or persons

Receive and consider statutory reports from the Head of Paid Service and the
Monitoring Officer®’

Determine whether local choice functions® will be exercised by Council or the
Cabinet and undertake such local choice functions as allocated to Council

Discharge any other function which is by law reserved to Council

25101(5) LGA 1972

* para // Fcts & Resps Regs 2000

» 579 LGPIH Act 2007

% See Part 5A. The statutory context of the Code may change under the Localism Act.
% s 4 and 5 Local Government (Misc Provisions) Act 1989

% The allocation of local choice functions is shown at Appendix /7.

5



Page 114 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

PART 3C
COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS

3C.1 Council has established”® the Committees set out in Table 2 below to
discharge certain functions which are neither reserved to Council nor
Executive or solely Executive functions. Council retains the right to a
concurrent and overriding exercise of all functions in Table 2.

3C.2 The Authority must have a Standards Committee® and at least one Overview
and Scrutiny Committee®' and these are set out in Table 3 below.

3C.3 A Committee may establish such Sub-Committee(s) as it sees fit to
undertake certain of its functions and the Tables below include such Sub-
Committees.

3C.4 Unless otherwise required by law, a Committee or Sub-Committee in Table 2
may determine not to exercise a function delegated to it and refer that
function upwards for determination by respectively Council or the parent

Committee.
Table 2
PLANNING COMMITTEE
Function Condition
Planning, etc. applications
Determine an application for: The power shall only be exercised where the
(a) full planning permission; application:
(b) outline planning permission: (a) if grant(_ed, V\{ould be a departure from or
(c) approval of reserved matters: would conflict with the development
] e _ ' plan/local development framework or other
(d) listed bunc‘jmg consent; planning policies adopted by the Council;
(e) conservation area consent, (b) is for a proposal which an Officer intends
(f) advertisement control consent to support and which has, prior to the expiry

of the statutory consultation period, been
objected to in writing by any local amenity
organisation, any residents association or
any statutory consultee; unless the Chairman
and Vice Chairman consider that the
objection is one which does not require
Committee assessment;

(c) is one in respect of which any Member
has, prior to the expiry of the statutory
consultation period, submitted a written
request and explanation to the Director
Environment that it be determined by the

2 pyrsuant to s101 LGA 1972, Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005
% potentially due for repeal under Localism Act
¥ Required by s21 LGA 2000

6




Page 115

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Planning Committee;

(d) is submitted by or on behalf of the
Council or the Gloucestershire County
Council;

(e) is submitted by a Member, an Executive
Director, Director or an existing employee of
the Built Environment Division;

(f) is one which the Planning Committee has
specifically required should be determined by
the Committee; or

(9) is one which the Director Built
Environment considers should be determined
by Planning Committee

Trees

Determine planning applications relating to
trees including (a) trees covered by Tree
Preservation Orders: and (b) trees within
Conservation Areas.

The power shall only be exercised in respect
of an application:

(a) submitted by a (i) a Member, (ii) a current
employee of the Built Environment or
Operations Divisions of the Council or (iii) the
Council or Gloucestershire County Council;

(b) which a Member of the Council has,
within the consultation period, requested
should be determined by Planning
Committee; or

(c) which the Director Built Environment
considers should be determined by Planning
Committee

Planning Policy

Act as consultee to Cabinet/Lead Member on
recommendations/responses for the adoption
and review of local and national planning
policy

Adoption of local planning policy is a Council
function

LICENSING COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Licensing Act 2003

Act as consultee to Cabinet/Lead Member on
recommendations/responses for the adoption
and review of the Licensing Policy Statement
and national licensing policy

Adoption of the Licensing Policy Statement is
a Council function

Establish Licensing Sub-Committees

Gambling Act 2005

Act as consultee to Cabinet/Lead Member on
recommendations/responses for the adoption
and review of the Licensing Policy Statement
and national licensing policy including
policies on casinos

Adoption of the Licensing Policy Statement is
a Council function

Determine an application for a premises
licence

If a relevant representation made

Determine an application for a variation to a

If a relevant representation is made

7




Page 116

Appendix 2.1

\All

27/9/11

premises licence

Determine an application for a transfer of a
premises licence

If a representation received from the

Gambling Commission

Determine an application for a licence to be
reinstated

If a relevant representation made

Determine an application for a provisional
statement

If a relevant representation made

Review a premises licence

All cases

Determine an application for club
gaming/club machine permit

If a relevant representation made

Cancel a club gaming/club machine permit

All cases

Consider a temporary use notice

If a relevant representation made

Decide to give a counter notice to a
temporary use notice

All cases

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

Determine an application for the grant variation
or renewal of a driver or vehicle licence

If a relevant objection is made

Determine an application for the grant or
variation of an operator’s licence

If a relevant objection is made

Determine an application for the transfer of a
vehicle licence

If a relevant objection is made

Suspend or continue the suspension of a
driver, vehicle or operator’s licence

Where an officer chooses not to exercise

delegated power

Revoke a driver, vehicle or operator licence

If a relevant representation is made

Adopt and amend standard conditions for
hackney carriage and private hire licences

Miscellaneous Licensing Functions
(including Street trading, Street collections,
House to house collections, Objects on the
highway, Sex establishments, Caravan sites,
Camping sites and moveable dwellings,
Acupuncture, tattooing, ear-piercing and
electrolysis, Game dealers, Scrapyards, Zoos,
Dangerous wild animals)

Determine any application for the grant,
renewal, variation or transfer of a licence,
consent, permit or permission

If a relevant objection is made

Revoke any licence, consent, permit or
permission

If a relevant representation is made

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Licensing Act 2003

Determine an application for a personal
licence

If a police objection

Determine an application for a personal
licence with unspent conviction(s)

All cases

Determine an application for a premises
licence/club premises certificate

If a relevant representation made

Determine an application for a provisional
statement

If a relevant representation made

Determine an application to vary a premises

If a relevant representation made

8




Page

117 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

licence/club premises certificate

Determine an application to vary a
designated premises supervisor

If a police objection

Determine an application for transfer of a
premises licence

If a police objection

To determine an application for interim
authorities

If a police objection

Determine an application to review a
premises licence/club premises certificate

All cases

Lodge an objection where the Council is a
consultee and not the relevant authority
considering the application

All cases

Determine a police objection to a temporary
event notice

All cases

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated

DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

APPEALS COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated

Table 3

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated
pending Localism Act

STANDARDS (INITIAL ASSESSMENT) SUB-COMMITTEE

Function Condition
Current terms of reference to be incorporated

pending Localism Act

STANDARDS (REVIEW) SUB-COMMITTEE

Function Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated
pending Localism Act

STANDARDS (DETERMINATION OF COMPLAINTS) SUB-COMMITTEE

Function

Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated
pending Localism Act

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Economy & Business Improvement

Function

Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated
pending O&S review

Environment

Function

| Condition




Page 118 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Current terms of reference to be incorporated
pending O&S review

Social & Community

Function Condition

Current terms of reference to be incorporated
pending O&S review

PART 3D

OFFICER NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

3D.1

3D.2

3D.3

3D.4

3D.5

3D.6

3D.7

3D.8

All Non-Executive Functions®?, other than those allocated in Parts 3B & C
above, are delegated to the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and
Directors as set out in Table 4 below.

In addition, the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors will
exercise powers or duties specifically delegated to them by Council,
Committee, Sub-Committee or Joint Committee.

The Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors are not required to
exercise all delegations personally and may sub-delegate any Function in this
Part 3D to Officers of suitable experience and seniority in accordance with the
process set out in Appendix [ ]

An Officer does not have delegated authority to take a Significant Decision®
unless (a) specifically authorised to do so by Council, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee, or (b) the Chief Executive or Executive
Director is taking action under urgency powers as set out in this Part 3D.

The fact that a function is delegated to an Officer under this Scheme does
not preclude the person or body which gave the delegation from exercising
the function in question.

Council or an Appropriate Committee may direct in any particular case that a
delegated power to an Officer in respect of a Non-Executive Function shall
not be exercised by the Officer and that the Function in question shall instead
be exercised by the Council or Appropriate Committee. Such direction must
be exercised in consultation with the Chief Executive or Appropriate
Executive Director or Director(s).

The Chief Executive, an Executive Director or Director may at their discretion
refer any matter to Council or Appropriate Committee for decision.

Officers have responsibility to report to Council, the Appropriate Committee,
the Mayor or Appropriate Committee Chairman matters that are of political or
strategic significance where that body or person is not required to make a
decision but where it is proper for them to be aware of the position.

%2 As set out in the Local Authority (Functions & Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 as amended (see
Appendix //)
% As defined in Article 13

10




Page 119

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

3D.9 Article 13 ‘Decision Making’ applies to the exercise of all Non-Executive

Functions by Officers in this Part 3D.

Table 4

Chief Executive

Function

Condition

Discharge any Non-Executive Function not
otherwise allocated in Parts 3B-D of the
Constitution

Unless prohibited by law

Discharge any Non-Executive Function
which is delegated to an Officer under Part
3D

Where that Officer is absent or
unable to act through conflict of
interest or otherwise

Except in the case of the Monitoring
Officer or Chief Finance Officer
where they have allocated the
function to their deputy

Take any decision in respect of a Non-
Executive Function, including a Significant
Decision®, in a situation where the matter
is so urgent and important that it does not
allow time for a report to be considered by
Council or Appropriate Committee.

Except as specifically allocated to
Council in Part 3B Table1.

Wherever possible this shall be done
in consultation with the Mayor or
Appropriate Committee Chairman.
The decision shall be reported to the
next scheduled meeting of Council or
the Appropriate Committee

Approve an urgent departure from the
Budget or Policy Framework

In accordance with Rule 4 Budget &
Policy Framework Rules®

The decision shall be reported to the
next scheduled ordinary meeting of
Council

Determine claims and payments in
accordance with the scheme of Member
Allowances

Discharge functions and take actions and
decisions in respect of elections, electoral
registration, referenda and related
legislation

Except as specifically allocated to
Council in Part 3B Table1

Discharge functions and responsibilities
with regard to parish councils

Except as specifically allocated to
Council in Part 3B Table1

Undertake the functions of the Head of Paid
Service including the duty, where he
considers it appropriate to do so, of
reporting to Council*® on the manner in
which the Authority functions are co-
ordinated, the number and grades of staff to
discharge those functions and the
organisation and proper management of
those staff

* As defined in Article 13
* See Part 4G
% s4 LG(MP)Act 1989

11




Page 120

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Approve reorganisation of functions and
restructuring of staff within service areas
and the transfer of staff and functions
between service areas

Except where the Chief Executive
considers it appropriate to refer a
report to Council®’

Approve redundancy of or an application for
early retirement (including ill health
retirement) of an employee

Except (in the case of the Chief
Executive, an Executive Director or
Director) as specifically allocated to
Council or Committee in Part 3B
Table 1 or 2.

Subject to corporate HR policies

Approve HR procedures and policies which
relate to employee terms and conditions of
employment

Undertake functions in respect of local
government pensions

Authorise any Officer to or for any legal
purpose including Proper and Statutory
Officer appointments®®

Unless otherwise prescribed by law
or allocated to Council in Part 3B

Executive Directors

Function

Condition

Discharge any Non-Executive Function
which is delegated to an Officer (including
the Chief Executive) under this Part 3E

Where that Officer is absent or
unable to act through conflict of
interest or otherwise

Except in the case of the Monitoring
Officer or Chief Finance Officer
where they have allocated the
function to their deputy

Undertake the statutory role of Head of Paid
Service

Where the Chief Executive is absent
or unable to act through conflict of
interest or otherwise. The role rests
with the Executive Director who is
deputising for that period

Director Resources

Function

Condition

Undertake the functions of the Authority’s
Chief Financial Officer to ensure proper
administration of the Authority’s financial
affairs®

Approve ex gratia and maladministration
compensation payments up to £5,000*

In consultation with an Executive
Director

Approve the carry forward of budget
underspend to next financial year for same
purpose as originally intended

Make minor changes to the Financial Rules
to reflect changes in fact and accounting
and audit requirements/best practice

Executive Board and Group Leaders
to be informed of any change which
the Director considers to be
significant

Make minor changes to the Contract Rules
to reflect changes in fact and procurement

Borough Solicitor, Executive Board
and Group Leaders to be informed of

7 Under s4 LG(MP) Act 1989

%8 See Appendix // for Proper and Statutory Officer appointments

¥ 5151 LGA1972
2 592 LGA 2000

12




Page 121

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

requirements and best practice

any change which the Director
considers to be significant

Director Commissioning

Function

Condition

Amend the Constitution to reflect changes
of fact including changes in allocation of
Functions

Executive Board, Borough Solicitor
and Group Leaders to be informed of
any change which the Director
considers to be significant

Director Built Environment

Function

Condition

Determine applications for:

(a) full planning permission;

(b) outline planning permission;
(c) approval of reserved matters;
(d) listed building consent;

(e) conservation area consent;

(f) advertisement control consent

Except as specifically allocated to
Planning Committee under Part 3C
Table 2

Determine planning applications relating to
trees including (a) trees covered by Tree
Preservation Orders: and (b) trees within
Conservation Areas.

Except as specifically allocated to
Planning Committee under Part 3C
Table 2

Other actions and decisions (including
enforcement, entry on to land and planning
agreements) as local planning authority
under the Town & Country Planning Act
1990, Planning (Listed Building &
Conservation Area) Act 1990 and all
planning related legislation

Except as specifically allocated to or
by Council

Highway authority functions relating to on-
street parking (as delegated to the Authority
by the County Council)

Authorise the stopping up or diversion of a
highway, footpath or bridleway or extinguish
public rights of way over land held for
planning purposes*’

Extinguish public right of way over land
acquired for clearance*?

Undertake functions relating to high hedges
and protection of important hedgerows*?

Director Wellbeing & Culture

Function

Condition

Determine any application for the grant,
renewal, variation or transfer of a licence,
consent, permit or permission

Except as specifically allocated to
Licensing Committee or Sub-
Committee under Part 3C Table 2

Other actions and decisions (including
enforcement and entry on to land) as

Except as specifically allocated to
Council, Licensing Committee or

*'s5 247, 257, 258 TCPA 1990
“2.5294 Housing Act 1981
“® Part 8 Anti-Social Beh Act 2003 & Hedgerows Regs 1997

13




Page 122

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

licensing authority under the Licensing Act
2003, Gambling Act 2005 and all other
licensing legislation

Sub-Committee under Part 3C Tables
1and?2

Highway authority functions (as delegated
to the Authority by the County Council)

Except as specifically allocated to
Licensing Committee under Part 3C
Table 2

Discharge all functions under the Health &
Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and other
health and safety related legislation
(otherwise than in the Authority’s capacity
as employer)

Discharge all functions under food and food
safety legislation which cannot be exercised
as Executive Functions

Chief Executive, Executive Directors & Directors

Function

Condition

Appoint, dismiss and discipline employees
within their service areas and determine
their individual terms and conditions of
employment and matters relating thereto

Director level and above is allocated
to Members in Part 3C Table 2.
Subject to Employment Rules (Part
4F) and corporate HR policies

Approve revenue budget virements
between service areas/budget heads not
exceeding £25,000

In consultation with Director
Resources. If exceeding £10,000,
Lead Member to be informed.

Set fees and charges and increase in line
with inflation

Lead Member or Appropriate
Committee Chairman to be informed

Borough Solicitor

Function

Condition

Undertake the functions of the Monitoring
Officer** prescribed by law and in this
Constitution

Make minor changes to the Procedure
Rules to reflect changes in fact, law and
best practice

Executive Board and Group Leaders
to be informed of any change which
the Borough Solicitor considers to be
significant

4 Borough Solicitor appointed as Monitoring Officer by Council under s5 LG(MP) Act 1989 and seconded from
Tewkesbury BC to the Authority for that purpose under s113 LGA 1972

14




Page 123 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

PART 3E

EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

General

3EA1

3E.2

3E.3

3E4

3E.5

3E.6

The Authority operates a Leader and Cabinet* form of Executive and the
Leader of the Council specifies how the functions of the Executive (known as
‘Executive Functions’) will be carried out.

In law*® the Leader of the Council may discharge any Functions and exercise
any powers which are the responsibility of the Executive; alternatively the
Leader may arrange for the discharge of any of those Functions by delegation
to any of the following:-

(a) the Cabinet

(b) a Cabinet Committee

(c) an individual Member of the Cabinet (Cabinet Member)

(d)  an Officer of the Council*’

(e)  another local authority®®

() jointly with another local authority through a joint committee or officer*®

Delegations

The Leader has exercised their power of delegation in the manner set out
below in Table 5 ‘General Scheme of Delegation of Executive Functions’ and
Table 6 ‘Additional Delegation of Executive Functions to Officers’. In Table 5
reference to Lead Member means a Cabinet Member acting in portfolio as set
out in Appendix [ ] and reference to ‘Officer means Chief Executive,
Executive Director or Director.

The Leader has directed that the Functions delegated to Cabinet and Lead
Members as set out in Table 5 shall not be sub-delegated to Officers without
his prior consent.

Each person or body to whom a Function is delegated in Tables 5 and 6 shall
be empowered to take any step in the course of or otherwise for the purposes
of or in connection with the discharge of the Function, do anything incidental
or conducive to discharge of the Function or do anything expedient in
connection with the discharge of the Function®’.

The Leader may amend their delegations at any time by giving notice in
writing to any person who currently holds the power and any person to whom
the power is now to be delegated and to the Chief Executive setting out the
change to be made; such amendment to take effect immediately on
confirmation of receipt by the Chief Executive or in their absence an

“® In December 2010 Council resolved to transfer from an ‘old style’ strong leader model (LGA 2000) to a strong
leader arrangement under the LGPIH 2007 to take effect after the May 2012 Borough elections.

“* LGA 2000 s14

“T If permitted by the Leader - Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee, a Cabinet Member, another local authority, a joint
committee or joint officer may also delegate Executive Functions to an Officer

“8 If permitted by the Leader - Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee, A Cabinet Member or an Officer may delegate
Executive Functions to another local authority

*® If permitted by the Leader - Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee, A Cabinet Member or an Officer may delegate
Executive Functions to be exercised jointly with another local authority through a joint committee or an officer
%0.548(4) LGA 2000

15



3E.7

3E.8

3E.9

Page 124 Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Executive Director. The Chief Executive will ensure that this Part 3 of the
Constitution is updated forthwith.

The Leader retains the right to a concurrent and overriding exercise of all
Executive Functions®".

In the absence of the Leader of the Council the person or persons
designated by the Leader and notified by the Leader to the Chief Executive
as having responsibility for the Leader's area(s) of responsibility is or are
authorised to exercise the functions of the Leader pursuant to the
Constitution.

Article 13 ‘Decision Making’ applies to the exercise of all Executive Functions
by the Leader, Cabinet, Cabinet Members or Officers in this Part 3E.

Officer Delegations - Special Provisions

3E.10 The Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors are not required to

3E.11

3E.12

3E.13

3E.14

3E.15

3E.16

exercise all delegations personally and may sub-delegate any Function in this
Part 3E to Officers of suitable experience and seniority in accordance with the
process set out in Appendix [ ]

An Officer does not have delegated authority to take a Key Decision®® unless
(a) specifically authorised to do so by the Leader or (b) the Chief Executive or
Executive Director is taking action under urgency powers as set out in this
Part 3E.

The fact that a function is delegated to an Officer under this Scheme does
not preclude the person or body which gave the delegation from exercising
the function in question.

The Leader may direct in any particular case that a delegated power to an
Officer in respect of an Executive Function shall not be exercised by an
Officer and that the Function in question shall instead be exercised by the
Leader or Cabinet. Such direction must be exercised in consultation with the
Chief Executive or Appropriate Executive Director or Director(s).

A Lead Member may in respect of an Executive Function which falls within
their portfolio direct in any particular case that a delegated power to an
Officer shall not be exercised by the Officer and shall instead be exercised by
them as Lead Member. Such direction must be exercised in consultation with
the Chief Executive or Appropriate Executive Director(s) or Director(s) and
the Leader.

The Chief Executive, or Executive Director or a Director may at their
discretion refer any matter to the Leader, the Cabinet or a Lead Member for
decision.

Officers have responsibility to report to the Leader, Cabinet or the Lead
Member matters that are of political or strategic significance where that body
or person is not required to make a decision but where it is proper for them to
be aware of the position.

' LGA 2000 s14
%2 As defined in Article 13

16



Table 5 General Scheme of Delegation of Executive Functions

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

FUNCTION

Leader

Lead
Member®®

Cabinet

Joint
Committee

Other Local
Authority

Officer®™*

Policy & Strategy

Recommend to Council all plans strategies and policies
which comprise the Policy Framework®® and initiate
consultation on such plans policies and strategies

Agree in year changes to the Policy Framework to the
extent permitted by Council or by the Constitution

Refer to Cabinet for discussion those plans strategies
and policies which comprise the Policy Framework and
initiate any appropriate consultation on them

Take urgent decisions that are contrary to or not wholly
in accordance with the Policy Framework™®

CE

Refer to Cabinet those plans strategies and policies
which do not comprise the Policy Framework and
require Cabinet approval®

All

Agree/amend plans strategies and policies which do
not comprise the Policy Framework and require
Cabinet approval

Agree/amend plans strategies and policies which do
not comprise the Policy Framework and require
Cabinet Member approval (except Key Decisions®®)

Agree/amend plans strategies and policies which do
not comprise the Policy Framework and require Officer
approval (except Key Decisions)

All

Respond to consultations from Government, local
authority associations and similar bodies which have
policy or cross service issues

%% As defined in Appendix //

* CE - Chief Executive, ED — Executive Director, DR — Director Commissioning, DR — Director Resources, All — Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Directors

*® As defined in Article 4

% Subject to Rule 4 Budget & Policy Framework Rules (Part 4G)
*7 See Appendix //

%8 Key Decision is defined in Article 13

17

Gz abed



Appendix 2.1

\All

27/9/11
Respond to all other consultations CE/ED
Implement the Authority’s Risk Management Policy & All
Strategy
Finance
Prepare and consult on the Authority’s Budget>® and
recommend to Council for approval
Receive and consider quarterly budget monitoring
reports
Take urgent decisions® that are contrary to or not CE
wholly in accordance with the Budget
Make bid for funding with resource implications
exceeding £250,000
Make bid for funding with resource implications
exceeding £100,000 and not exceeding £250,000
Make bid for funding with resource implications not Al
exceeding £100,000
Propose to Council a contribution to reserves above the
level set in the Budget
Agree use of charging and trading powers
Set fees and charges
Agree increase in fees and charges by more than
inflation
Agree increase in fees and charges in line with inflation All
Assets & Property
Agree asset management plan
Dispose of non-land assets with a value exceeding
£2,500
Dispose of non-land assets with a value not exceeding All
£2,500
Make compulsory purchase order (CPO)®’
Acquire land or property following CPO DR
Acquire other land or property or acquire a lease or

% As defined in Article 4
© Subject to Rule 4 Budget & Policy Framework Rules (Part 4G)
' Leg ref /111

18

9z | ebed



Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

tenancy agreement where the notional value exceeds
£250,000

Acquire other land or property or acquire a lease or
tenancy agreement where the notional value does not 4
exceed £250,000

Agree Void/Surplus Property Register in consultation
with Asset Management Working Group

DR

Dispose of or exchange land or property with a notional
value exceeding £250,000 including at an undervalue®

Dispose of or exchange land or property with a notional
value exceeding £10,000 and not exceeding £250,000 v
including at an undervalue®

Dispose of or exchange land or property with a notional
value not exceeding £10,000 including at an
undervalue®

DR

Dispose of or exchange land or property where there is
a statutory right to acquire

DR

Dedicate sell or lease land for highway purposes and
for public utilities where this does not materially v
interfere with the proper management of the
land/retained land or its investment value

Apply to Secretary of State to dispose of housing land v
under Housing Act 1985°°

Authorise the disposal of public open space®

<<

Authorise the disposal of statutory allotments®’

Allocate and re-allocate all Authority owned assets,
land and property between service areas

Authorise a change in use of Authority owned land or v
property®®

%2 A disposal at less than best consideration requires Secretary of State specific approval or general consent
B A disposal at less than best consideration requires Secretary of State specific approval or general consent
5 A disposal at less than best consideration requires Secretary of State specific approval or general consent
e Subject to Council authorisation (para // LG (Functions & Responsibilities Regulations) 2000)

% S1// LGA1972

°7 Stat refs //

%8 Planning permission may be required

19

/2| abed



Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Authorise lease/rights/privileges of all Council owned
land or property to external bodies where the annual
rental or capital value exceeds £250,000

Authorise lease/rights/privileges of all Council owned
land or property to external bodies where the annual
rental or capital value does not exceed £250,000

DR

Authorise assignment or surrender of
lease/rights/privileges of a capital value exceeding
£250,000

Authorise assignment or surrender of
lease/rights/privileges of a capital value exceeding
£10,000 and not exceeding £250,000

Authorise assignment or surrender of
lease/rights/privileges of a capital value not exceeding
£10,000

DR

Authorise rent subsidy to third party on Authority owned
land

Grants

Agree service level agreements and service level
agreement funding in respect of voluntary organisations

Make one off grants (excluding rent subsidy on
Authority owned land) to voluntary organisations
exceeding £10,000 pa

Make one off grants (excluding rent subsidy on
Authority owned land) to voluntary organisations not
exceeding £10,000 pa

Service Delivery

Take all steps reasonably necessary to facilitate the
effective and efficient delivery of services within their
portfolio

Take all steps reasonably necessary for the effective
and efficient delivery of services for which they are
responsible

GJwc®®

TBC/
CcDC™

All

% Subject to the terms of the delegation agreement to the Glos Joint Waste Committee
™ Subject to the terms of the delegation agreements to Tewkesbury BC and Cotswold DC

20

8z | ebed



Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Undertake internal transformation and improvement of
the Authority’s services

CE

Commissioning & Contracts

Approve the means by which the Authority’s services
will be provided including through a local authority
company, community interest company, private
organisation, trust or public/private partnership

Arrange for any Executive Function to be undertaken
by another local authority

Arrange for any Executive Function to be exercised
jointly with one or more local authorities through a Joint
Committee or an Officer (including an officer of another
local authority)

Appoint Member to a Joint Committee which
undertakes Executive Functions and decide on the
number of Members to be appointed and their term of
office

Agree to Council appointment of Member to a Joint
Committee which undertakes at least one Executive
Function and agree the number of members to be
appointed and their term of office”’

Represent (or arrange for a Cabinet Member or Officer
to represent) the Authority as shareholder in a
company in which the Authority holds an interest

Monitor the performance of contracts and service level
agreements in respect of all non-internally provided
services

DC

Engage consultant or locum not exceeding £50,000 pa

All

Engage consultant or locum exceeding £50,000 pa

Accept tenders within budget and exceeding £500,000

NN

Accept tenders within budget and not exceeding
£500,000 and exceeding £100,000

Accept tenders and quotations within budget and not
exceeding £100,000

All

™ Stat ref ///

21

62| abed



Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Approve waiver to Contract Rules where the value is in
excess of £50,000

Approve waiver to Contract Rules where the value
does not exceed £50,000

ED

Approve waiver to Contract Rules where the Council’s
‘major incident plan’ or business recovery plan is being
activated

CE

Approve departure from Contract Rules for acceptance
of tender or quotation

Approve departure from Contract Rules for acceptance
of tender or quotation where urgent and with the prior
approval of Leader

CE

Local Strategic Partnerships

Establish a policy or strategic framework for a
partnership

Establish a partnership’s annual work programme and
make in year changes

Implement an agreed policy or strategy

All

Constitution & Democratic Process

Make Key Decision’

Make urgent Key Decision”

CE/ED

Respond to call-in of a decision’™

<<

ASANAN

All

Respond to petition to Council

Appoint and remove Cabinet Members and decide their
portfolios

Establish Cabinet Committee or working group

Delegate Executive Function to an Officer

Delegate Executive Function to an Officer with prior
consent of Leader

Legal Services (One Legal)

Undertake the role and functions of the Authority’s

TBC™

2 As defined in Article 13.

™ The Leader, Chief Executive or Executive Directors may take an urgent key decision in accordance with para /// Access to Information Rules (Part 4//). Also see Table 6.

™ Whoever took the decision will respond

& Tewkesbury BC pursuant to s101 LGA 1972/s19 LGA 2000. wef 30/11/09. See Appendix // for list of functions.

0¢| ebed



Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Borough Solicitor and chief legal officer and provide the
Authority’s legal service

Finance, HR and Procurement (GO)

To be completed

cbc”

Waste

To be completed

GJwWcC”’

General

Undertake such specific Executive Function as may be
allocated from time to time by the Leader

All

Undertake any Executive Function which is delegated
to an Officer where the Leader directs it should be
exercised by Cabinet

Undertake any Executive Function which is delegated
to an Officer where the Officer decides to refer it to
Cabinet

Undertake any Executive Function delegated to a
Cabinet Member where through absence, conflict or
otherwise the Cabinet Member is unable to act

Undertake any Executive Function delegated to
Cabinet which in the opinion of the Chief Executive
requires an urgent decision before the next meeting of
Cabinet

" Cotswold DC pursuant to s101 LGA 1972/s19 LGA 2000. wef 1/4/12. See Appendix // for list of functions.
7 Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee pursuant to s// LGA 2000. wef ////. See Appendix // for list of functions.

23

LS| abed



Page 132

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

ADDITIONAL DELEGATION OF EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS TO OFFICERS

3E.17 All Executive Functions, other than those allocated in Table 5 of this Part 3E,
are delegated to the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors as

set out in Table 6 below.

3E.18

In addition, the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors will

exercise powers or duties specifically delegated to them by the Leader,

Cabinet or a Cabinet Member’®.

Table 6

Chief Executive

Function

Condition

Discharge any Executive Function not
otherwise allocated in Part 3E of the
Constitution

Discharge any Executive Function which is
delegated to an Officer under Part 3E

Where that Officer is absent or
unable to act through conflict of
interest or otherwise

Take any decision in respect of an
Executive Function, including a Key
Decision’, in a situation where the matter
is so urgent and important that it does not
allow time for a report to be considered by
the Leader, Cabinet or Lead Member.

Wherever possible this shall be done
in consultation with the Leader and
Lead Member (where not the
Leader). The decision shall be
reported to the next scheduled
ordinary Cabinet meeting.

Authorise the use of the Authority’s Coat of
Arms and make arrangements for civic and
twinning functions

Authorising any Officer to or for any legal
purpose including Statutory Officer
appointments®’

Unless otherwise prescribed by law
or allocated to Council in Part 3B

The making of arrangements with other
local authorities for the placing of staff at
the disposal of those other authorities®'

Approve transformational change, cultural
and organisational development policies

Except those relating to terms and
conditions of employment®

Executive Directors

Function

Condition

Discharge any Executive Function which is
delegated to an Officer (including the Chief
Executive) under this Part 3E

Where that Officer is absent or
unable to act through conflict of
interest or otherwise.

"8 Cabinet or a Cabinet Member may only delegate to an Officer with the prior approval of the Leader

" As defined in Article 13

& See Appendix ?? for Proper and Statutory Officer appointments

8 5113 LGA 1972

® This is a Non-Executive Function and is delegated in Part 3D

24




Page 133

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Undertake the role of Chief Executive

Where the Chief Executive is absent
or unable to act through conflict of
interest or otherwise. This Function
falls to the Executive Director who is
deputising for that period

Undertake emergency planning and civil
defence functions

Director Resources

Function

Condition

Corporate Finance
Council Tax Benefit
Creditors

Debtors

Insurance

Fraud

Front Line Services
Council Tax

Housing Benefit
Internal Audit

IT&T

Procurement
Corporate Governance
Risk Management
Land/Property/Asset Management
Public Toilets

Except those Functions which are
specifically allocated to Cabinet or a
Cabinet Member, Joint Committee or
other local authority or other Officer
under Part 3E

Director Commissioning

Function

Condition

Elections & Electoral Registration
Democratic Services & Scrutiny
Shared Services

Equalities

Corporate Performance
Community Development & Regeneration
Voluntary/Community Groups
Community Safety Partnerships
Community & Young People Partnerships
Communications

Corporate Policy

Strategic Commissioning
CSP/Leader’s Group

South West Councils

Parish Liaison
Sustainability/Climate Change
Twinning & Civic

Housing - Public (client side)
Street Cleaning (client side)
Waste Services (client side)
Recycling (client side)
Complaints/maladministration

Except those Functions which are
specifically allocated to Cabinet or a
Cabinet Member, Joint Committee or
other local authority or other Officer
under Part 3E

Director Organisational Development & Change

Function

| Condition

25




Page 134

Appendix 2.1

V1l
27/9/11

Human Resources
Learning & Organisational Development
Payroll Pensions & Member Allowances

Except those Functions which are
specifically allocated to Cabinet or a
Cabinet Member, Joint Committee or
other local authority or other Officer
under Part 3E

Director Built Environment

Function

Condition

Building Control

Conservation & Urban Design
Development Control

Land Charges

Planning Policy (inc Joint Core Strategy)
Strategic Land Use

Major Sites Development
Transport Planning

Sustainable Travel

Car Parking (on and off street) inc
enforcement

Homelessness

Housing Needs

Housing - Private

Housing Enabling

Lifetime Housing

Supporting People (Housing)
Economic Development

Except those Functions which are
specifically allocated to Cabinet or a
Cabinet Member, Joint Committee or
other local authority or other Officer
under Part 3E

Director Wellbeing & Culture

Function

Condition

Children & Young People - delivery
Healthy Living

Art Gallery & Museum
Arts/Festivals/Entertainments
Community Play Development
Leisure@Cheltenham

Sports Development

Tourism

Allotments

Cemetery & Crematorium

Tree Management & Protection (Parks)
Parks & Open Spaces

Licensing

Health & Safety

Environmental Health

Environmental Pollution & Contaminated

Land

Community Safety

Abandoned Vehicles

Environmental maintenance/enforcement

Except those Functions which are
specifically allocated to Cabinet or a
Cabinet Member, Joint Committee or
other local authority or other Officer
under Part 3E

26




Page 135

saljilenb3

S90INISS paleys

S90oUBMO||E Slaquwial pue suoisuad ‘[|olhed
ain)no pue juawdojana( |euoijesiuebio
wswdojansp uonesiuebiQ pue Buluies

dH
S82IAI8S Dljesoowa(

1l

uostel| Auiniog

splepue)s g Jao1O Bulojiuopy

[eba

uonjeJisibay |elojos|3 pue suoos|g
uonnyisuo)

(su01399]|0D dNUBASY JUI) SB2IAISS Ul Juol

S80IAIeg 8)elodlo) Jaquispy Jauige)

Aey ujod 41D

aoueul
sdnoub Ajunwwod/Aieyunjon
uonelauabay ¥ Juswdojarsg Ajlunwiwio)

uswdojanag
Aunwwio) ¥ 8dueul{ Jaquaj Jasuige)

J8}SgaA uyor Jiio

asn pueT o16ajelis

Hodly al1ysia}saonols)

Buiuue|q Aousbiowg

ABeyeng 2109 julor/4gT/ueld (007
abueyo ajewl|o pue Ajjigeulelsng
Buluuim |

uosiel] ysled

s|louNo0) 1S8AN Yinos

uswdojaaaq 21WouU092g
sdiysitauped pue Aoljod

dnoug siepea/diysisuped d1bsielis weyuasyayo
suolesIuNwWWon)

Buluoissiwwo? oibsjens
90UBUIBAOS) 8)elodio)

Jopea

uepJor aAs1S JIID

104 JaquIB|\ pea

oL

aweN

2°C xipuaddy

SOITO41¥0d ¥3diNIIN av3a




Page 136

(syeq) uswabeuely aal ]
Buiues|) 108118

Buiphoay

sjgjio] dljgnd

syied

swabeuey 1994
JUBW2104UT/S0UBUSUIE\ [BIUSLIUOIIAUT
wnuojewsal) pue Alsjawa)
SUETTIEV

sle) pauopueqy

(D99D) 1enel] ajqeule}sng

Aulqeureisng Jaqwia|y Jauiqe)

ulogAypn Jeboy Jj1D

Buisuaoi

Buin AuyyesH

fiajes pue yyesH pue Ajojes poo4
pueT] psjeuiwejuo) pue uoin|jod Auj
sdiysiauped — A1ajeg Ajunwwio)
sdiysiauped — ajdoad BunoA % uaip|iyd
Kianjpq — Asyes Alunwiwio)

Kianijeq — sjdoad BunoA % uaipjiyo
(Woddns pajejas Buisnoy) sjdoad Buioddng
SSWOH awneHT

ollgnd — BuisnoH

ajenld — BuisnoH

(Aouaioiye ABiaususwadiojus/sjueln)
spaspN BuisnoH/ssausss|awoH

Kayes g BuisnoH Jaquwiap Jouiqed

Aingpng euey 4110

3plid JAID

Jswabeue| Jossy/Auadold
uBisaqyubisaq ueqin

s9al] }924)S

Buiuue|d

[9Ael] Aseuolssaouo)
Bupped jed

Buingeug BuisnoH

JUsSWIUOJIAUT }ing Jaquis|y Jaulgqe)

uosmey uyor Jj|o

Juswiabeuey ysiy
aouewloLad
Ipny |eulaju]




Page 137

ws1Ino |

Jswdojana suodg
weyuayayn®alinsia]
uswdojanaq Ae|d Alunwwo)
SjuswuleusluT/S|eAI}SS4/SUY
wnasnp g Aig|jes) uy

alnyn) 3 Wodg Jaquispy }auige)

Ae|uiyoN maipuy 41D

u01309||0D SISEAA
(syied) uonoelold aal]




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 138



Page 139

sjuswaalbe eale
[eoo| 0} Bunejal |L00Z 10V YIESH Ul JUSWSAJOAU| Jl|gNd PUE JUSWUIBAOS) [ED0T €L PUB || ‘0L ‘90 SUOI}08S Japun uoijouny Auy

saljloyine Jayjo asoy} Jo [esodsip 8y} Je Jejs jo buioe|d ayj 1o} sanlIoyINe [e20] JaYlo Y)im sjuswabuele Jo buiyew ay]

(uonouny 1DUNO) B a9 |leys uoneulwouuawiluiodde ayy saibe os jou op sdnoub |eanijod ay} aiaym ased

Aue u]) 1ouno) ayy uo sdnoub |eanjod ay} usamiaq paalbe si uoleulwouuswiuiodde ay) (Z) pue :uoiouNn SAIINDSX3-UON € JO
10adsal ul jou si juswjuiodde ayj (1) yey3 papiaoad juswiulodde yons Aue Jo uoiesonal ayj pue Apog e yons Jo aaIWwWod-gns
10 98)llwod Aue 0} () U0 ‘saloyne alow J0 OM} Jo aajwwod juiol e (1) Ayuoyiny ayi (1) - ueyy Jayjo Apoq Aue 03 (q) Auoyiny
ay} Aq pakojdwa sl ays 1o ay ydiym ul a21,)0 ue ueyj Jayio ad1yo Aue o} (e) — [enplaipul Aue Jo uoieulwouuswuiodde ay |

syiom sAkemybiy Jo uoindoaxa ay} 1o} sjuswaalbe jo Bunew ay |

9/61 VY
(SUOISINOId SNOBUE|[3SI|\) JUSWUIBAOL) [B20T 8} JO 9| UOIID8S Japun pue| ul pajsalajul suosiad jo sienoiued jo Buiuiejqo sy

puUE| Ul s}salajul 0} Se 066 1OV buluue|d Auno) pue UMo| 8y} JO OEE UOI0aS Japun uoljew.oul jo Buiuiejqo ay |

aouesinu A1ojnjels e Jo aoua)sixe ay) 0} se juiejdwod Aue jo uonebisaaul ay|

aouesinu Alojnjels Aue 108)ep 0} eale s Ajuoyiny ay) Jo uonoadsul ay|

eale s Aioyiny ay; ul Aldde pjnoys €66 10V @ouesinN Alojnjeis pue asioN 8y} 0} ¢ 8|npayds ey} uonnjosal e jo buissed ay|

aouesinu AIojnjej}s Jo 10adsal Ul 80130U JusWwa)eqe Jo adIAISS 8y |

Jle Jo Juswabeuew ay} Jo uonnjod Jo |0J3U02 8y} 0} Bunjejas uonouny Aue jo abieyosip ay|

pue| pajeulweiuod o} buieal uonouny Auy

Ajuoyiny ayj Jo Jeyaq uo 1o Agq apew uoisioap Aue jsuiebe |eadde ue Jo uoljeulws}sp ay

papuauwe se suoljenbay (puelbug)(sanjiqisuodsay ¥ suoioun)
SaI}I0YINY [BD0T] BY} 0} | 9|NPayds Jo g uoljeinbay ul 0} pallajal Jo paioads uoijouny e ueyy Jayjo Joy [BO0| B Japun uoljouny Auy

uonoung

€' xipuaddy

sSuoIjounN4 dAIINIAXT SE [I19uno) Aq pajeso|y

SNOILONNAH FJI0OHD VIO




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 140



Page 141

M3IABI JBpUN | G002 N 1uIge) pue buiaqiepn | euoisAji suepr pue uodg ABajens |einyn)
Loz | sooz N TRlils%e) Buluoissiwwo) umoq usIsH Aajes ABajels uononpay
pue BuisnoH JapJosiq pue awu)
zL-ey | L1-1enw A [1oUN0Y Buluoissiwwod [ uosqgio pieyory JapeaT Abajels ajelodio)
zi-rey | Li-ten $90In0SaYy $90IN0SaYy uop|ays yep JapeaT Ad1j10d Juswabeuely
Joy08.1Q 3su ajelodio)
ZL-AON | 0L-AON A UIge) abueyn | Aypedop aine ERINER Aoljod Ajeses
pue qO ‘e|doad ajelodio) pue yyeay ayelodio)
Joulgen suonelsado Ao|Ix3J eleqieg | juswuosAUg Aoijod
jing | Juswsaoiojus sjeiodion
Ajlenuue | 6002 Buluoissiwwon Buluoissiwwon ICEEIYEIRY Ao1jod sjuieldwo)
Joy08.1Q
pauueld sauoN | #00¢ JBqWIBI\ pes buluoissiwwo) | uosqio pleyory Japean Abajes;s
SUOIEBOIUNWIWOYD
Go-Aely A 1UIge) Buluoissiwwon SUIYLSO suer | juswuoldiAug Abaje.is
Jing abueyo sjewn|o
L 1-190 A JaquIs|\ peaT JuswiuoJiAug }jing Aied uamQ | juswuolirue yeig
nng KBajens Bunped ten
Loz | oLoz J0308.1Q olbajens | simeq sweyels | juswdojanaQ ue|d
SAI}NOaX] Aunwwon | Aousabunuoo ssauisng
pue aoueul
Loz | oroz A uIge) S92IN0SaY suaqoy pineq | Juswuoliaug ue|d
jing Jswabeuew jassy
Joulqe) alnyno sdijjiyd eluos alnyno Abajes;s
pue Buiaq|iapn pue uodg swdojanap suy
M3IABI Japun Apuaun) | 2o-unp N Jouiqe) $92In0SaYy uop|aus Yew EERINES Aoijod uondn.iiod
ajelodion UE pue pneyy Uy
malnal Jspun | 80-09Q $90In0SaYy $90IN0SaY | XO09|00AA |NEd saoInes | Aoljod asn a|qejdasoy
JoyoalIQ ajelodion
|enoidde Jaquisw
1s€| | Juswaajoaul [eNpIAIpUI JO 1uIge)
a]ep Malnal IxaN | Jo s1eq JuIge) Apoq Buinoiddy uoIsing 19210 pea Joapil aweN

¢ xipuaddy

a|qe] Aoijod 9jes0dion




Page 142

MmalAal Japun | 9o-unp [1oUN0D yJomawelq/ueld
uswdojana( |e207
Z¢l-a8d | 60-1eN [1ounoy suojesadQ | buippe|o JoraiL JSETETS (G00z 1V buljques
pue BuisnoH pue €00¢ 1oV
Buisusol) sjuswalels
Koljod Buisuaoi
Allenuuy yelq 118 S92IN0SaYy uop|ays Jen saoInes | AbBajess uswabeuepy
ajelodion uoneuwLou|
118 $92IN0Say | Y002|00AA INEd S92IAISS ABajens | 0|
ajelodio)
MaIABl JBpun | 6002 $90In0SaYy $90IN0SaY | XO09|00AA |NEd saoInles | Aoljod pue Alnossg | |
Jojoallg ajelodion
¢L0¢ Yyolely | go-uer jauiqed ‘AUz Jing Aeoe)s uep SEIE Abejens
Jo} padojanap bBuleg pue BuisnoH SSOUSSO|oWOoH
pue BuisnoH
waung | 00z S82IN0SaYy buluoissiwwon SYILID auer Sa2IAISS Aoijod
Jojoalq ajesodio) | uonewloul Jo wopaal
M3IABI Japun | go-lely 1uIge) puluoissiwwon | uosgi pleyory S92IAISS (800Z Jen) Aoijod
ajesodion Rusianip pue Ayjenbg
waund | /661 uIge) "AUT }jIng suaqoy pineq | wuswuoldiaug Abajens juswabeuew
jing [ejuswiuoJIAUg
palinbal sy | /0-1el\ 9AOQE PaIan0) ‘AUT JINg Aed uamQ | juswuoliAug A21j0d Juswa2i0iu]
jing ajesodion
MalAal Japun | 8002 $901n0SaYy $901N0S9Yy uopays yep JapeaT Aoljod jlewg
Jojoalg
,10z | 2002 1ouIge) Buluoissiwwon SUILIS) auer Japea ABajeuys juswdojanap
21WOouU09]
zL-int | oL-Inr S82IN0SaYy S82IN0SaY uop|ays yepy | uswdoensg Aoijod
J0308lIQ Aunwwon Juswsbeuew 1qaQq
pue aoueul
M3IA3I Japun | 0102 $92IN0SaYy $92IN0SaYy uop|ays Yen FERINER Aaijod Ayjenb ejeqg
Jojoalq ajeso0dion
malnal Japun | 6002 Buluoissiwwon saolnes | Aoijod uonosyold ejeq
Jojoalq ajeso0dion
ainyno ainynn




Page 143

¢Loz | oloz abueyd [ Auypedop ainpe saoines | Aoljod Buimolq sjsIym
aAlNoaX3 JaIYyD pue O 9|doad ajeso0dion
zL-len | L L-ten [1oUn0H S92IN0SaY uop|ays yepy | uswdoasg Abajens
Aunwwo) | juswebeuepy Ainseal|
pue sdueul
Z1-190 | 20100 1UIge) Puluoissiwwon | uosqgio pieyory JapeaT Abaje.is
Ajunwwood sjgeuleisng
waun) | oL-Inre uIge) S92IN0SaY uop|ays yepy | uswdonsg Abajeus buioinog
Alunwwon
pue aoueul
eisuo) | 60-100 UIge) Buluoissiwwon umoug Aoel| Aajes Aoijod
pue BbuisnoH | sjdoad s|qeiaulnA pue
ualp|iyo buipienbajes
waung | 01-08a IENGER) JuUsWuoJIAUT }jing fsuewo] JIM | uswuodiaug Yiomauiely
Jing ubiseq ueqin
Asuewo] | 00z uIge) ain}n) pue uodg sdijjiyd eluos ainyny Abajens sue 21gng
JIM AQ mainal Jepun pue Lodg
Z102 0L0zZ UIge) $90In0SaYy X0) ejgabuy AbBajesys Juswiaindoid
Jsuiqed
MaIA_) Japun | y0-bny S92IN0SaY S92IN0Say | HD02|00AA INEd S92INISS Aoijod auoyd ajiqop
J0308l1q ajeso0dion
zL-iey | L1-1en [1oUN0D $90.N0SaYy uopays yep | juswdojensp Abaje.is
Aunwwon | |eloueul wis) wnipspy

pue aoueul




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 144



Page 145

SJ32O 3y}
B9AIN09X] 1eyy bunebsjap-gns
$¥BIYD SJ22O 1ey} ainsuzg
uolIN}ISuU0 ay) ssao0.d
ul sajdiounid Bujen anp Jo apIsino spew
JO}DI|0S ¢loc uoisioa(g sy} o J0}2I|0S Buieq suoisiosp
ybBnolog Aenuep | ssaulsnqol ainsug ybBnolog SJ901O JO YSIY
‘pasiwIuIW SI
3SI SIY} ey} ainsua
sjuswabuelie
Bulioyuow 1obpnq
[ew.o) yium pajdnoo
9|04 Bunisuped
ssauIsng Sa2IAISS "spuny o1ignd
[eloueul ay} pue 10 asn ajeudoiddeul
(dY3 mau ;/ waysAhs JO MSl 3y}
wswabeuew 9sEealJoul pjnoo sajn.
[eroueuly Bunsixa ay) [eloueUl} SY} UIYHIM
uIyym) sassasoud SHWI| Ul sesealdul /
Eellle) [0JU0d [eloueul J204O | sanliqixalj jleuonippe
|Gl uonoesg cLiE/Le Buipoddns ay) | jdeooy Ll L] L] Liese LGl uooesg leuajod ay |
MB3INB
aAIsuayaldwod
jou 1nq
[euoises20 ybnouyy
uayeuapun Buislie sassaosold
Buiaqg sI uonnuIsuod pue suoIsIoap
J0}2I|0S 10 M3IABI J0}2I|0S 0} abuajeyo
ybnolog LL/oLicL aAIsuayaidwoy | eonpay el L] € L1/9/9 ybnolog Jo s)su |eba
._wv_uw__w M“ 139130 pasiel laumQ "Jol
pasidjsues a|qisuodsay aulpeaq uonody jo43uo) | ai098 1 1 ajeq Sy uonduasap ysiy | Asiy
pooy!IaMI|
x Joeduwi)
9102s
ysu Buibeuepy )su euibuQ )SH 9yl
¥ xipuaddy JUBWISSASSY Sy




Page 146

Buluoissiwwo)
Joyoalq

1102/50/1€

seapl pue

SM3IA JIay} Bujass
AQ mainal ay) Bulnp
ul Anq s19o1440

pue siaquiaw }99)

aonpay

Ll
-02/6/.L¢

Buluoissiwwo)
Jojyoalq

paJinbal sawo2jno
ay} Buuaniep

ul |nySS829Ns 8q

10u Aew Aay} si921440
pue siaqwaw ssoloe
alnyno ul abueyd

e Aq pauoddns

Jou aJe sjuswabuele
M3U Aue JI — MaInaYy
Aunjniog 9 MainBAO

suoIsIoap JIsy}
Jo} Ayjigeyunoooe
pue suonebijqo pue
2doos puejsiapun




Agenda ltem 11
Page 147

Cheltenham Borough Council
Council 10 October 2011

Statement of Accounts (including Annual Governance Statement)
2010/11

Report of the Chair of the Audit Committee

Accountable member Cabinet Member for Community Development and Finance

Accountable officer Director of Resources, Mark Sheldon

Accountable scrutiny Audit Committee

committee

Ward(s) affected

Significant Decision Yes

Executive summary The purpose of this report is to notify Council of the deliberations and
decisions made by the Audit Committee in its review of the council’s
Statement of Accounts for 2010/11.

Recommendations | therefore recommend that Council note the decision of the Audit
Committee to approve the Statement of Accounts for 2010/11,
including the Annual Governance Statement, and note that, as Chair of
that Committee, | have signed the accounts to formally signify their
approval by the Council.

Financial implications None

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk
Tel no: 01242 264123
Legal implications This report adopts relevant guidance issued in the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 and 2011.
Contact officer: Peter Lewis
E-mail: Peter.Lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk
Tel no: 01684 272012

HR implications None

(including learning and

organisational Contact officer: ) @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242

development)

Key risks There are no risks arising from this report which need to be brought to the

attention of members.

$12bl2xda.doc Page 1 of 4 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 148

Corporate and None identified.

community plan
Implications

Environmental and None identified.

climate change
implications

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Introduction

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the council to prepare an annual statement of
accounts by 30 June of each year. The Section 151 Officer must sign and date the draft
statement of accounts, and certify that they present a true and fair view of the financial position of
the council. There should then be a period of public inspection of the accounts of 20 working
days, for which public notice of at least 14 days must be given.

The Regulations then require that the draft accounts be audited and for the audited statement of
accounts to be considered and approved by way of a council committee by 30 September,
following the year end. The Section 151 Officer must re-certify the audited statement of accounts
prior to this meeting. Following approval by the committee, the statement of accounts is to be
signed and dated by the person presiding at the meeting.

At its meeting on 28 June 2010 Council delegated authority to the Audit Committee to review and
approve the audited statement of accounts.

The Audit Committee review specifically considers whether appropriate accounting policies have
been followed, the conclusion of the audit of the statements, and whether there are any issues
that need to be brought to the attention of the Council. The Committee also considers whether
the Annual Governance Statement fairly reflects the arrangements within the council and whether
the suggested action plan will address any significant governance issues.

Background

The draft Statement of Accounts was signed by the Section 151 Officer on 30 June 2011. The
public inspection period operated from 12 July to 8 August 2011 and a public notice to that effect
was placed in the Gloucestershire Echo on 15 June 2011.

The accounts were audited during July and August 2011 and the Section 151 Officer signed the
audited accounts on 13 September 2011.

The Audit Committee considered the Statement of Accounts for 2010/11, together with the
auditor’'s Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260), at its meeting on 21 September
2011.

The Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 look very different from those of previous years as it now
has to comply with a new code of accounting practice — the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
authority Accounting (the ‘Code’), which fully incorporates International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

As a result the Council had to change its accounting policies during the year in accordance with
the Code. In particular a review had to be undertaken of the accounting treatment of every lease
the council had entered into and every capital grant and contribution received in 2009/10 and
2010/11.

The Accounts incorporate new statements — a Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account
and a Movement in Reserves Statement — and the figures for 2009/10 had to be restated in the
new format. There are new categories on the balance sheet, such as Usable and Unusable
Reserves, and many new and more detailed notes to the Statements. The transition to IFRS

$12bl2xda.doc Page 2 of 4 Last updated 29 September 2011



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

41

4.2

5.

5.1
6.

6.1

Page 149

represents the largest change in accounting for a number of years.

Auditor’s Report

The council’s external auditors, KPMG LLP, conducted a full audit of the financial statements and
have issued a ‘Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) for 2010/11’, giving the
Statement of Accounts an unqualified audit opinion. The audit did not identify any material
misstatements in the accounts and the Audit Certificate was signed on 21 September 2011.

The auditor must appoint a date on which local government electors for the area to which the
accounts relate may exercise their rights under regulation 15 and 16 of the Audit commission Act
1998 to question the auditor about or make objections to the accounts. The date appointed by the
auditor was 9 August 2011.

The audit identified only two adjustments to the draft accounts, both of which were in relation to
classification and had no impact on the net assets reported or the council’'s net expenditure. The
auditor commented that ‘this result demonstrates the high level of care and resource that the
finance team put into preparing the financial statements and the working papers for audit’ and that
the ‘quality of the accounts and the supporting working papers provided to us was again
excellent.’

The council received one objection to the accounts in relation to the payment of car allowances to
staff. This was formally considered by KPMG who concluded that there were no grounds for
taking any further action.

The auditor also commented that the council had implemented the recommendations of the ISA
260 2009/10 report and that it had made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. Two priority two issues and one priority three issue were

identified, which are being addressed. All are issues which do not need immediate action or
which are not vital to the overall system of internal control.

Reasons for recommendations

The Audit Committee were provided with a comprehensive verbal explanation of the key changes
and highlights of the accounts for 2010/11 and received a complimentary verbal report from the
Auditor.

Accordingly the Audit Committee considers that there are no issues arising from the audit which
need to be brought to the attention of Council.

Alternative options considered
See above.

Consultation and feedback

Director of Commissioning, Cabinet Member for Community Development and Finance

Report author Contact officer: Mark Sheldon

mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk

01242 264123,

$12bl2xda.doc Page 3 of 4 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 150

Appendices

None

Background information

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

External Audit Working paper files 2010/11

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2010/11

Accounts

Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011/12

Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) for 2010/11

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011

$12bl2xda.doc

Page 4 of 4

Last updated 29 September 2011




Agenda ltem 12
Page 151

Cheltenham Borough Council
Council — 10 October, 2011

Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations
Report of the Electoral Registration Officer (ERO)

Accountable member
Accountable officer

Accountable scrutiny
committee

Ward(s) affected

Cabinet Member Corporate Services, Councillor Colin Hay
Chief Executive, Andrew North

Economy and Business Improvement

All with specific impact on College and Up Hatherley Wards

Key Decision

Yes

Executive summary

Recommendations

The council has a statutory duty to review its polling stations, polling districts
and polling places every four years.

A consultation exercise has been completed and consideration has been
given to the views put forward.

That the following changes to polling districts, places and stations be
approved:

College Ward, Polling District FB — change from Naunton Park Primary
School, Naunton Lane to Emmanual Church, Fairfield Parade

Up Hatherley Ward, West Ward of the Parish of Up Hatherley — move
Broad Oak Way and Caernarvon Close from Polling District SA to
Polling District SB

Up Hatherley Ward, West Ward of the Parish of Up Hatherley — move
2-8 Coombe Glen Lane, Hollis Road and Hollis Gardens from Polling
District SA to Polling District SC

Up Hatherley Ward, West Ward of the Parish of Up Hatherley — move
315 to 365 Hatherley Road from Polling District SA to Polling District
SC

Up Hatherley Ward, West Ward of the Parish of Up Hatherley — move
15-25 and 22-36 Montgomery Road from Polling District SA to Polling
District SC

Up Hatherley Ward, West Ward of the Parish of Up Hatherley — move
4-8 Greatfield Lane from Polling District SB to Polling District SC

That the full list of polling districts, polling places and polling stations
as set out in appendix 6 and 7 is published for a further period of six
weeks, during which time individuals have the right to make
representations to the Electoral Commission.

$m4d4vcfc.doc

Page 1 of 6 Last updated 30 September 2011




Page 152

Financial implications

There are no financial implications. All changes can be met from existing
election budgets.

Contact officer:Andrew Sherbourne,

andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264337

Legal implications

The statutory process to be followed as referred to in the report.

Contact officer: Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684
272012

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

There are no HR implications.

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, E-mail:
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, Tel no: 01242 264355

Key risks

There is a risk that individuals who have been used to voting in one area
are unable to locate the polling station or go to the incorrect polling place.
The council issues poll cards which will give the new location on the card.

Corporate and
community plan
Implications

There are no community and corporate plan implications

Environmental and
climate change
implications

$m4d4vcfc.doc

Page 2 of 6 Last updated 30 September 2011




1.

2.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Page 153

Background

The Parliamentary Elections Regulations 2006 requires each local authority to carry out a
review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations every four years. The reason for
the review is to ensure that all electors in the Cheltenham Borough Council area have
reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable and to ensure that polling stations are
accessible to all electors, including those with special needs. The Acting Returning Officers for
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Parliamentary Constituencies (for the areas within the Borough
of Cheltenham) have made formal comment as part of this review, both into the existing polling
stations and the polling stations that would probably be used based on the newly
recommended polling places.

What is not being reviewed — The Cheltenham or Tewkesbury Parliamentary Constituency,
Gloucestershire County Council Electoral Division, Cheltenham Borough Council Ward, Parish
Ward boundaries.

Responses from interested parties

Following the closing date for the review, as well as the Cheltenham and Tewkesbury
Parliamentary Acting Returning Officer’s formal comments (see paragraph 3 below),
correspondence was received from two other sources.

The first correspondence was from a registered elector in Polling District JC. He was
concerned about some community safety issues and the general environment around St.
Michaels Cornerstone Centre and has suggested that the Electoral Registration Officer
changes the Polling Station from St. Michaels Cornerstone Centre, 1 Severn Road to either
Berkhampstead School or Cheltenham Town Football Club. See plan ‘A’ attached.
Berkhampstead School is situated outside of the polling district JC and at present have not
confirmed availability. Cheltenham Town Football Club (CTFC) would not be able to
accommodate a polling station. The CTFC fixture list is not under their control and games can
be played on Thursday nights.

St. Michaels Cornerstone Centre is located in the centre of the Polling District. Therefore, as
the Elections Office has not received any previous complaints from electors in this polling
district or have any records of any incidents either in or surrounding the polling station, the
existing polling station will remain.

The second correspondence was from Councillor Roger Whyborn and Coucillor Andrew
McKinlay, with regard to Up Hatherley Ward, West Ward of the Parish of Up Hatherley, Polling
Districts SA, SB and SC, with the following suggestions:-

Broad Oak Way and Caernarvon Close are nearer to Hillview Community Centre (SB) than
Lakeside Primary School (SA), move from SA to SB.

2 — 8 Coombe Glen Lane, Hollis Road and Hollis Gardens are nearer to Up Hatherley Village Hall,
Cold Pool Lane (SC) than Lakeside Primary School (SA), move from SA to SC.

More of Hatherley Road should go from SA to SC with suggested break point at Coombe Glen
Lane, move 315 — 365 Hatherley Road from SA to SC.

$m4d4vcfc.doc Page 3 of 6 Last updated 30 September 2011



Page 154

= Remove artbitary split in SA/SC in Montgomery Road, move 15 — 25 and 22 — 36 Montgomery
Road from SA to SC

= 4 - 8 Greatfield Lane nearer to Up Hatherley Village Hall (SC) than Hillview Community Centre
(SB), move from SB to SC.

2.5 Plan B attached shows the locations of the polling stations and suggested roads and streets.

Following the implementation of the new Parliamentary Constituency boundaries in 2010 there
is no reason why these changes cannot be made.

3. Responses from the Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Acting Returning Officers
(ARO)

3.1 Afull list of the Cheltenham Constituency polling stations is set out at appendix C and the
Tewkesbury Constituency polling stations at appendix D along with the AROs’ comments.
There is one proposed change as set out below.

3.2 College Ward, Polling District FB — Over the past ten years the school has requested
moving the polling station to a new venue. The venue is suitable as a polling station and there
have not been any complaints about its use but it does cause disruption to the school. Until
now there has not been a suitable alternative but Emmanual Church in Fairfield Parade now
has seating which can be removed. The building is more than adequate to house a polling
station and has very good disabled access through the main entrance and has its own parking
which can be utilised. It is proposed that the polling station will change from Naunton Park
Primary School, Naunton Lane to Emmanual Church, Fairfield Parade.

4, Consultation and feedback

4.1 An extensive consultation exercise was carried out and proposals and comments on the
proposed review were requested. Comments were requested from the following:

e Local MPs

e Cheltenham Borough Councillors

e Gloucestershire County Councillors

e Party Election Agents

e Parish Councils

e Various Disabled/Neighbourhood Projects etc.

A copy of this report was sent to the respective ward councillors and also to the clerk of Up Hatherley
%agz?n;?uncil so that they are aware of the proposals and any comments will be fed back at the

5. Performance management —-monitoring and review

5.1  The electoral team always undertake an informal review of polling stations after each election
to identify any issues which may arise from time to time.

$m4d4vcfc.doc Page 4 of 6 Last updated 30 September 2011



Page 155

Report author

Contact officer: Kim Smith, Senior Elections & Registration Officer,
kim.smith@cheltenham.gov.uk,

01242 774948

Appendices

1.

Risk Assessment

Plan A map for Polling District JC

Plan B map for Polling Districts SA,SB,SC
ARO comments Cheltenham

ARO comments Tewkesbury

Cheltenham list for publication

. Tewkesbury list for publication

$m4d4vcfc.doc

Page 5 of 6 Last updated 30 September 2011




Risk Assessment

Appendix 1

9G| 8bed

The risk Original risk Managing risk
score
(impact x
likelihood)
Risk | Risk description Risk Date raised | L Score | Control | Action Deadline Responsible Transferred to
ref. Owner officer risk register
Any risks associated
with equality impact
Any environmental
risks
Elector unsure of Director of 19 11112 A Poll Card with from Electoral Divisional
location of Polling Commissioning | September note highlighting next registration | risk
Station change of Polling | election | manager register
Station. Helpline
number on poll
card.
$m4d4vcfc.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 30 September 2011



c
©
o
c —
2 =|® &
o|l>5
_0% 3 = |8|525
g o N D o &E X
2 cc 2 Q|82
T S6 = T |[N|o3<£c
5 2% 8 2 |N|go6C =
0 =2 c ..| 355 §o0o
> 28 3 3 |L|og g
c 0 c o © Sl 0538+
= = (@] o < Cgpc @
3 2 Q golOQ|c2F
S £0 < ) S w2 >
o = &)} Uﬁ_“@wgg
9 o= 3 °Q 0T >
¢ OO o O |ego S5 T
» T & S |69|o|l50<®
3 25 o | Oo|lLf3c e
O £S8 a8 |5z @ e5Ec
oD B o2 |ool 1 2% 5c
; S 2= £5% [Sg¥|cgES
=] X = @ S| ¥|EgES
» un Sz ga| | 2oz=2
z ()] o q)w
c [0} D.QC'O
> | o 05 £ 0
-.q-'?q-’c 2 C O = 5 C
ox= |28 Cs 0w
c® o |Op .%)CS
oo © O 2o

.5 | Scale:
s A

) If-'r
i —===d con

I
'l=.

T
H

- LT

: i - i .iif T

i,

i
z i,

s of 'ﬂﬁ' ‘Eﬁﬁﬁi.ﬁflg > ;-lv iEaes

h@ ;.ﬁ::l.l.fff TTHT]
gy rf”ﬁ'gf?@ ///7 AT
s, N o g L |
= AN "'"""'-'-*'!*ﬁ' Tl

gy
g
,a‘-.-_-

a
=
o

L1y
i
el SRS IR Sy
it
:I,‘r Fl W
e 17 TR
Al

',-E'., il I
e
~ |:II £ F j i
Ry L

*-:-h-""--u ol -"-'..
o r#r:,ia'mﬂﬁfiwﬂ e

£

T
=
e

e e A




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 158



")SI1 UMO S,Jasnh 8y} Je S| Uulaiay paulejuod
uoljewloul 8y} uo soueljal Auy Juswniisul Aoains
10 Juswnoop |eba| e se panJjsuod aq O} Jou sI

pue Ajuo sasodind aouaiajal 1o} SI JUBWND0P SIY |

-

11L02/60/61 -8fed 0GZ°/'L :9ledS

¥8€+2000} A9AINS @oueUPIO §
1102 Sybu aseqejep pue JybuAdod umoiD @ 3

syousip Buijjod AspayieH dn

0] sabueyo pasodold |;

[1ouno) ybnoluog weyuslvyd :

2uBD uLIg] IS puB
[atas apisul nag

U R .,AN .@Eu_.__._ﬁ_wr_u
u,

h A.y@
5

Cd
iy

,
4 ; 8 J[IoUIEH,
hFerits 2 i
% , ) ousg g A 'S
& A F episene /¢y
& % T 4 N/
2 Gy X
5 Mﬁ. i 5 N
ot o L e
iz 5 ) o m oy
= A i Rk
a¢ m.%. Y
aGR B awnmq 7
.J.._U
;w&pﬁw._wb oy
s8]
! -
S % o
g i
do7 2
% -
£ 50
b
ol
%D e rz; X

uup4 __
i 21854 =
2 : PI2RFaID Ty asnoyyaug 5
. faudigledns 1 Aed YIno
FF n....f: i qied Yy ]
L ! !
= = !
o =
¢ 5
._ﬂ.__.m ,“r-.
el =
/ .:,VAW.A;/.
WA LY 2= Ag]
5 ST
ﬂﬂww:: !
- 3
Fo | -
Sk Addd
; Lyog
i ey o FLE
UerRIE])
ETTR
= hgy
T I
5
Mo tad wie]
= < inue
S I D
) 7 b.T
% 5% Iz
= : " >
|
= w%
- T 3 v
i & ATEYR &
5 = 2
i ~ .mw.w-nw.w. e .Hm.n.
LPRILS, K ey, # Add
o b punoacy ¥ ___.mw 3! = T
- LB T uD nERuaRY 5 o VA
J.u,. Eﬁ £ -
N e FADHE Ty I,

|
.
.
e
I
r
”
s
[l I
i
| @ | uess
O 5 0 o nq
i A
N L3y
olo o
Mgy I
4]
s
yu
sp|alusaly
~
I \u_'
L 10 O
=
o “ Il

ple suodg




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 160



82%8ld yoinyo

ey
- yeee

Page 161

‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d ‘(A4eaqi 0} IXeN) SI0109(3
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN "sse20€ pajgesiqg ‘lleH sbuny va 6
393ld yoiny)d —
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud ‘(A1elqr 01 IXaN) SI0p9|g
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss202€ pajgesiq ‘lleH sbuny vda 8
ISSM\ PEOY YHON
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d ‘asua) AJunwwo)
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN "sse20€ pajgesiqg LsIq % sbuippay syl 00} l
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud anuaAy suing uaqoy
sabueyo oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sebueyd oN ‘ssa29e psjgesiq ‘looyss 3 Jo O sHIEeN IS <o) 9
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud anuaAy suing 1Uaqoy
sabueyo oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodolid sabueyd oN ‘ssa29e pajgesiq ‘looyoss 3 40 O SHIEN IS Vo G
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud peoy uopuo]
S sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss@02e pojgesiq | ‘lleH y24ny) sajisody AjoH ag v
yoeouddy umopaseg
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d ‘looyog sjueju| R Jup
sabueyo oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN "ss220€ pajgesiqg so|1sody A|oH veg ¢
aoella| Aioud
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodoud ‘leH yo4nyd AinqybiH
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ssa02€ pajgesiq ‘WO0Y UMOIg UOLIOIN av Z
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d 190115 Aasior
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'sse02e pojgesiq | ‘|ooyos Atewlid Ayull] AjoH \"A"4 L
jousia uonels buijjod JaquinN
buijjod 10 pue ade|d sjuswwuo) uonels buijjod pusigq | uonels
pasodoid builjjod pasodoid S,19210 buiuinjay bunoy 1o pue ade|d buijjod juaiiny | buijjod | buijjod

AODNINLILSNOD AYMVININVITIVd NVHN3LTIHO

SNOILVLS ONIT70d ANV S30V1d ONITT0d "S1OI¥1SId ONIT10d 40 M3IATYH

¢ xipuaddy




alenbg jeuaduw|
‘lleH umo| 8y
‘pasodoud ‘pasodo.d ‘Yed Je) ul pajenis
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ssa02e pajgesiq ‘uigeyeuod 94 Sl
'8s1|in 0} 8|ge 3] ||IM
am yoiym Buyied umo syl sey osje yoinyo sy} ‘eduesjus uiew
ay} ybnouyy sseooe pajqesip poob Aiap ‘uoijels bBuijjod e asnoy
0} ayenbape uey} aiow si Buip|ing 8y ‘paAow &g Mou ued
Bunjeas ayj se uoijdo ue mou si YydInyd ay} Jo asn ay] ‘speled
plaidied ‘yoinyo |enueww3 o) abueyd uoijels Builjjod asodoid
Al
© "anuaA mau e 0} uonels Buljjod syy Buinow noge
T apeled SJ0||1I9UN0Y pue sioulanob jooyos ‘|ooyos ay} wous sauinbua aueT uoyuneN
%u ‘pasodoid | pjaidie ‘yainys | pey aney | sieak Q| }sed JSAQ "SJ0}08|8 wody sjule|dwod ou pey ‘looyog Alewd
(g sebueys oN |]ohuewiwg aney | g SS900€ pa|gesiq sey |00yos Alewlid died uojunen 3}Jed uojuneN a4 vl
peoy weysukay
‘pasodoud ‘pasodo.d ‘lood plojpues apisinQ
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN "ss200€ pajgesiqg uigexeuod v4d <l
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud peOy PUIOON
sabueyd oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sebueyd oN ‘sse2oe pajgesiq | ‘|leH yslied suesH paloes 93 rd)
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud aue A9||id
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'sseo2e pojgesiq | ‘|leH isideg uoydweyyoa <E L
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud peoy pualoo
sabueyd oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodolid sebueyd oN ‘ssa2oe pajgesiq | ‘|leH ysled suesH paloes v3a ol
1P1ISIq uonejs buljiod JaquinN
buijjod 10 pue ade|d sjuswwuo) uonels buijjod pusigq | uonels
pasodoid Buijjod pasodoid s, 19931}J0 buiuin}ay bunoy 10 pue ade|d buijjod juaiin)y | buijjod | buijjod




Page 163

‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud peoy |leH
sabueyd oN sabueyds oN ‘pasodolid sebueyd oN ‘ssa2oe pajgesiq | ‘|ooyos Arewid uojdweyyos 2l €C
‘pasodoud "pasodoud peoy |leH
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sebueys oN ‘ssaooe pajgesiq | ‘|ooyos Aewid uoidweyyos gl rA A
aue Aslid
._omwOQO._Q .U@MOQO._Q ‘lleH 1sndeg uoidweyyos]
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN "ss220€ pa|gesiq 0 Jeay ‘|leH uoiz VI 12
‘suoissas AlAoe Alsp|e
Kepsiny Jeinbas sy abuetseal o} bulmun — jjeH Adold p1O
‘Buiyooq Ajuoud aye} 0} SUOI}OS|S 10} SUOIIPUOD
pue swJa} }Jeaw 0} a|geun — suelydjapeisuyo weyualjayo
‘Bujooq AjuoLd axe)} 0] suonoale 1oy Ajjeosioads
‘SUOIJIPUOD puE SWJd) }9aW 0} 3|qeun — Yyainyo smaypep 1S
"9o1j0U d)e| Je Ajje1oadsa ‘sjuallo
S}l 0} 8s0J0 0} BuljImun — wWAe 9 gn|9 salpe] eds weyual|dayo
"anuaA mau e 0} uoinels buljjod syy Buinow
¥ ‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud noge |ooyos ay} wod} sauinbug "s10}os|d wouj sjuie|dwod oN peoy ddeuy
sobueyd oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'ssa0oe pajgesiq |  ‘[ooyds ‘D 'Y shlobaio 1S 9H 0z
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d 192.1S Jaljjadiuop
sabueyo oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN ‘ssaooe pajgesiq ‘lleH yo4nyD smalpuy 1S gH 6l
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d peoy WiaAel\
sabueyo oN sabueyds oN ‘pasodoud sebueyo oN ‘ssa02%e pajgesiq | ‘|leH y24nyD yoinyo sy VH 8l
peoy uApoolg
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud ‘aljua) Aunwwo)
sabueyd oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN "ss200€ pajgesiq ‘M'H 8 SHEen 1S g9 Ll
aoe|d ybinquip3
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d ‘aJenbg uoljeuolon
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss802€ pajgesiq ‘yoinyo sueply 1S Vo 9l
pusia uonejs bui|jod JaquinN
buijjod 10 pue ade|d SIE ) uonejs buijjod Pusiq | uonels
pasodoid buijjod pasodoid S,19210 buiuinjay bunoy 1o pue ade|d buijjod juaiiny | bBuijjod | buijjod




peoy yueqbuudg

‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud ‘alua)
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN "ssa02e pajgesi| 92Jnosay Jueqbuudg aN e
snuaAy |IId
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d ‘looyog Alewd
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'ssa02e pa|gesi| Kepn sioseH VN ¢
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d peoy juow|ag eip $s800y
M sabueyo oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sabueyd oN ‘ssa99e pa|qesiq ‘asnoH AanjeH paqoy a1 62
@ 'Pesodoid ‘pasodo.d aALQ yoeouddy 1sepn / 1se]
O sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN "ssa02e pajgesi| ‘wooy dwnd 9|jiAnd v 8z
o 1931)S POOMION Jeals)
‘pesodo.d ‘pesodo.d ‘llieH
sabueyd oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueyd oN ‘ss899e pajgesiq | YdJnyD ISIPoYIsN epsayleg aM 12
‘pesodo.d ‘pasodo.d peoy susaydalg 1g
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyd oN 'sse02e pajgesiq | ‘Yyoinyo ysued susaydalg ig W (Y4
peoy ulanss |
‘pasodoud ‘pasodo.d ‘aJ)Us) |u0)sIauI0)
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pesodoud sabueyo oN 'ssa02e pa|gesi| s|eeydI 1S ar (T4
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d Jua0salI) apA|D ‘enus)d ar
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyd oN 'ssadoe pajgesiq | e2inosay Ajunwiwo) Aspyeo vr <A
pomsiq uonels buljjod JaquinN
buijjod 10 pue ade|d sjuswuwo) uonels buljjod pu3sig | uonels
pasodoid Buijjod pasodoid S.19913J0 buiuin)ay bunoy 10 pue ade|d buijjod juaxing | buljjod | buijjod




Page 16

‘pasodoud ‘pasodo.d Kepp pleyolio
sabueyo oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sebueyd oN ‘ssa29e psjgesiq ‘lleH yainy) seqeuleq S a0 oV
¥ ‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud peoy sabloa9) iS
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss802€ pajgesiq ‘leH 1sideg wajes vO 6¢
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d 100.1S Joyeg
sabueyd oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodolid sabueyd oN ‘ssa29e pajgesiq ‘aljua) YNoA UdalI5) seq) ad 8¢
}9841S Yoimsunug
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d Bl/\ SS800Y
sabueys oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sebueyd oN ‘ssa29e psjgesiq ‘alua) yaoiny sined 1S vd 1€
peoy uApjooig
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud ‘aljua) Aunwwo)
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss802€ pajgesiq ‘MH 2 SHIEeN 1S a0 9¢
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d aueT auojs|y
sabueyd oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sabueyd oN ‘ssa2oe pajgesiq | |00Y9S JOIUN[ plalJUEBMOY VO G¢
jousig uonels buijjod JaquinN
buijjod 10 pue ade|d sjuswuwo) uonels buijjod jougsiq | uonels
pasodoid buijjod pasodoid S,1921J0 buluinjay bunoy 10 pue ade|d buijjod juaiiny | buijjod | buijjod




age 166

y ‘pesodoud ‘pasodo.d SNUBAY Uj0oUIT 91
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'ssa02e pajgesiq | ‘|leH yaJiny) siaydoisiuyo 1S a1 (1 2
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d peoy uojsiuo)
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN "ss220€ pajgesiqg ‘lleH sjasebuepy 1S V1 v
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d aue |00d poD
sabueyd oN sabueyos oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN "ss220€ pa|gesiqg ‘leH abejn AspiayieH dn 0 1) o
JuUa9sal) HaqinH
‘pasodoud ‘pasodo.d ‘(A4elgi 01 IXaN)
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'ssa02e pajgesiq | ‘esua) Ajunwwod MalA||IH as S
‘pasodo.d ‘pasodo.d peoy AsjiayieH
sobueyd oN sabueyd oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss892€ pajgesiq ‘looyog Alewld apisaye] VS v
pomsiq uonels buljjod JaquinN
Buijjod 10 pue ade|d SJusWItio) uonejs buijjod Jo13SIq | Uonels
pasodoid Buijjod pasodoid S.19913J0 buiuin)ay bunoy 10 pue ade|d buijjod juaiin) | buijjod | buijjod




peoy UopuiMsg

‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud ‘looyos Atewid
sabueyo oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sebueys oN ‘ssad2e pajgesiq aueT siauples) o} a7
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud aueT uopuimg
sabueyo oN sabueys oN ‘pasodolid sabueyd oN ‘ssa29e pajgesiq ‘lleH yainy) se|ooIN 1S ay A
‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud peoy yainyon
sobueyd oN sobueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueyo oN 'Ss202€ pajgesiq ‘lleH abejjiA uopuims vy L
N
O aueT uopuimg
T ‘IleH Y24nyQ SejodIN 1S
%u ‘pasodoud ‘pasodoud “Yied Jed ul pajenis 2N
o sebueyo oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN ssad0e pajgesiq ‘uigeyeuod an A
8Ly
-L¥0Z
‘pesodo.d ‘pasodo.d aue sJaounog sI0109/3
sabueyo oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueyos oN ‘ssadoe pajgesiq ‘leH Aingisald ZVIN X
‘pasodo.d ‘pesodo.d aue sJaounog mwmwmu_m
sabueyo oN sabueyo oN ‘pasodoud sabueys oN ‘ssad2e pajgesiq ‘leH Aungisald LVIN 0¢
pmsiq uonjels buljjod JaquinN
buijjod 10 pue ade|d sjuswIwio) uone}s buijjod 10 JouIsiqg | uonels
pasodo.id buljjod pasodoid S 19210 buluin}ay bunoy pue ade|d buljjod Juaiiny buljjod buljjod

AODNINLILSNOD AUVININVITIVd AdNESIMMIL

SNOILVLS ONIT70d ANV S30V1d ONITT10d "S1OI¥1SId ONIT70d 40 M3IATYH

G xipuaddy




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 168



Page 169

LIST OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS

Appendix 6

CHELTENHAM PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCY

15T DECEMBER 2011
WARD Polling Polling Place and or Polling
District Station
ALL SAINTS AA Holy Trinity Primary School,
Jersey Street
ALL SAINTS AB Morton Brown Room,
Highbury Church Hall,
Priory Terrace
BATTLEDOWN BA Holy Apostles
Jnr & Infants School,
Battledown Approach
BATTLEDOWN BB Holy Apostles Church Hall,
London Road
BENHALL & THE CA St Marks C of E School,
REDDINGS Robert Burns Avenue
BENHALL & THE CB St Marks C of E School,
REDDINGS Robert Burns Avenue
BENHALL & THE CcC The Reddings & District
REDDINGS Community Centre,
North Road West
CHARLTON KINGS DA Kings Hall,
Electors (Next to Library),
1-2223 Church Piece
CHARLTON KINGS DA Kings Hall,
Electors (Next to Library),
2224 - 4344 Church Piece
CHARLTON PARK EA Sacred Hearts Parish Hall,
Moorend Road
CHARLTON PARK EB Leckhampton Baptist Hall,
Pilley Lane
CHARLTON PARK EC Sacred Hearts Parish Hall,
Moorend Road
COLLEGE FA Portakabin
Outside Sandford Pool,
Keynsham Road
COLLEGE FB Emmanual Church,
Fairfield Parade
COLLEGE FC Portakabin,
Situated in Car Park,
The Town Hall,
Imperial Square




Page 170

WARD Polling Polling Place and or Polling
District Station
HESTERS WAY GA St Aidans Church,
Coronation Square,
Edinburgh Place
HESTERS WAY GB St Marks & H.W.
Community Centre,
Brooklyn Road
LANSDOWN HA Christ Church Church Hall,
Malvern Road
LANSDOWN HB St Andrews Church Hall,
Montpellier Street
LANSDOWN HC St Gregorys R. C. School,
Knapp Road
LECKHAMPTON 1A Zion Hall, Rear of
Leckhampton Baptist Hall,
Pilley Lane
LECKHAMPTON IB Leckhampton Primary School,
Hall Road
LECKHAMPTON IC Leckhampton Primary School,
Hall Road
OAKLEY JA Oakley Community Resource
Centre, Clyde Crescent
OAKLEY JB Oakley Community Resource
Centre, Clyde Crescent
OAKLEY JC St Michaels
Cornerstone Centre,
1 Severn Road
PARK KA St Stephens Parish Church,
St Stephens Road
PARK KB Bethesda Methodist Church
Hall,
Great Norwood Street
PITTVILLE LA Pittville Pump Room,
East / West Approach Drive
PITTVILLE LB Robert Harvey House,
Access Via Belmont Road
SPRINGBANK NA Hesters Way
Primary School,
Dill Avenue
SPRINGBANK NB Springbank Resource Centre,

Springbank Road




Page 171

WARD Polling Polling Place and or Polling
District Station
ST. MARK’S OA Rowanfield Junior School,
Alstone Lane
ST. MARK’S OB St Marks & H.W.
Community Centre,
Brooklyn Road
ST. PAUL’S PA St Pauls Church Centre,
Access Via
Brunswick Street
ST. PAUL’S PB Gas Green Youth Centre,
Baker Street
ST. PETER’S QA Salem Baptist Hall,
St Georges Road
ST. PETER’S QB St Barnabas Church Hall,
Orchard Way
UP HATHERLEY SA Lakeside Primary School,
Hatherley Road
UP HATHERLEY SB Hillview Community Centre,
(Next to Library),
Hulbert Crescent
UP HATHERLEY sC Up Hatherley Village Hall,
Cold Pool Lane
WARDEN HILL TA St Margarets Hall,
Coniston Road
WARDEN HILL B St Christophers Church Hall,
Lincoln Avenue
WARDEN HILL TC St Christophers Church Hall,

Lincoln Avenue




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 172



Page 173 Appendix 7

LIST OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS

TEWKESBURY PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCY

15T DECEMBER 2011
WARD Polling Polling Place and or Polling

District Station

PRESTBURY MA Prestbury Hall,
Electors Bouncers Lane
1-2046

PRESTBURY MA Prestbury Hall,
Electors Bouncers Lane

2047 - 4128
PRESTBURY MB Portakabin,

Situated in Car Park,
St Nicolas Church Hall,
Swindon Lane

PRESTBURY MC Portakabin,
Situated in Car Park,
St Nicolas Church Hall,
Swindon Lane

SWINDON VILLAGE RA Swindon Village Hall,
Church Road

SWINDON VILLAGE RB St Nicolas Church Hall,
Swindon Lane

SWINDON VILLAGE RC Gardners Lane
Primary School,
Swindon Road




This page is intentionally left blank
Page 174



Agenda Item 16
Page 175

Cheltenham Borough Council

Council — 10 October, 2011
Cabinet — 18 October, 2011

North Place & Portland Street - progress update

Report of the Cabinet Member for Built Environment

Note: this report will only go to Council & Cabinet if the bid passes the assessment process and the evaluation
panel wants to recommend proceeding with the appointment of a preferred bidder

Accountable member Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member Built Environment
Accountable officer Grahame Lewis, Executive Director

Accountable scrutiny Environment

committee
Ward(s) affected St. Paul’s & Pittville directly
All Saints, Lansdown & College indirectly
Key Decision Yes
Executive summary The Cheltenham Development Task Force was established on 4t January,

2010, with the purpose of driving forward the ambitions previously set out
under the Civic Pride banner. It became clear that due to changing
circumstances the previously adopted brief for this key site was not likely to
be deliverable, so following public consultation, the Council approved the
revised development brief for this site in December 2010. As a result, the
site was marketed in line with the EU Competitive Dialogue procedure set
out in the Public Contracts Regulations from 24" January 2011. A tight
timetable was proposed in order to maximise developer interest. This
resulted in a positive market response and by 26" July, 2011, it was
possible to identify two short listed bidders, who were invited to work up full
schemes based upon their initial proposals (which were judged both on their
design interpretation and financial package).

Unfortunately, one of the two shortlisted consortia withdrew in early August.
However, given the merits of the remaining scheme, it was decided to
proceed with the competitive dialogue process, albeit with minor
amendments reflecting the change in circumstances.

Dialogue meetings have continued with a specific focus upon design and
financial factors. Design considerations have been informed by input from
the urban design and planning teams, together with responses from the
public, whilst the financial focus has been on capital values and assessed
scheme deliverability.

Cabinet will now consider whether to convey preferred bidder status on
Augur Buchler and their associated scheme, at its meeting on 18" October,
2011. In view of the significance of the proposed development, Cabinet is

Suwprueql.doc Page 1 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 176

Recommendations

keen to engage with the wider Council and to secure input from fellow
Councillors, to help inform its own deliberations and subsequent decision.

Additionally, the proposal will be considered by the Cheltenham
Development Task force on 14" October, 2011, and that too will result in a
recommendation to help inform the Cabinet decision.

Given the visual nature of the development proposal, a short presentation
will be provided. Additionally, given the financial and commercial sensitivity
of this matter, members are advised that it will be necessary to consider any
financial aspects of the scheme in closed session, if they want to debate or
consider these matters in more detail.

Officers consider that the key factors are design issues and financial
outputs.

Note: The following additional documents will be made available to Cabinet
prior to its meeting on 18th October: 1) the Council recommendation 2) a
report and recommendation from the Cheltenham Development Task Force;
and 3) an exempt Appendix attaching Augur Buchler's final proposal.

1. That Council recommends to Cabinet that it should appoint
Augur Buchler Partners Limited as the preferred bidder to
undertake the redevelopment of the North Place and Portland
Street sites.

2. That Cabinet:

a. considers the recommendation of Council on 10 October 2011
and taking into account the advice of the Cheltenham
Development Task Force, agrees to appoint Augur Buchler
Partners Limited as the preferred bidder to undertake the
redevelopment of the North Place and Portland Street sites (the
Sites);

b. delegates authority to the Head of Property Services in
consultation with the Borough Solicitor to:
i) conclude the documentation necessary to appoint Augur
Buchler Partners Limited as the preferred bidder;
ii) conclude the documentation required to dispose of the Sites
as necessary (noting that the Sites may be disposed of in parts
by way of leasehold and freehold disposals and to more than
one party);

ii) enter into an agreement with Gloucestershire County Council
for the purchase of land at Warwick Place.

Suwprueql.doc

Page 2 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011




Page 177

Financial implications

The final financial details are commercially sensitive and will therefore be exempt
information, made available to Council and Cabinet as a confidential exempt
Appendix.

Contact officer: Paul Jones

E-mail: paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk
Tel no: 01242 775154

Legal implications

The Council has undertaken the competitive dialogue procedure as set out
in the Public Contract Regulations 20086, to choose a developer to
redevelop the North Place and Portland Street sites. This involved a
staged process of assessment as follows:
e Pre-qualification selection process;
¢ Invitation to shortlisted candidates to participate in a dialogue
process during which aspects of the project were discussed and
solutions developed;
o Two bidders were chosen from the shortlisted candidates and
invited to continue dialogue;
e Dialogue closed and final tenders invited for selection of a
preferred bidder.

If Augur Buchler is chosen as the preferred bidder the Council will need to
enter into a preferred bidder letter, inviting the preferred bidder to enter
into a contract with the Authority to deliver the Project.. Following
appointment of a preferred bidder there is a further opportunity to 'clarify
aspects of the tender or confirm commitments' provided that there are no
substantial changes to the tender.

The Council can dispose of the Sites using its powers under Section 123
Local Government Act 1972 and unless it can rely on a general or specific
consent issued by the Secretary of State, it must achieve best
consideration for the disposals. The Council can purchase the land at
Warwick Place by using its powers under Section 120 Local Government
Act 1972.

Contact officer: Donna Ruck, Solicitor

E-mail: donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk
Tel no: 01684 272696

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

None arising from this report

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy

E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk
Tel no: 01242 264355
Suwprueql.doc Page 3 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011




Page 178

Key risks 1. The state of the global economy and the current fragility of markets

in relation to support for new investment are an on-going concern.

2. If the scheme is not considered deliverable, the Council’s
investment plans for infrastructure improvements in other areas of
the town centre will be put at risk due to the lack of available capital
funding.

3. The Council’s reputation could be significantly damaged and the
authority may be at risk of legal challenge if it was to withdraw from
the tender process without good reason.

Corporate and This high profile development has the potential to improve an existing
community plan distinct scar on the urban landscape, to deliver much needed housing
Implications (including 40% affordable provision), employment opportunities, modern

parking facilities, a bus node and public square; all in a sustainable
manner.

Additionally, sale of the site will yield a capital receipt that can be targeted
at future town centre improvement schemes.

Environmental and The design brief for the site envisaged a scheme that would deliver an
climate change exemplar in terms of sustainability. The proposals at this stage indicate
implications that this ambition will be realised, with a host of environmental

improvements proposed. These include green walls and roofs which will
limit run-off and flood issues as well as absorb pollutants; improvements to
the local bio-diversity through trees and other planting; bus connectivity;
minimum code 4 housing with the potential to reach code 5 and minimum
BREEAM rating of very good on the commercial elements.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Background

Council established The Cheltenham Development Task Force, under the independent
chairmanship of Graham Garbutt on 4™ January, 2010, to drive forward the ambitions previously
set out under the Civic Pride banner.

Initial analysis by the Task Force (subsequently substantiated by independent property advice),
established that the previously adopted development brief for the North Place and Portland Street
sites was unlikely to be delivered in its adopted format. For this reason, an amended brief was
developed and publicly consulted upon. This brief essentially retained all of the principal elements
of the previous scheme, including commitments to sustainability, the delivery of a public square, a
minimum of 100 housing units (of which 40% to be affordable), a minimum 300 public car parking
spaces and a bus node, but a reduced level of specificity concerning what other uses would be
allowed to underpin the financial provision of such requirements. The brief allowed for a wide
spectrum of uses, including residential, commercial and/or leisure.

As a result of the requirement for physical outputs, such as the car park, the procurement moved
from a simple land disposal to one whereby a comprehensive development solution was required.
As a result of this, the proposal redevelopment of the Sites needed to be advertised in the Official
Journal of the European Union regulations as a “concession for works”. The key challenge to the
Public Contracts Regulations 2006 requirement is that many potential developers find the process
extremely slow and frustrating, so it was felt prudent to follow an aggressive timetable, to
demonstrate to the market that CBC and its partners were serious about delivering this scheme
and releasing capital for other public realm improvement initiatives.

Suwprueql.doc Page 4 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011




1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

211

Page 179

The formal marketing of the site began on 24" January, 2011 and a process has been followed
that sequentially reduced bidders in a structured manner. Thus, from 115 initial expressions of
interest, 9 formal bids were received; on the basis of an objective scoring matrix five were invited
to participate in a competitive dialogue process (ITPD). One of these withdrew at this stage,
leaving four bidders to submit ‘Outline Solutions’ by 1% July, 2011. Throughout the process, all bid
proposals were considered against an evaluation matrix endorsed by Cabinet at its meeting on
8th February, 2011, which essentially allocated scores on a 50:50 basis for design and financial
return criteria.

From the 4 bids received, two schemes scored much higher than the others and were invited to
continue dialogue on 26" July, 2011, with the purpose of ultimately partaking in an invitation to
submit a final tender (ISFT). The two schemes were from Salmon Harvester and Augur Buchler.

Unfortunately, on g August, 2011, the bid from Salmon Harvester was formally withdrawn for
commercial reasons. This changed the dynamics of the process as it was anticipated to have two
bidders up to the final stage, with one ultimately chosen as the preferred partner. Meetings were
held between Augur Buchler and CBC, where both parties agreed to continue the process based
upon some key assumptions, including a commitment by the bidding team not to exploit their
position or CBC would feel obliged to withdraw from the process. Both Councillor Steve Jordan
and Andrew North were present at these meetings.

In light of this commitment and the mobilisation of an even larger design and consultant team by
Augur Buchler, the dialogue process has continued. Although Augur Buchler is the only bidder
remaining in the process, it can only be granted preferred bidder status by a Cabinet decision.

The original timetable has now been accelerated to reflect this solus position. Cabinet will be
asked to consider granting ‘preferred bidder’ status to Augur Buchler on 18™ October, having first
heard the views of Council on 10" October and the recommendation of the Cheltenham Task
Force on 14" October. If preferred bidder status is supported and there is no overview and
scrutiny call-in, so that an Award Decision Notice with a 10 day “standstill” period can be issued, it
would be technically possible to secure the Development Agreement between CBC and Augur
Buchler on or around 15" November, 2011, with final completion of the transaction subject to
securing planning permission for the preferred scheme.

Key considerations

Minimum Requirements

The proposed scheme will deliver the mandatory bid requirements set out in the various bidding
documents which mirror the design brief approved by Council. This includes:-

= A minimum 100 housing units — the scheme proposes 130 units, of which 40% will be
affordable;

= A public square — in this case opposite the church and aptly alluded to as ‘Trinity Square;;

= A bus node — utilising the stopped-up highway land at Warwick Place, in the ownership of
GCC,;

= A minimum 300 car park spaces — the scheme proposes two car parks albeit within the
same structure — a 300 space car park dedicated for public use and another, of similar
footprint, for the use of the foodstore. The hotel will use the public space car park as its
demand for space complements general day time use (Note: this is the same model
deployed by the nearby NCP / Holiday Inn Express). Parking provision for the housing is
separate to these allowances and will comprise at least one space per dwelling.

= A substantial capital receipt for the Council;

= An on-going revenue stream from the car park provision, equating to the current net
current revenue generated by CBC for the Portland Street car park.

Suwprueql.doc Page 5 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 180

Note: These proposals may be subject to modification as a result of the formal planning process,
which will ultimately determine the acceptability or otherwise of the finer details of the overall
scheme.

2.1.2 In addition to the above, the level of sustainability proposed is higher than prescribed and will be
an exemplar, with BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method) Excellent targets for the commercial elements and Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4
targets for the housing, (level 5 if residential elements can be linked to the store’s combined heat
& power provision).

2.2 Public Engagement

2.2.1 The scheme has been subject to significant scrutiny by the urban design and planning teams and
critically, by the public. The scheme was unveiled to the public on 20th August, 2011, via the front
page of the Echo and CBC website. This was supported by static and manned displays plus an
evening meeting targeted at local residents and a further meeting with the Civic Society.

2.2.2 Details of the consultation and its outcomes are set out in section 3 below.

2.3 Legal Structure

2.3.1 A development agreement will be entered into, which will set out the developer’s obligations for
building out the sites and setting out when land will be disposed of by the Council and to whom.
At the time of writing the report the disposal of the Sites is being negotiated, but the likely method
of disposal is as follows:-

= CBC releases the freehold of the sites for housing and commercial development;

= CBC retains the freehold and grants a long lease (250 years) over the area containing the car
park reserved for public use;

= CBC to receive an annual payment for the leased area; this effectively becomes ground rent,
but is set at a rate that equates to the net revenue from 300 spaces currently on the site.
There would be a break clause in the lease in line with the commercial lets, but if enacted it
requires the asset (the car park) to be handed over to CBC to run. Alternatively, the lease
could be extended, or both parties could at some point in the future determine to redevelop
the site again.

= At exchange of contracts, CBC will receive 5% of the capital receipt and the remainder (95%)
upon confirmation of planning permission. On this basis, CBC will release freehold title to the
land before commencement of works, as it will have received all monies arising from the
scheme.

= The developer is required to use all reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours to
obtain a satisfactory planning permission within a fixed period from exchange of contracts (to
be agreed). Additionally, the developer is required to commence and complete works within a
fixed period from exchange of contracts (again, to be agreed). Failure to do so will require the
developer to pay a daily sum (equivalent to the car park revenue) for each extra day.

= [f the car park is not managed within the agreed terms i.e. public access for a minimum 300
spaces and quarterly rent payments to the Council, CBC has the ability to seek forfeit of the
lease.

= There will be a pro-rata payment to GCC for their interest in Warwick Place (which enables
the bus node facility), based upon the net capital receipt received for the whole site.

Suwprueql.doc Page 6 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 181

24 Financial Considerations

2.4.1 Should members wish to discuss the indicative financial receipt and mechanics of the car park
income, this will need to be done in closed session due to the commercial sensitivity involved.

3. Consultation

3.1 Augur Buchler’s initial proposal for North Place / Portland Street was made available for public
comment between 22nd August and 10th September. The objective of the consultation was
twofold - to gauge public reaction to the proposal and to feed comment back to Augur Buchler
and the Council’s design and planning teams, so that if appropriate, the scheme could be
amended.

3.2  Consultation arrangements were as follows:-
= 20" August — front page and positive leader comment in the Echo

= 22" August — 10" September
o Static, unmanned displays throughout the period at
= Municipal Offices (main and Built Environment receptions)
Hester's Way Resource Centre
Springbank Resource Centre
Oakley Resource Centre
The new Lower High Street Community Resource Centre
Charlton Kings Library
Hill View Community Centre/Hatherley Library
o Council website, with on-line comment form

= 3 September — 10" September (excluding Sunday 4™)

o Manned exhibition in High Street (outside Marks & Spencer) — 1 Council officer and 2 Augur
Buchler representatives available from 9am to 5pm each day. Written comment forms
available.

» 6" September

o Face to face discussions with officers and Augur Buchler representatives at the Municipal
Offices — 500 invites sent out to properties neighbouring the site.. Written comment forms
available.

o Presentation to Civic Society by Jeremy Williamson and Auger Buchler respresentatives

Press releases resulted in articles in the Echo and exchanges in the letters column.

Initially, a record of attendance numbers was kept at the High Street exhibition, but numbers on
the first day overwhelmed the staff’s ability to keep tally, and a counting system was abandoned.
About 50 neighbours attended the event on 6" September.

Other meetings took place to help inform the design debate including with active local residents
and also the Cheltenham Civic Society.

100 comments were received in writing; 68 on-line. These 168 break down as follows
Outright Support 44 26%
Qualified Support 43 26%

Total Support 87 52%

Outright Objection 50 30%
Qualified Objection 26 15%

Suwprueql.doc Page 7 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 182
Total Objection 76 45%

Other comments 5 3%

An analysis of the comments shows the following trends.

= Qutright support comments were stridently in favour of the scheme as displayed — particularly
supportive of:-
o Contemporary architectural style and overall design quality
o High sustainability credentials.
o Scheme layout.
o Traffic management objectives
o Landscape and open space provision.

Typically, comments include “get on with it” and “about time”.

= Qualified supporters are generally supportive of the proposals, but have some concerns. The
most frequent concerns are:

o Query the need for a supermarket and suggest the Council looks for an alternative use
(generally not specified, though there are references to leisure uses — e.g. skating rink -
and youth related uses).

o A need to be less restrictive in traffic management arrangements on St Margaret’s Road
junctions to allow all-way turning movements and relieve rat-running to the site through
Monson Avenue and Clarence Square

o Introduce 2-way movement on Portland Street.
o Introduce Regency style architecture.
o More greening

= Qualified objectors are against the scheme as drawn and are generally looking for a rethink.
Often these are people directly affected (neighbours or near neighbours). Typical concerns:
o Introduce Regency style architecture.
o No need for supermarket
o Noise, amenity and visual amenity issues (particularly impact of the car park and service
access on housing in Northfield Terrace/Passage and impacts on Dowty House)
o Building height
o Impact on car parking in neighbouring streets (a number seeking a residents parking
scheme)

= Qutright objectors have nothing positive to say about the project. Concerns include:
o Supermarket is unnecessary — not needed, will impact on town centre viability, etc
Dislike architectural style
Need to retain all car parking on the site
Hotel is unnecessary — will impact on local hotel trade
Parking provision totally inadequate
Traffic impact untenable
Amenity, noise and crime issues
Social housing unnecessary
Parking impact on neighbouring streets (a number seeking a residents parking scheme).
Underground parking

O O O OO0 O O 0 O

The comments have been forwarded to Augur Buchler and have been discussed with the
Council’s planning and design team. This level of support is unusual, in that consultation events
often elicit predominantly negative responses, with those supporting remaining silent — officers
consider this level of support an endorsement of the scheme and the process followed thus far. A

Suwprueql.doc Page 8 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011



41

4.2

4.3

Page 183

number of the issues raised can be addressed through amendments to the proposal; others
require action by outside agencies — notably the County Council on wider traffic and parking
management issues.

Turning to the remaining issues of concern:

Amenity impacts on neighbours are being closely examined for possible design solutions —
particularly the impacts resulting from service and car park access, height and overlooking.

The supermarket is not of a size that necessitates any special retail assessment in this edge of
town centre location, which is within the core commercial area.

Both supermarket and hotel elements will be assessed in terms of their impact as part of the
planning process. Notwithstanding this, both of these elements have been considered through
previous bidding rounds, including through the economic integration assessment, which has
provided sufficient assurances about the potential impact of the proposals for this stage of the
OJEU process.

The County highways team has been supportive of this scheme in principle, as it makes no
amendments to the existing highway network. However, it is likely that existing junction priorities
will have to be amended once the full traffic modelling impacts are understood. This analysis will
be a fundamental requirement of the formal planning submission.

Initial discussions with County highways suggest that lifting the junction restrictions maybe an
acceptable solution, subject to modelling and detailed consideration.

It is a requirement of the development brief approved by Council that architectural style should be
of its time and not a Regency copy or pastiche. This is also the view of the Council’s officers and
the developer team.

Underground parking has been an issue in the press, but only an occasional issue in the
comments received. The adopted development brief offers a range of options for parking -on-
street, in public spaces, undercroft, underground or multi-storey. The proposal offers on-street,
multi-storey and on-plot parking, which is compliant with the requirements of the brief. The
solution proposed reflects a commercial decision by Augur Buchler, having regard to the overall
requirements of the brief and the site specific circumstances.

Next steps

If the Cabinet decides to grant preferred status to Augur Buchler on the 18th October, 2011,
sufficient time will be allowed for any potential Overview & Scrutiny call-in. If no such call-in
arises, an Award Notice will be issued. This requires a “standstill” of 10 days to give the
opportunity for judicial challenge of the award process. If no such challenge is received, CBC can
proceed to exchange of contracts, on the basis of the legal structure outlined in 2.3 above and will
secure a 5% deposit at point of exchange.

Following exchange, Augur Buchler is keen to submit a planning application as soon as
practicable. This could be submitted as early as late January/early February 2012.

The scale of the scheme necessitates a 13 week planning decision time frame including statutory
consultation, but the public engagement exercise has already identified the key issues that need

to be addressed by the applicants. On this basis, it should be possible for the detailed scheme to
be considered as early as the May 2012 planning committee.

Suwprueql.doc Page 9 of 11 Last updated 29 September 2011



Page 184

Report author

David Roberts, Head of Property Services
Cheltenham 264151 (Ext 4151)

david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk

Appendices

1. Risk Assessment

Suwprueql.doc

Page 10 of 11

Last updated 29 September 2011




Risk Assessment

Appendix 1

The risk Original risk score Managing risk
(impact x
likelihood)
Risk ref. | Risk description Risk Date | L Score | Control Action Deadline Responsible | Transferred to
Owner raised officer risk register

CR57 | If the North Place & Portland | AN 23/05/11 | 4 3 112 Reduce Full debate at counciland | 18/10/11 | GL Yes

Street process is recommendation from

compromised by Cheltenham Development

misunderstanding of the task Force to inform

proposal or legal framework Cabinet decision

(OJEU) within which proposal

has been developed then

Councillors will not lend their

support to the scheme.

If the global economic AN 01/09/11 | 4 5 120 Accept Given only one bidder GL

situation deteriorates further remaining steps have

then it is possible that bidding been taken to accelerate

partners will either withdraw the process in order to

from the scheme or fail to reduce the period of risk

commit. exposure.

If the scheme does not AN 01/09/11 | 4 3 |12 Contingency | Council would need to GL

proceed to conclusion then decide whether other

funds will not be available to disposals could help

re-invest in other town centre provide funding

improvement schemes

G8| sbed

Suwprueql.doc

Page 11 of 11

Last updated 29 September

2011



This page is intentionally left blank
Page 186



Agenda Item 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Page 1 87

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank
Page 192



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Page 1 93

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank
Page 194



	Agenda
	4 To approve and confirm the minutes of the meeting held on the 27 June 2011
	9 Petition regarding Starvehall Farm and Playing fields
	2011_10_10_COU_9_Appendix_1_procedure

	10 Review of the constitution
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Appendix_1_CBC_Financial_Rules
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Appendix_A1_Summary_of_limits_Financial_Rules
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Review_of_Constitution_Appendix_2.1
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Review_of_Constitution_Appendix_2.2
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Review_of_Constitution_Appendix_2.3
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Review_of_Constitution_Appendix_3
	2011_10_10_COU_10_Review_of_Constitution_Appendix_4

	11 Statement of Accounts
	12 Review of polling districts, places and stations
	2011_10_10_COU_12_Appendix_2_plan_A
	2011_10_10_COU_12_Appendix_3_plan_B
	2011_10_10_COU_12_Appendix_4_ARO_Cheltenham
	2011_10_10_COU_12_Appendix_5_ARO_Tewkesbury
	2011_10_10_COU_12_Appendix_6_Cheltenham_list
	2011_10_10_COU_12_Appendix_7_Tewkesbury_list

	16 North Place and Portland Street - progress update
	18 Treasury Management Issue
	2011_10_10_COU_18_Appendix_2_Decision_Form


